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December 17, 2024

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity to enter into
a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract (contract # 1093270) with Southern New Hampshire
Services (SNHS) - d/b/a Community Action Partnership Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties
(CAPHR) (VC# 177198) , Manchester, NH for the delivery of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity
Act (WlOA) Adult Program services by increasing the price limitation by $220,273 from $8,818,490 to
$9,038,763 with no change to the completion date of June 30. 2025 effective upon Governor and Council
approval. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on December 18, 2020, Item #37
and amended on April 12, 2023, Item #5K and amended on November 29, 2023, Item #51.100% Federal
Funds.

FY2025
Funding is available in account, Office of Workforce OoDortunitv. as follows;

03-22-022-220510-14530000-102-500731-Contracts for Program Services $220,273

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source due to the successful delivery of WlOA Adult Program services provided by
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS), d/b/a Community Action Partnership Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties (CAPHR), as SNHS exceeded enrollment goals last year and is again on target to
surpass this year's goals. These increases are being seen due to the expansion of eligibility as well as
through various outreach efforts that are underway.

This contract between the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity
(BEA/OWO) and Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is for the delivery of the WlOA Adult
Program services. The amendment of the existing agreement increases the funding to reflect the increase
in enrollment and services being provided to eligible participants. Through various outreach initiatives and
the expansion of eligibility, SNHS has far exceeded enrollment goals.

The Attorney General's office has reviewed and approved this document as to form, substance and
execution.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

Respectfully submitted,

Taylor Caswell
Commissioner

9 too North Main Street, Suite 100
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

C 603,271.2341

visitnh.gov nheconomy.com choosenh.com



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WlOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated December 10.2024, is between the State of New Hampshire

Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity, 100 North Main
Street, Suite 100, Concord, Merrimack County, New Hampshire 03301 (hereinafter referred to as

the "State") and Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc, d/b/a Community Action Partnership
Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties, 40 Pine Street, Manchester, Hillsborough County, New
Hampshire 03103 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Assignment of Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as
approved by Governor and Council on April 12. 2023, Item SK (Consent Calendar), the Contractor
has agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified In the Agreement
and in consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Item 5 of the Agreement, the State and the
Contractor have agreed.to amend the Agreement in certain respects;

NOWTHEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions in
the Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of AaraemenL The Agreement is amended and modified

as follows:

A) Price limitation: Amend the Agreement by striking the current price limitation of
$8,818,490 and inserting in place thereof the amount of $9,038,763.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms

and conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain in

full force and effect in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the

Agreement as it existed immediately prior to this Amendment.

SNHS Amendment Contractor Initials:

WIOAAduR

CFDA: 17.258



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC

AFFAIRS OFFICE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WlOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT (page 2 of 3)

IN WITNESS WHER EOF, the parties have hereunto set trieir hands as of the day and year first

above written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs

Bv:
Taylor Caswell. Commissioner

Soutt\ern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

j

.ozeau, Chief ̂x^uFive Officer

State of

County of

On this // of » a ia^(^ 2024. before me. SP/cs . the urdersigned
officer, personally appeared fi who acknowledged himself/herself to be the

^  acofDoration, and that he/she, being

authorized so to do. executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of the Peace
My Commission expires /<?/">/ d

Approved as to form, execution and substance

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

.Louise D. Williams

"ytjaw j) A^istant Attorney r.engral
By:

Date; December 19,2024

SNHSAiiiendnent . .
Contfttclor Intiols:

CFOA:17.25S



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WIOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

AMENDMENT (page 3 of 3)

I hereby certify that the foregoirtg contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of

New Hampshire at their meeting on 2024.

OFFICEOFTHESECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

k.SNHSAmendmanl Cortradof Wliaii:
WIOAAduM X ̂ ̂ i/- ^ ̂
CFDA: 17.258 Dde:



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIR£

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

! further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certificate Number: 0006652089

h

O

N

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1st day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTFICATE OF AUTHORrTY

1, Orville Kerr , hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Cjerk/Secretarv/Officer of Southern istew Hampshire Services. Inc. dba Community Action

Partnership Hlilsborouoh and RockinQham Counties. ,
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 9 . 2024 . at which a quorum of the Directors/sh^holders were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. CEO. Rvan Clouthler. COO: James Chaisson. CFO. and Cara Allberti.

Financial Analvst {may list more than one person )is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and
any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment t)e desirable or necessary to
effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
po8ition(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation In contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

'Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr

Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



AC^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATEfMMfDOfYYYY)

03/25/2024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT. If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemenL A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PftOOUCEA

Cross Insurance-Manchester

1100 Eim Street

Manchester NH 03101

cwTACT Dianne Soto

(603)669-3218 Si. ».l: (O"') 645-.331
manch.certstSiaossagency.com

mSURERIS) AFFOROINO COVERAGE NAIC*

INSURER A Philadelphia indemnity ins Co 18058

INSURED

Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc.

PO Box 5040

Manchester NH 0310B-5040

INSURER B
Midwest Employers Casualty Corp 23612

INSURER C

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24-25 SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

li^
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VMTH RESPECT TO VNWICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO AUL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

IR50C7B^
UMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

X

r!r!iliTOi POUCY NUMBER

COMMERCIAL OENERAL UABtLITY

OCCURCLAMS-MAOE

GEN\AGGREGATE LIMIT APPUES PER:

POUCY □
OTHER:

PRO
JECT LOC

PHPK26709S3

(MM/OO/YYYYI

04/01/2024

IMM/DOflTYYY)

04/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAeETORERTES
PREMISES fEi oeeurr>ne«>

MED EXP (Any on« pfon)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREQATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGG

1,000.000

100.000

5.000

1,000,000

2.000,000

2.000,000

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT'
fEi ■edU»n»

% 1.000,000

BODILY INJURY (P*r p«rMn)

O^mED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-O^ED
AUTOS ONLY

PHPK2870952 04/01/2024 04/01/2025 BODILY INJURY (Par •eddant)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
IPaf aeddantl

X UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS LlAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

EACH OCCURRENCE 5.000.000

PHUB905659 04/01/2024 04/01/2025 AGGREGATE 5.000.000

DEO X RETENTION t
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETORWARTNER/EXECLTTIVE
OFFICERMEMBER ExaUDEO?
(Mandatory In NH)
If yaa, daaolba latdar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS batow

STATTJTE
OTH-
£R

H HCHS20240000534 (3a • NH) 01/01/2024 01/01/2025 EL EACHACODENT 1,000,000

EL DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE 1.000,000

EL DISEASE • POUCY LIMIT 1.000.000

Professional Liability
PHPK207O953 04/01/2024 04/01/2025

Each Prof Indcfent

Aggregate

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS I VEHICLES (ACORD 101. Additional Ramarks Seftadula. may ba attachad If mora apaea la raquifad)

Refer to policy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

State Of NH- Business and Economic Affairs OfTice of Wbrkforce

100 North Main Street

Suite 100

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AU'mORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 26 (2016/03)

01988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES
The Communify Action Partnership forHlllsborough and Rockingham Counties

Helping People. Changing Lives.

MISSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-i^rofit corporation chartered in the Slate of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to serve as the Commuhity Action Partnership for Hillsborough County in compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hillsborough County and served the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
became the Community Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hanqrshire Services, Inc. In July 2011, Rockingham Corninunity Action (RCA), the
Community Action Agency serving Rockin^iam County, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Services. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides services to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties.

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent federal legislation establishing the Community Services
Block Grant define our basic mission. Under these provisions the fimdamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially thajor impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants^ and the elderly poor to:

1. Secure and retain meaningful employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environmdit
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other programs related to the purposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

C. To provide on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related services, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of-starvation and malnutrition among the
poor.

D. To coordinate and ftgtflbligh linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in the
community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT north conway

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services,
inc. and Affiliate (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the combined statements of
financial position as of July 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related combined statements of
activities and changes In net assets, functional expenses and cash flows for the years then
and the related notes to the combined financial statements.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate as of July 31, 2023
and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of the Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to cur audit. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these combined
financial statements In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material mlsstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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.:^-!>2:726i036:

*i.i:i6i990^27i'.

766:763;-
f;385;889:.

v4;855,488: '
'l'5;581i785:'

;'355;^:
/94J.231,5JB.9;
":2,,192,705 •
;i:798.981j
.^l69r46l: •

. .-4 :2.-'458.985 •

:i32i66l;672^
k  yh

^:8upppj^ng'ac^tiM>. < .
*' Ma"r6gerpent .^jgerie^^ ■ ' . JZ078.5^i' , * i;9^7i:6>

♦ .Total expenses: ♦
- ■• 4- ^ • " • 'jk

r-ii::i3.bM85ii ..-.i34.'§3'8.788f

< iCHANGEj'N ,

^I^:^ets;^be^nning'^

NET assets^ HMD OE^YEAR'

,%6i8;87#4
.„M^6&:f69'

•;:$ .•32.te7;984',

'1.615,673-
t. ■ j • .•

_-;28r69l'436>

'i$:r.29i708;i66»
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■SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHfTO SERVfCES. tHCi AMD AFFIUATg'

COMBINEd STATEMENT Of:fUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
■fORTHE YEAR NED JULY 31: 260. '

-•Proflwn 88fvlce» -
>*EcoRomlc and' - - •Nutrttfon/

,  t ChDd^ -JCcmmunl^' ' WorfcfofM. Langua^'aiid^ Houslr^l., ■ and-" '
'OeveloDnwnt ^rvlcee ' Devefooment Enerov Uteracv. andHornelets -.Health'

expenses' .  " V-
— - ^. T^'

'iRay^.'' •'S» 4,687,629; $; •53i:680> 2.009,663. <$ .1,93a.688'> ■ 5 1 '203,503 • ,$;*'T.43i.04i ' $. 857.455.
PavTDfllam.' '  .3<9;470 • •40,180; -  -151;567 148;475.. ■^4,563<> •  ̂ 'ibs.sse- -64.713
Fringe beneflts ^ i:443;S35 i68;342^ •440,413 '503,9891 •;20.634 .-295,713' :210;743'*

'Wofken.cGfnpftnsation lnsurance' * > 82,617 : 5,964 .^3,854' ■d 0,384 '4:371; 2,874 :'21 .*143
i.Onem^rfdyment: .13,237 1,219 <5,689; . .•5i495. .  549 • •2,602;.* 2,398 .
'Retirement beneflts., 342;79r' '^48.717. 153,650 119,927 " .5.780"i> 67,638 • 58^784.

- ConsuRmt and contractual; so,990- -274.726 '300;2'88 1:347.342- 878. i;'l54,'1M> 12.482.
Travel aiid^transpwtatiQn/ 92,430 16;212 >48,501 46,755r '168. . 2,611- :32,e9'i ■
■Confermn ar^ mmdr^ ■ 14,430 •9,636: <- ' 830 •
'Occi^Mncy > 706.'464 .153,012: '508.703 .136,509- ■•30.171; • 190.186 7,1.981
Advertise >134 9,915 18,628 -■ ,25-. • •>75 ,
!Sup(tfes. 303,547 ::22.-767 16,260 130;317 4,592'. 71.748; :283,941.
lEquipm^ rentah'and malnteMnc8> 3,805 911 '!8,6i6 31:905. '•443. •  :589; 27,842:
Insurance 23,033 • 45,7691' :2.-72b 22;872; - . ' x6>^ •4,317'
Tel^hohe> 86,959 •'17,736., :37,S9e 36,512- ;4,561' 45,272, .70.491'
jPos^tge^ , 1.1,402 «- 1.010 36,476 ■•16.742 > 2,468
: Prfri^g and putrOcations. -3,026' 6,272 • ' - " . _• ..

iSubKrIpdons ' . ' ' : V  - I • -696^
'Program support i 'e;oi6- •110,075' . 29,932 -{

'lintemst/ .6,411,' .  . -
-

^  _

< Depredaton . 182,997^ .;2d^64i} . 43.484^ ..8.534''. '1,968,' x6,627. •12:983';
Assistance:td dients' 349,924 ■11,386: "i',737;805 .16;521r194 - 61.990,040: ' ,521.950 .
jOther expense 316,567. .2;l13i 108.073 •2a.625-' . . . 2,503'. ■r2379s
iMisiKltaneous^ , ^i4;7t0 .iib03i 1,183 4:215 ;2S;i 11,879* -2527.
'inj(ind expenses ■ 1,406.827» ... ®  > J"

■ SUBTJ^AL*^ ,l6r474,72r' -i .416.080 ' 5.566,49^
V  -V -

.2ll13;8TO.
'•y ■- ,

:292.2'46!>
' -»

'65.3^:22.1 ■ 2":282;193;
'EibrtirratlonS' (130.671)

•*

'(371681)'. (10.130)' ^  • (58,316) • (74.792)... .(24.TO) .(55:430)\

i TOTi^'EXPE^ES • f$;ia344.0M. •,$'.'S;386.3W'.. ■ S, :5;576.367. ;:$■ 2i:'6s5i66r'' $; . 217.448 ' ■ •$. 65.332.498;. 2:2b6;763.
- i  > •

''
- e'

.;Sm Nofes'tp CmUned FlTMn^;SlitBhynto';



aOtlTHgRW Ngw HAMPSHIRE SERVICg&: tWCrAND AFFIUATg

^COMBINED STATEMENT OF FUNC'hONAL^ENSES (C6ntfnu8(l>
'  ' ̂ FOR THE ENDED jiULyai. M23'

;Proqriim SeMcw

"  iPayr^-.
'Payroll taxes
iFflj^bsinete.' • ,

t •.l^telltets cofnpyaatlon insurance *
'Unemplbym^i. " ' ■ • '
t Retirement^behef^ i
Consult ̂.contractual
' trev^ ̂.tanspmtafion.'.
''Cqiferm .
••6ccupan^* '
Adveftslng

^:Sij^>Un. \ .
.Equipm^ rentals and nwlnteiwtoe'
'/insurance ~
(Teiephem;
. posra^ , ^

Printl^'ark]
/>8ubscr|pti(m-
' Progrw eu^rt
* ihtere^ _
• De^redatton.
Ass&nce ̂dien^
ptfw.expjsnse "
Ml^nimeous;
'ir>4^eq>en$^>

■SU^OTi^

■ Ellrnlnatens':'

TOTAL EXPOSES

• • " VSNHS. -  - ■ Manaoement'
«{S^UI 1 yptinitiMr. 76ta| Progr^' ""^ and." '

. Prbii^- ■Corooratlo'n '•■;S«SHcea',- Owidral -

-•$ 1 • '64,^7' ri, ^78,^* '•$; 702;^ y i;3».23o
'4,773: • SiSM • •'!51.i77- '938,864 : 95,465'.

2;55i> ^.583'- .:211,9M' • • 3.2«.456 ' 178.24i
'306; •  145^ •io;9i'i 142,769;- 4,432

135.' :'233- 1;392-- ■•32,439 ■ , '2,884
MiS: >  •6,920- ••M,84d 863.ni: 130,495.

.1,882:405 . 335 l'37,'435' ;.5.l'61;039i- 2051722.
'  3,690.. 3,9i0'. r49;033: ^296,010. - A,iB93.;

5,972 :M.047: '■'64.61S| 1,074
•12.000.' '689,228 :2.498,254 ■ 59;745.

• 1i047- '  •1.574',. ■h7-.398i. 25
294h 3,641- • 19.953> 856.450: .23,581

:^.835' •:i3* -18;642: •115,595- 5.989
2,244 > «i,7ei2 ;51.158-' r160,43>. ;'i'o;498«
2,750. 3,751 .31:762': 337,390^1 17.762^ •

-
• 685- ■ 71?' •59.481 •11.475

-

*  , •
8.298'

.  - •{1,199: .-1=895;
ii143' ' 69,938: 237;102

,1^ . 45,0724 "61.483 ..

v43,'8M.: 393,885 •7i5.039:'
■:3,5oo.- - 35,401 f81.13i*i06' /-
li;879'. '424- •'12,233^ '..^;79e;. 400'.

• 252*.' .3,328. :i98;6S9^ ^.125;9'81 •66.!
" ■ -• - ' si ,406.827. .

r2.676;786; •1M.279 :2j46,657- I'i'i .450.915"' '2,084.^5.
-(15.617) '(i4;62i). •1466.041)'; -  •'(5.648)-

.$'l2;631.506;- •t Liia.ew" •:S:-:2.728 638-, $.'.1lb.996274'.. S. .2;078.577:'
■ 1  t. *  .

.2023
T^l
13,U3;316^
'l.032.2i59 '
3;4i9.e«r.

=147.201
35,323

994,268'.
5.386,791
' 300.90i3

'■;e5.989'"
2.W7.999
■  *17:423<
• 680.031
•'I2i;584*
T70.93S
:355;i57:
'7.0,956

18,Ma^
.■2.'024>

■237,102'
••51,483'.

_ ,719:153-
.8J;131,200
'  483,196 .

.V26.047
i.406.827.

fi13,53.5,140.'

(4^i89):

•i' 11'3;068.'851

:See Notea to Combb^ Financial: Statements

•7.



■SOUTWERM KgW HAMPSHtRg SERVICE. INC. AW AFniiATE

COMBINEO STATEMENT OF FUNCTK>NAL EXPENSES ■ >
■  - FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUllY'siVgm .:

EXPENSES
'Pa^/

*Frln^bieneflt»^ .
ocMihfjb^^ ihsurancia (

'• 'Retiren^'b^wfits * . 7
'CbhsuRant ^'.ooitractuai/
TTMl

- Coriferencn'.^ metihgs'.
'Occupancy-'

Sup^n.
jEqulpmM rentals and rnairltenaiw'
Insurarm • '" '

^Pbstage /
'Prtnti^'and publications.
Subsorlptio.h^' .'

. Pfpgwn aup^: -
Interest »'
D^redaUon . .
Assistant to^cnents'

-'^OtherexpieriM^
■ Misc^ra^
Irv^cM expert^ ■

SUBTOTi^

'^EnmbiMIoro

TOTAll EXPE^S .

. '".ChOd;^
.be^jobnii^t

•  ; 348,302-
'1.663:^0

''97.375:-
MS,5^;
■52,542.
70.049/

634,228;
*■1,168

2^,441]
•17:789 .
•'19,075-
71,^

. ' 1;628
i,4M

'1^73
.■■,7.eii:
1^,424
238,519 -
3^7.1 i

12,952
■ 9^.197

9,B30,207-

•- ■f1M:s64).

- 9.70^.703>

^'Cdmm'unt^'
.Sscd^:

.$• ♦ 558,-156'
'42;274*
97,0^
'7.QdA\

:5i.651-.
289,778
M4.^
lo.ao

•147:i385-

,2i2W,-
T3,090

•'47,482
17,062
' r
4,588

,126,M5^.

,i9.673*
.23,2^..

•2,816,
• 44.^:.

EMnomte andi
WpfWorce. '

fBastiasDtbl.

:$. :i;W,wi
.149,819
•429,26b
.4,336

-.166,504
309,531
37.^

;554".837
•.i;6eo
i5;592

.•5ri39
^6:082
37.8^
'a!4^

- 44,930
.1/107.003

■  4.642
' r.ose

-Pn^reni Serricw

1:525,612' •^4;888.067
'  ■ i !

•  .M1S9.7231% .• M2.S79).

•i. i',i^.EB9'. •■$' 4,855.488

•iBsm.

.i;547;lb9;'
■il7.947 •
•i42-i;614..

1'1;681':
■.ii4;842;'

i;9»,755'.
42.224 .
5,378.'

.129.718.-
13,322.

105,391.
•'ll244'i

.  .23,078-•
;40,S09j'
2b.78r
•,16,531:

>7W;
.'20,585.

. B,^
ii,03i4re i
' •10;508 •

jl,696

'«,e28,615t'

•<(46;e3oy •

LanguidVr^7
- Ute^ "
S- :238,b67.'

17,294.
- M.i'M

,5,631!!
9.313'

.'liOl?

».K4
"-ioo;»
•i2,ia, .

••10,403

'3;li4 •
■ 248'
645'

.2,906

t .♦

' 150

:'355,646::

HoMlngt
and »ofnel«M

: $"2,616:252:
'  -"153.374:

.^,941
' 4:37'5 .
;'S9,ei9

• 927,682.
' 1.92'8.
•i.bie:
52.641

•:6b-'
■ei.see-
■ 18,919',

■ 2,463"
24i75f

. 25:363'

90.504:018
' ■••3',203
" 2:088 ,

I rf 1 « .

^,243;iM9;>
- (10.666).

Nxrtiitlbni
'  'fa nd V *

Health

iSi 884:686'
65.249:

;'24l.067
: 24,217
-64,339:
10,004-
15,-486':
, r825;
56,192!
*  150

•254,b28u
10.377
4,7.17'

.79,510:
3,753-

'4,617

M3;778'
•486,684.

•4;744
"1,822

2;2p6;243

.'(13:S38)i

:$ :15.S81;78S- 1 . 355:546 » $: b4i32.S89'. $, 2:192:705

'Sm No<es,t6:Cmbined nnanctafi^tementa:
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SOUTHgRti MEW HAMPS^ SgRVICEa. I^/aMD AmUAfE :

^COtiiratNED StATEMEia OF FUNCTIONAL Senses (CbnfihuMi)
"FO«>THEYEAR^bEDJULV8i;M22

EWN^I
. Pa^" \
Pai^tutea-

•' Fr^e benetto
' • qbmpOTsatiy Inaurance-'

• Retiiren*irt banefits--,' ^ •
anb mtracfuah

'tn^i and transportatibn''
Cbnfemnoes'a^'mMti^

^pcci^w^' -
"Adveh^lng .
' Siq9p(iM\
Shipment rentals'and rfwfritenance-
Iraunmce. ' " ' . . . - .
tdephone •

I' Postage.-■■
'Fainting and pubBcatlons
' Sybicrlpa^..' -
.Progim aupi^,»
♦;lntb^'''l
• DepreclBtibri- ^
' Assistant to etiefrts
.pttter'expensa.
• Mbcetehw^"
ilrMi^dex^ri^ I

^SUBTpTiW.'

'EBmlnatiora-'

-.TOTAL^EXPE^ESi.

Support:.
_ ^Prooram Sarricae l jSehrtCM.-. .

.  . - ^ -.SNHf-
'  '

^ManaoaiiMfd:'' • # • ^

t '^Votuirteaf' 'MaMgamant > Total prbgraih' •  .^andV^ 2022f
Piroficta- •Cdroofatlbn-. GanartI' 'total.

ty . 76.027» $  :68;266- ■'i- >686,957- $ .12:693:156' V$'B .1,2S8.82'3' 1$: -ia.'gsiigtS*
B',y34 ■ >;777* 5i;2re. ' ,955.648V ''91'.302' • ■1,046,948'

' Mis* '17;932 .124.330' * 3230.574-' A72,QS2- 3;402,G26
•v631 •,146: ■12.783; ■ 1682% : 4,984;. 'M73.213''

.  5.B51' •5i739- 5'r;873. 875273- 123,462: ^ 998,675 •
r1.576.097 2.790: .154.643 - 5,248;83r ■ .1817115 .5,427.952.

■  .2.5i35 r1i347' • 43;e39 ":229.969- ' .6,137 ■  236,106
'i;e87-. y '38.679 > 58.425- 2;278' ' oe.toV'

.20,274.- -V. 853,118 • 2.277i997. 44,863 2.322.880,
500- .1.641- '18.636-- .-338: Vi8.974

■9,264. 3;699- 22.434; .797224' 44,635' 841.659.
'5,673 ■ . .21; 10,928 « 94.583'; ••1,052. ' . 99.635 .
3.706- •1.782- ■46;02g< 155,174-: i'6:931 •i72.f05'
:2.776' 3,137- .24,285,. :364,959^ .14;673.' * 319.632

7, 752 ■*•766 63,721 '75.637:^1
•• ■- '1,477 '24,729■ 24.729

.966. . 885. t -•2269' 1;629 - v3298*
•3.'33e.. -■ '73,105 ■223:681 ■ *1. I223.081:-

•47,746 55;557* c • 55.557 - '
• 48,288 • 395,803; . '1667.333-

■
.'67.1.^7

.24.779.. 103,457.678. - ♦  '.103,•457:079
•• • p , V 7,175. ^  .379,369- . vi;539; - 380.898 •

120 213 >131,370^ .,209: ;i31.579:.
-- r992197' - ; 692;i97

.■1,^.317-
''k • ^

*109;401; .:2,6i33.7i3'- MM;102.970' ',1,981,420.
. . . 1 '

1 .-i 3'5,oa4;396
. T(3.336). '^4.728)'. .(441.898) -  . ::(3.764): (^s!602) •

■'$ -1,798,981 '$ - • 169.401. • 'S--'2.-4^.985:- sialwi-oTi. $  1.977.718 3- 134.638.788

fMn to Combihad Financial s

.9..



^COMBINED STATEMENTS Of CASH FLOWS
F(W<tHE YTEARS^pgp July: si : 20a and Ma: i

2on\

Change!in;mt a^Mts. ~
^AdjustrriMts'tp .^nge h r^'nsets to'*

-peprw^ph \.'*~''f*'y.
''Gain pn[dis'po^l,^ prc^i^j
^UnreaiSiM tejsn'invE^^
Fbi^fyen^i^dettV

.'Losson^wn^^n. - _-
O^vease
"^•Grahte riaceh/abla • ' '
\ Acppuntsreceh/^le'

.,>Prepaid'e5^rwwV
:incr8a^(decir)B^\^ «

k'Accmui^ P^bto

•GJ^er'llabillUea^

/Tef^ia^Hty d^o^tsl...

i NCT.C^H'mo\^§0^ ^Cjivii^ES; •
v:'-;- ;. •• V,- -v ---
•;c:^fLpJASfROM ACTiymE%:
' ipUrdtaiw.'i^proij^;^
'Prpcp^i dli^ ^ ...^ . • .,

it 'P^iptmej^ jnve^tm^ ^d
•i» . • - « t * - •

NEf;C/iH
.  a -r r v» - V - ^ '

^C^H>LpWS/RpMJI^^
^■^iRepayrrwnioflbi^tann'd^

•  >*"-. . - - -
I  US|D;tN

(NETJNCREASSilpiCFliA^ AnP RE^C^^P.CASH
andJrestiu^^

'iASH^ORE^CTibr^H*'^^ Of YE^ ■
^UF^EMCNTi^bm^^ CMHFUm
''.i^sh paid duflhg'Aftyear'fe " ." - • •

• 'SU^PlittENti^'DtSCLOSURES NONCMH ^INAHCiNGj'AOnVlfmS; '^'
*:,Buad^J^R}yem^^ hi ^^cuniently^.^^apoou *

* ci^'^b'^tiucTCopA^ '

^ ^RMtrteM'ash - •
• i A " • ^ *t ' '' ^ • ' f

. To^^w^'diid.nutrictedic^ •

'§:r2;919.87S't
.a

.I^i495.-109):
- TO:13d"
:(440.obd)< '. V ~-^'"

<19^9^5
:(i25,1B8)'
..(i82;7n).:

*  ̂

. 49^.208' ^
,^.4f9
•':14:M1'»

.- -12,9M''
,;:(2;,1811022')^

'(1^750):
V- ■->

«  *

•l(2i-144,90ir!
^•7(39;171- •

> -'iiasagiz)':

;$' .i:(ii5.673'

^ U67.1i447.'
"'(^S45)'\

.i',idi;8i»'
•  ;(9dd;000)':
' 70;Q44;

/(1.007-324):
- *(171';292) :

7.4«2
« , "". ~

• 299.328] •
- <^,824
.''(17,372):.
• •1(21,028) ■
2;966;602 '

•-6;62g

_L:4A72U50.

-(1.058';436):
■•'4s;428;

» (
(402.006) •

.J-(l:688;942): A tir^lSiOU)' f

. — 'i72,^i: .—(esiTfe)'

^  ■:^:622j:
1 (i;670;664)\

vcMSs:-
.'2.988:37.1.

'•8.96S;216'11:953:589.

-;'5ir483:^'. 's^'^-^ssissf c

>$; _ ^567.478:.
;  ', c : '6 ~ ' 'r ^

$' l6iB2,7iEi5.> ^•$'^.fi;4i:,f23^^'- ' '^^iTTdv .■--*.51:1':^^
:£i£8835&. ^£sij2S3ii§9.

LSM.Notealto Combined Rnandal Stateniehta-'
4

•1.0;



I' NOTES fbcVuBlNEOin
. FORlTHE YEARS ENDED" jUliy 31; :2023?Aliib 2022'

NpTEl;, ORGANIZATION'AND SUMMARY OKSIGNIFICANTACCOONTINGPOlilCIESv

'GeiidraL
H .

^piroyided; 'iWou'gh;: 'Soj^e^ .Ham|>shire-| IServic&r; ilnc.'^ arjd; "^SNHS
.Ma^agemefitfe^^ ^ ^ „ — v ■ ,

Basltf bf:Accoiintinq>.. . ,
»  li»|l 'ul-* i • V . T

iji the nlted iStafe^

V - *-

Basts of Pifeseritation . ̂  .. . - : r . .r

^.^e:fe'are'-d"^rTrim^d;by:^ejp.reWncb
. I-, _... ^

Bdardibf Directors:!

1 :cl6nidr xestrictidns are/^ip^'alj irii7(atiu has'/stipylat^ i

ID'onoX r^'Wc^^Contnbutions^'a^
■ wi^';dph6r' ri^s^du^s.; .V\/hen.>!d ' ' tri^va^ets;-' ;are-,

^  as^ts wifeli-'<Jpnor; jeW^
dbhorreStiictidrts^ih tlie^i^e^ ' ' i

'  . *

'11;-



fNO^Sjb COMBINED Fi^N6lAL\SfAt.EME^^
ilFbRTrtEYgVRS'ENbEDJULYil^

i  ̂

yS^vOf\julyy31^ ̂023/and/2tor,"^e'
>^lri^6nsVi

•_ V. -."■ "
GoniBlhedFihaRclalLSteteTO v. . v" ^•'

TAIirsignrficaht Intercompany'IteiTisantf ;tran^blohs;

Hampshlre3Sen/icesY>lnc:.''c6ntfolS'm^^

Sp.ulhyn1;,N(iWiRat?psfiii^:'^§i,^^
'#«AvVM'ir*A>k>l' lk*V AnnMr«^A-^AWp#l0' A^'^tt«f^p\nB''np«pl''A<a>«Ki* fi loc t4e n«A/n>.frt'fVi41

statements.)

Eatfmit^ . . . -m.
^  -- -*_-, r W?,-*.*, ■ V2, .r-r— -. •.»•■> <c2.LlZiL-- ' *»«t" /■ .' - v '^i;..:.
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f^^WbfESiTOpOMBINED
' iFdgj^Ejfe^kSEN

'Accoijfitg^and Graiite^Receivableyapie*^
All ;McTOuri^';and; a n^iV^le at;,tH"e:" amdunt '.rnariaqemer^^^^^

'r0Cwded."'brtjferacci^r.,basliN'Of'abc6unting^

(l6t • t^lidVe'tan:- allbwark^ie ^uncblte^'Bia <accdU^ r^iv^ieris^nece^^
auli^^^202ai;^nd^ -' " *-' ' ' " ■ "• - -- * -* - - -

SupportandiRevenueiRecoariltibrt

ICdntdct^-Wiih Custdme^- '. . .

Clients.!

bpngation:

pr^d.6\additipnat/Se to #ie'cliedt
■ .9

perf6itTi^GerVbngatibhs/that>at^yuns^sfi^.Lbr.;pa^^

reviev^-ahd audits.
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the^
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i iFORTHEYEARS;ENDEd

4

Jnc^'me taxes'-
;Sbutheirh:'N^,:Hamp.^hi're/Seiyi
^are'^exb'mpt f-^erpii'jh^mfeli^xe uh3eV$^;ctipK^ (cj'($J;.^iihfeMj^^ t
pevenuiB:\G'^bJbndSare'not'piw^^^^^
income ̂  ̂6h\theire^^ j - ■

^The>0^anizati6hialf6ra^JtsiexpOT^^5op
prt^rarn's: and * sup^HjsVryr^j:;^^ ^ ide)iti&$ ;speci^

day^bfalst^^^^ haVe^b^as^

l^afipgempn^^^^ Includ^i^all i.^ities're^
Interhallmanag^ ^ -

New AccoufrtihQ Pronbuncefhent:

2023;dMe'to 'Ijnijt^j^ tfaylhg a ̂rnivgre ate^^ thaii.;i ? rnpqths^

NOTE 2? RESTKlbTEO'cASH!'
•-»- ♦ —'iJ J -J.

^  , '. ■ ^ ' . .. _ ,'l .*1 .. . . ^ ....
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I FOR iT1HE>YEARS ENDEDXiDlY 31' 2623jAND 2022 1

at ̂Ir Value-'

Tptalirnutual:,^,^^
'^atfaif.vajue*

L:evel 1 ' ILevel 2' < LeWl 3 ' . fotar

•4 t ■

t20^>

[Lever ̂ • LeVei'2* i "^'Level 3:' tbtel

:$/9.698;a3B:.:S

NOjei;
i — ' •

Mggapil:
TWiiOrganlMtipri's (investnienfe^are jpre^
aggi^afe'iffeirvalOfe.ahd/conSisied oMfe'foH^ ' ̂ '

1,

t2023.

Market*
iValiie'V

.2022

Coaf.

Mutuat;^und8>

' Market> '
Vaiyi/ 'Cost

:'-S:9,24if675' t

The/'O^anlzatioh Mha'di^'uijireaiized, lossesvon • 'irtV^knenjfe/Jdf ^
jBi:i!bl^886,^'aLJ'ul^^^^

^T|ier a^yltifeS) 'of- -'thf ̂Ofgarjl^tipn's >invesbtieht' 'a^Mrtt tafe^ :W!TfrnariMd\a^'.

20^ t!2^i
• 1% 1*1 \

$
•. ..0:7

;. 9;696.83^ ':$-10j;39§;716 -
>'v/:V-v

lij' sr.^L." VH». - --■

^Onr&lized: loss^ " ^
•- r ■ - -.

Fair.y^de,fren3'^^

^  ̂ ••402;op6'
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-18<



''NOTiS ToVoMBrNEOifjlNAA^^
-_F6R^E-yEARS'Ei<DEDJuLY

^ RP^tE.Slt LIQUIPrfY ANeAVAItJftBltfTy'

iTIhe;Oi5anizatioh!^financiai;a^'^\shraftabte.ft3V:e)^endifa
1irtiitih0;t^^ o6e 'j^aVbfW;.statemer^Cc^^ ̂nahaal;

^psjtjon.batb cjimpnie'lhiafp^^^^^ " " * ' ' "

:202Z\ 2022

InV^^en^i..
Grarits^recei^^
Ac^lLrits-receiyable^

" Tcterfibani^ai ass^;,aVajtable;wit^^^ bn^y^r, ̂ .$26:20^06:' '$26.547:324 '

'Wpnejof^^e;f[handai;asi5iBfe.ar&,subj^^
-tv

Prgahiz^bn^to have/dbnpr fbstridjpnC
•■> r*C ' • ■• ' ^

jfie/vOrgariizatiop? mariagbsMte I li^tiipi^;.'bV-deyeippiba ^and|;';adpptrri|jL •
■ppeibUHgibud'^S that pibvide-auffiderit'njnds forg

/its?liabilities:and.:ptherPbligPti6ha'ai^^M

k* ^

NbTEtf: LONgltRM'DEet^

Tlie:lp^;te(rhv<ie'5t;atyujy 3i ;4d^
'■2te3'^ ;2622'

^SNHgtilnc> - --

^022; ■ ^ g 162(635^ v?* ^3^389 '
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CESlf^CiAkD^A^ILIATE-

>  SfAl^ENTS
> Fdk THE YEAi^S-EWDED JU 31^2023 ANb:^:^?:

^SNHS-ManaaertitentCofebra^
y  V <» ^

r2623 '2022:'

'payment>OTy$it?27S ̂ ^d,ue,.drt^
]lnterKt/"» - atj -SN^Sv 'l;irrc;'> :cuqpn_ll^'.
niieg6tiating:;\^''fhe'e^'bf-Marifch^e^^ ....
Ioi0&^r - - V-- lii^:.. '.i^^5'.

*... •*•■

^3.50fe; ^ . •1741800. ' ,18i;;569..
.'.» ."Tf

^M6i^9a§e;,wil|Lbe, fpi5iy,eh" only #
'hbtisirtgv^^^^

A'AhOA^ anhiial1l«y-'(f.ira)ti ifrAmAnte a^A^'n/^f mbf.'TVilc.

racbdhi^.'(ntajncomd
.\: 'A

»:2diQpp.

:r^Uiren:^nt8 iara.inot.'^ ^iS;pamer.'t^.
*^unng;'lH^^ :year^end^^J'^^^ 202'3Nyn^'
^oftgage fp^iyenllfr ^ ^-  r^ v. . . .j ^ i25p;0pp;

Jyi6rtgap?.p$yab ibank^^a^i'by'f^l^ ^tata' •
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Jrt&me^bouairtgjfor?4p"-yea
-^^L^-barfierCvras'.m
^2W3:}^and!\fe'mo2^ag^^ andi < ,
rec^rtjzldilnio ih^ - - - _ A7.0;p0&'
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FQRiTHEaYEARS;ENDEDJULY-31.2023.AND2022^

JM6i^age;v^ya6^ td'i • '^ai^bfisl ._ajia:""Sqn^ ■

at'5'50%^
>

ViL:;. li V . A.

2022 1

:??5;423. ^:32f593

|i^ere?|ftr9yih-2d3^ ;28.9,;789' ;:398;'6.98

^dipiuS:3uei^roi/gh'2^^^

^Q?tgag1i^ .pai^abfe. i ^Hyrrfpsjii^- • iHibusinJ^
:,se6ored' bytreaTe^fe iE^arteld;i;N A Withf

•3W;925: ' ; 392^25;

sQrp!ubdu^ftroug^K^2p32?j'p^

L'b^l cuiTent^brtiorijdue.wiWin one y0ar>

^Vea^Eriblhg;)
IJuh^3V ̂

..'2024:r

»'2025"
.,2026;'
■; 20275,

-2p28;_
TTiereaft^

fbfel)

■ —ISOibObi:
^ j^;^;827 -

^Aniount:.

-  ':;8Cfl49^; .
• ■&4:8£l^'
v:8'9;5^;'
.!94;^^>

1:^9:^K
•-■ •• n .

>- ■ l5o?b6o'

-,-..agl656"
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Sd'UTHERN

^ NdjES to COMBINED
' /FQR>tftE-YEARSlNDED J^

^ NbtE 7^ DP¥MJ\Hh LfeA^gi
. 4.» I  - ;. s» •-

J^fe'vQ'^anlzatibn
(easexpayments

j

'the> sdhedufe of- future •••rhinirnum.ilease • payments^, at iJiily: *^3^1 v ̂iOZS^'foo "tHe-'
operating ij^ses;is as rollows: . - ~ ♦ •

/^teafi Ending;;
:JulVf3i ' ' ',Afn6uftt^

>2025. :Ji2ij524.-
C2024' n$;. 78/161'.

VSStaii
«• • • • .

*■

NqfE^^ i^ACCRUEDOdM^^^^^
f  ' ». •V -

forfeited

iipTE ?;' iRETIREMEhrr^BENEm^
't^i6 Oraah E^^^

• . /V - w- . . w

NQTEjiO; iFORdlVENESSOFDEBt-^
CTT

.dunngii^e'^^/;^0h^di^Vjuly';3l','20^

inousing iiprta 'lengui ̂ inai o9iisTiea^uiv»y*i^'|d luij qodi; lorgivvnobo '«Tun< 'Mi9*wiiy -.yi
fNasKua/tdrgiven&S'-of-debtjnbometotale^^
'3t^2p2:j.6n'th^a^riip^ahyihg.'^rTi^^ - '. •
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I i NOT^S TO'GOMBINED, FIN^

r  •

Dur:lhg;ith^^ye:ar;;ertided -Jjj!i^^31i;2022;^^^
,jdebt;mfenfi€>fjntcbWnVct!o'ri'.with/a:ihrjbf^
,Teal.;estete'1,6cat^^bn>Vir^^^ Tn 5«|ashua;'.NeW*; Hampshire/irernain©^ tas.'^pw^
j'n<»rile"h0MSin^fpt-3O^yeafe^hl6hy.satisfi^^.^
'tt\ea'p,i!V^bf''Nasriua^rForgiv6nessj6fide^;ihcom^-''j^
phded'Uuly-i31 ;'^022''6h ttibrbc^mpanSrihg^mbJne^^^ "' *

iNQTglli RISKS!AND?UWGERTAINTIES

Cotton Mill ;Squdfa
JhV2015;-SNIHS;ManagementV(5Dipora<ibn enteredvintq'a?cof^ract as p^
JGompiuhi^v iDaveippment llnveto.eht^tax-^G.r^rt^
A DevelbpnYent Finanbe':Authbrify (CDFA) .andrWa^: ̂araedi'.$1,00b;0pp/tb; •
JfCihdIhgt te?'4hb;,deyelbprberit, and •adapti'^e'fiiBusP^of
rriillAinvidoWntowp i:Nbshua;' Ndw.MHampbHrrfe^jUhdeh'Xhisjpf^
(Gdttdn-;MilljSquare)icreated :ip9;;unitstqf.'hpusing^^
iD^'thbse'0niti;fo;fj6witS-n]dde ^ -

.5.%^ea6h;^ar:rf;tbe;Pj^ject;maintains;theri^uirod)^fn
:in'cbm4''h^seh6^^^ ''

•fall lout otcdmpljance>-

jfp\t)ct6ber:.'pf''2dl7^^ '^eUubrpdpient ag"reefpehby^th\G<^ ,
I 4Wm vAMMl imI ttOjL rtfAM f!>i 'TWie- 'fiF4i<i>l AfFA'^^IX/Alu .

the;Jhd'^df ithetagf^mPnKas-ilbng: as^thej^fclp^^
■6nginarteiTns;6f:the^agre^ 'pot :(^ange>:tHe; t»ntingent
JecelyabJP/priiabirrty.yi^

. • I. " ,. ^/

' I MOTE .121 IN-KINDiCONTRIBUTIONS/SERVlCES
• ' ' - v-» - . - -• - - . •

• ^ ^ JW , * • ^ »y. V», J -4' «
ih^cipd,. (^pWbutions.-pc^rdin^^
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. 'NdTESTO COliliaNED FlMANC'lAbifAi^
<!roRtHEY^RSii^bEb'JULY3

as'followsi.-

:2623' .26^'.
I'Vbl^teiirihouris' r - •

rHeadiStart- " -? • " - - '

■NOTE-# REGiiASSiRCAtlONS
ja s- --- :■ s., ■ — i. -.i-

cu^ntyfeangre

Mani^6mehtiH_^^:;m.^b6;^3n';^yajua^^

%QU(d?fej5u1^;;re^hitlpnTp|'4is^^
'o^tfiesecombln^.ifinanclal^^ '

;U'-
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89.901^ ^

I 29;620T
^'24.8531
• 12i486;..
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■  ,c".-y •
^ .74:425

•3b;929'-
^fe424i
•;vi;912^
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•:5^87tfJ

'^jrash-rerrwvai
'' Sn.owVemoval
• El^^r tepaim-ahd'COnUB
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•^16.956; >
','^079' 1
•  -543:>
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•  ;5.789'
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t33;772^
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■^59:32X4
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^' Reareata^J^e^
^rpayfoji t^s". -
' t.Retirefhent'B^fl^-
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^2.436; ^
•1:648j

-l1'Te29-
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■""ReritBl^opkf^o^''
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♦209,138'•
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.^■683.
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'985 •

*jp •
.—'2ld.90V' ^ <l96l8'84:j
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'^mini^'tive

■iMalntenari&»,
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M. ^ « •» — ♦ -
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. •^ER'DI^P^ -
•  ■ Net repelpts from'^n^eironvas^

-'.« •»■ I _< .«..,-r*.-.. .?--» - .f,-

jjte

•=». . ' .V-- >

♦:

♦ CASH,;BEGtNiiilNG OF:;YE^
* it- - ''

^Ci^8H;|NbpFYi^

Mile

J:89,.155ii 'J4,688.
'W-SM'- ••;6(J;93t

'  •■;66;276:5
-r. /4'1;273 ' .--.^ 39.512-

.-,:29b:274;' _:'23t.4og-

v/79>:

<225i

. - - ^■-}- ,

•(15;895)^
'"■17.;

i Y/17:275V <
■

i.

- * ——I.

. •. • ^

(.T;389):« t'2.018'
>  ->'• *

:.2d.6i7; .' - 1.7,9991
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, XB^ MTtlETTE MANQR.. ^
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8CK^l^S:0F REStiR(CtED <^H RESERVES AND ESCROWS!
' f! FOR TWEYEARS'i'EWP^ J'UL^^ '

DESCRIPTION OF FUND:

J,:Oeik>slte.-, ffWltHdrlilratsJ

^aitce* . ̂
Ei^iof'iB^inhlng^^'Fundii^ <^

IffiC' 'Rroeiy^'^ * lEarrogj! ■'iBapendrfurTO' iVeaft
.r».

For th^YMfEnd^.July 3ir:gO»
•  - ' * J>

•^O^eratingireseiy^' 'i.S' f^OjQS^' 1$^*

''Ri^^cerrmj^t

.6,656)
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«;T0TAL".RE8TRICTE0 CASH
V,

i' :2o: J '$:
\

£>«-

.'(7^71):' r^i
•

.ypi ecoV,

1

—:i33'.?68y.i -
««ip -w

»

-=?ri6ia7f.;s

*!F6rW6^e^^ i
,reserve:-

•

•$■ '70,015; • -^ ■ j:

— — - — V "

•

■36^ ■$:'

-  *5^ 4^ • »

5- '70.P51..

-V 4-'

iicilr^s:' ^ <.15,666.1. - - ;53- .

V .1^6^96- S: -
&  •

.VS:!iifl2;i9V. J
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;.^sH^URwiwobp^'' «
.>7FQRMgRLy?:&NHS DEERFlELD ELJ)ERLY HQUStNG>UMnpD PAlWJfeftSHfPl! >
' • ̂  ' • ''"I'fPRPJEgTHOrH/tf^PMWiig^ ^

HSTATEM^&OF ̂MANCIAL-^fnONI
-/ -.^LY^ 2023 AND;2^ ' ' *

^ismk
2023^ 2022; I

^eURRB^ASSferSi : \ . r
'leash/ ■ 'X- '.??,29.5^
• Prep^expOT^^ - '9.378'^

totalftUrr^assets'.' '■'61,^7- , *•  ■"•■*. —w

iRESTWCted^wh: ^
' Insurant Wciw' ♦ a

A  t ' ; *213.685 207'.873l
tOpe^njg^^es^^ 69.541i ^ JL - 68.(W''

\t ' '' ^ -^'265,097 ■ ■

PROPERTy. ' .V ,r^ -
■  fLand ^ - - - ;2t1i000;^ , 211,000.;

> BuildihisWlimprp^^ 931700: _/»932,700;
^  ̂ — - " . . • —^ .' > 10 «-

\X^i pfppi^ * ti3't^i7Wo
.'^safeumulat^ fi^ .f: jr :.

rgfniiR'/i^Ets- . •: -'"-Ten^'security (le^ yjISSr ^—- -^'16,26T.
jowA^ETs:. ^ v.i v.- .r.r^-, *'sLi^BS8Q; • ^g'•;i.'4^;5a|'

CUftRENTjUAkiitiMSl . , , , ;. r.-.
'I^Cufrent portion of mprtflage npte*payable^^ - ';20y275 *^ : $'»t" ISiSOS'.t

■"■ Accoijrrt^^^^ v . _ . . . ' ;?7j11^ <29,355 .
v/JccKiediOxbCTses .'823,;

-■' 'If'''' y ~ ■ • I *^1>fSQCDeferred revw.ue ^ y:

it^l diir^j^ j ,r ^'CTi7Bi '
■ LONGlTErW UABto .. -.\
"■^ejo^^ye : , . .:73.-Z32\

iT^nf ' ' ' "- -'16,159- ----- 16,261\
Total'Ipn^g le.rmJiatjIIitiM;- ^j3j&,' £ "033i83ffv

•t&n^iiltSsO '^,ll5.
, • NCT AMETS WnBoUTiTO . .: ^2^. , T--4514241*  . .-.I- s - -1 I fc<. ■ . y*a •- •• » —

Tic^Ai: uABiiin^:^^ f ^ : j^idsaiSa'
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aHERBURNEWQQPS.-

V/PRfUFCT WQ. H ik»:02^5i:

-  .. ' ' OTAilMEMfS:^
< FOR Tlfe YEARS ENDEb JULYr3l72023'AMD2022'

jInc&me;./,
V'Rej^l'in^e;
ilnter^Tlnd:^ ~ _
' InleresI Incc^^tHc^

''.t- *
■Jotel ^

;OPERATINGfXPERSE$;>
'*^;AdrnlrU^Uve.'"- *'**

cUtilifiestA*':-' i
*  iMalht^ance)-

tGen^'^

Totdj:^rating expeni^t
, ^ . " "tt ■■"'•.""■• •«' • --r-
llffTER^T OTENSE; *

A. \jL . - . , ^
IINCQMCBEFQ^ »

-  4 ^ .

fDepMatipn'
_ X - ---

;CiHAMGE;iN
- - ^ "S. . r . ^ '

' nW^SEti ̂ WNNrNOd^'Y^,
'  ' r- .* •■* -

' NET ASS^J ENP^F V^i' i

:2(tt3-

• r260.-356,'^ $.1 •.267.614>
■ m
• .435 ■

'/2ilC969r

<«

52:690^ f;45',i2i
: 37.5^0: 35^4701

■'.92^8,14: 4 '76;i35,.
^ :m:206* . - .•32;936 '

.,22V.22o1: .189!^>
'•21.669': . • v2i'2&4"^

- » • s.-

.i28.19l' • '.6d;622'^
'  , ♦

— ;:24.855; ._ _ *^580:*
i a- • J

ii338;( 36;442>
m  «c. '

-  .'459;424' ' ■-  ■

iv -^482:762:; li't



TFQRMERfcYi NifmPA'RtWERSl^iPV>

-.fPRQJECT.NO. HAP PBA^M;m-OSt > -

SCHEDUll&MRi^^-bpE^
rofel^'YEARS;ENProJUtiYSl':^262^

«'Manag^^ntf^^
Said^S;^d Wag^V

'frinTObeneffe .
I liegalJ ^
VTel^hprieT .^—

^tdMl.admtnlstratiwrex^s t

'■iEle^dtyi)
''Fuel"': ■ .

' OtKefi^llt^exper^'^
■c c

■;MAr^^
^ . Ti^ahjrefiftwaj

' ■iSnow^rempyal^- ^
^Cu.atodlar.aupplldsj •

' Repalrejjmafenafe"

. irrfEj^st;

bEPRiCiAtiQN
■  - e^. •: - .
:.6ENER^:E3m

*' !;R^I-e^teJax^^
^'Pay^o.ii:yxes^.
»' Rkirenianlber^^ ,
•yi/bfki^'anis pOTip^s'atidr^ •'

•: Insurance/ " ' '
''■^i ■. .
' Totel gen^l:e)^n^''

*♦ ••

vTOT/^'RWAL dPERATlONSEXPB^
j

t' .-Mo. 'if
\i8i,obbi

-  -24;.i'ep:

42"^: ,
-■ 9!'1'12 - . '

>■

' ^52.690:

V-t- -'-
•'19.092]
^12r38'1•l
■ '?i637-;

: ansTor

'2i757; •
if370;

. V

'50,"691..

. _li 92:814

21-.ppp:

:■ -^•'
•18:000.'

s'iii

Z47,6
b'sge

<'2;i8d/
^.8;292'

4S*- . - ^•. J *

'2p.'t171:
*9,093:
f664*

-.iv142'

35:470:

3;007-
I27;)i8& -
r '-398.''
'3i:'5.i'2

J'14:035 V

I7&/135

-  '■.22.284.;

•28,"§17'

V1-.349-
,•3^157:*7^234' ^

:25,449.t
^fl,041»

'50"
■•701'

1 5:695

'38,206' j32;938'

 — yy-r* :t
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^ r '.^'SHERBURHEYftOPS'.yg . •- „r-. .
fHIHMERtY: SWHS DEERF1ELD ElflERLY HOUStWG LtMITED PARTNERSHIP!

^ (PRWECrmHflPPBAWHIZWu^ ^

>^yRCEyOTr^No«r
. trr^ ~

' jerant pdfci rent >
tO^^^Bubsklv".
^ it^'m^req^ts. .

■^ gr. -r . .

•Intend rnco^'-
* «Siivin'|)fioqrne
•C^rfnooirer'

** rtdtai (OTtai ppereti^ reqy^'<
t'KPENSES;. ^

Admintsi^l^)

* iMalnten'anw'
;^neral

' toklrehkiiopm'dbnsidi^^
.A ^ ^ ,5.

• CASH PROVIDED BY REMTACOPERATlOflS.BEIfORE^
V .iMyiORTOATtON OFjMbRtOAOE^^

' AMbfnrizATioRotMc^oAG

lOp^DiMUMQunar^
:^^:as^.addit|^ current,yw

* 'W^ payiHanttr,^^ * • *
* ,Ni^^de^}ts TOm resc^
* Trans^tenaiit'sew deprai^ •

INCT (DE V

! C^^'BE^INNING My^'
^  ̂ ^ t A

.C^H.'eNP.... . .^ ^ ^ .

3^'

"Tl 'il37.382',
- .141-927.;

*279;309:f ^

<';6;ii6''
:l5id'>

j  — \:440'
.N2S8^;7^;

,'47d^
>2.435 ^

1.441:

•  '28i^.

;39i2«''
r45i^02-«
. 33:401'

'2t.db9*'
^33.759^

•- - •22;284»i

- ^'Se.dei. - A iidVan' .

]2.i^
V r .

•ji'Sdi;
• j— >

^lS;'909V _ -(17.633)- ■

•  »'I5J5;76P

■ (25,500)'
Kio.'W6)\

♦(4i8d7)\
/p(.id;504y.'
((26:827)
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.;B9.2"9^ 'jMitflS; •
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J: SHgRBURNE WOODS

^PROJECT NOjiy PBAflQI^^OSr

^FOR^mE Y^jS ENDED JUL^^^^ '
•i' " - . »...

^  • iPepQg^ g- -. -.Withdrawals.-

bE^ftpfiON'OF-FUND-h
. Ba^de/ . ^ vpalan^'

• jf^V R^'erws! » lEam^: rixpendmires-' 'yeit .JRestricted'Accounts;'

-. .-.! . -r

'For ttflvYMr jnd^ liu^^ .
•  - - ^ '* . ^ ^ ^
. Oj^raUi^'rese^ *$^' ,68,649 ■ $'- «; $■ ' 'i.4'9^^ ' t c$' '69,^|lt

*  " ^. r. » » -.. ^ » _. ' .
r;lnsuranc8 esOTw'* 2.761 .'5,483: ' t\i01r* '(7,395)* '^950,'-  . :

CTfises^- •'6'414'' ;g5,876S '^74' ;'(5!0.7^)>1 .6;728'
. ^•2S7v87j' .■ .27,OM; -r ^413.2; . ^-(2^^)' -

rtpf4>l8lTObl5bt>«^^ ^ ...j .
^^SERV^;AND,E^B^G^^^ : :!t^^285.6g7. ■ '. f. :S8^g: :--fSg.SS.y :;t-'2B9iS114!

•f

■C' :

F'or the-^ar Eh^'''^utv jtl i!2022!
• ^pp^tingi^eive;' <167^5.*>6' ' : .1- '^104J.''.$!' |i ►J';68[049.■
Jrtsulihbe vf,^' :"6,230'j v5 . *(6^^0)7 .2;j6lV
'■faxescrow \Q\7Q7..^ •26,820» >25^ '6,'414'

' • " ,>f • ^ ^ » *• • • NP

' ;R^/£^niehf(^^ .^60,572 - ?27i066' - 301', ^ -207;873:

^RE6^yE$[AND:E^^^^ ly-258.270' ^ ̂ ^^^a2>BffV. _is<. -Ms:oy.
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r ••>-. « ■ r*.

Net IriMmO' >
• " * L* -•»"*.

^ >.b6predaMrt>

.I-,

^f. 71 ■ . . . .■■ • - •Mntere^lricoffie frp^resen/e amunts"
'R^uTred/pfihc^ paymOT^:^ ^ ^

vvr'it-'.'. " v'l -*

S-, K T ,>
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;2222!
j — •
^2022:
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«^(^cl66y. - , ^>(i^:bo6)^:
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' " "feR'TH^Y^RS iwDED jiiLY St: 2D23 "

V12/3i/2Q06-
* t2/3V/^7. •
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Ji-^t^pj;ii
■i^;i«6:ii
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.-y^1/!2020;'
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•  ■, -V • ^

.S- -
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it ^113^850'
»  »"v .■ «>^
'113;850'^
jflsTsM]'
i13.8OT; ,
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iiSiSSO't
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••n^esb^^
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.1^13i^-i
113;;8^
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V
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r-*

<'"■
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X-.
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^34%5^(5,

V^.256'
'<^3:100:'
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1;(fe4.'65P;
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' yyTHBWi yw 8EBVK^^;^ AmUA
■  . i - "j - .•*• •'*- ■ • . ' ' . ~t ' ■". '-

> SCHEDULE OF EX^Dltwra OF FEDERAL AWARDS i
' i^ THE YEAR EWbiD JULY SI. '

ASSIStMICE>
. iPEDEiUU. ORANTOm. ^:PA^THROUGH GRAWTORffRC^R^^ TTTLg-.^

U A Aoftorituw..
Spa^ SMpplBmentri Nutrition'Pngm for.

'■Wom^ lhtantA''«rMj ptdtlm
.CtM ̂ 'Ait^ Care F^.progrirn'
'Fe^MstHbutlen^Chi^'^

HConwncxfliy Supptsmentf FoodPcoenxn
;CMMNytrttimO^^ . .
^iSurniiW Fobd^ente Proipvh fdr.Cfiilrea
-TM 0.8. Dapertn^ pf 'Agfejlture.- •

t • ... " .**".,• * •. '•7'r.
1L8. Dawtiimil of HwalnQ and Uifaan OaYHoomantj
>EmergenqrSolutlGmOrarriPrpsnni -- '
^8*etlen8PrQ^cMttMd Ctii*tiir » . ^ '

'Sb^on B Mode^'.RehatAUIon Shigts Room bcciipency •

* ToM U.& Department ofHquslf^ arid Uiten 'Davatopment

UA PfPfTtnm gf
..WIOACtetar'? ' •

' vyiOA A^.ProBram

•fatal U.S. Department'of lAtiot/WlOA Ctuiteir
r . rjv" ■ V 'v v

U jTPenemmnt cf E^ueetion" >
-MuR.Educate ; .Orvib to .State
AdUB Educa^ r Gkvi&'to

' Tq^ U.S; DepartntampfEdteBori'
.  s _ - . *

:u.B. Dw>iftmetrtef Tra«ui¥
Ernergancy Renua Aaaistanca Piugrwn'
Ernergercy Rental Aaritenca Preym^

: Emergency Rental Aaahtwiue f^ogrsm
Emergency RerTtriAeali^ Proqraaiv-

.Coronevlrua.Stte end Local F^bcat Recwery Fuhda. •

>T<to'u!8. Departn^ M Treesuy'

USTWO>
NU¥B^

; Pi^THROUOHi'
•ORAMf0f«M^. GRAfirara NUMBER;-

• iFEDERAt:.
EXPENOmiRE

'  loisV-. :'Siate of OeperVncrt of 1 teelthS Himw Seryfcai t •■214NH7WW1pM • 1.3b8':4t6'
843.«^v

• • td.^ ■■'Coiwi'nadty ftftlon Prdgw aefcnat^MeiTfc'Bock Counflea' L202226Y800544^ j28,6^>

46i58' .Stite.df NH. p^wtftierit of" EduciBcw i .•135.114 •

.'1'315.478

t4.»t ^aateof NH. DHKSi Buteu of t tornelaia 8 Heoahig •  '»1-0C-3Mrai ' ■I. - .1 w,a!B4 <

'&14.248'- .'464.891

ST. .89a.7fS5'.

•

^  .17j» 'Stela of NH, Oept af.Resowpea and Ecenci^ Deveiopment I' .02-60006181 :|- 12,831.584.

f-. ■ii83i5M;.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL

REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

We have audited, In accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the combined
financial statements of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate (a New Hampshire
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of July 31.2023
and 2022 and the related statements of activities, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
March 11. 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the combined financial statements, we considered
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's intema! control over financial reporting
(intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire
Services. Inc. and Affiliate's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's Intemal control.

A deficiency in intemal control exists when tho design or operation of a control docs not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness Is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, In intemal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, In intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
Important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies In intemal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deftcienctes in Intemal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Bach Major Federal Program

We have audited Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate's compliance with the
types of compliance requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and matBrial effect on each of Southern New Hampshire
Services, Inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2023.
Southem New Hampshire Services, inc. and Affiliate's major federal programs are identified in
the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs.

In our opinion, Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended July 31, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federat Program

We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200,
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliate
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc.
and Affiliate's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.
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PARTNERSHIP}
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COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP

HILLSBOROUGH AND ROCKINGHAM COUNTIES

Board of Directors

September 2024

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Molliy Driver

Deborah Gosselin O'Shea

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Wanda Kennerson

Kathleen Mackin

German Ortiz

Carrie Santos



DONNALEE LOZEAU

Community/Civic
Involvement- Current

• NH Community Action Partnership

• HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chaIr

• Governor's Office for Emergency

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jobs NH

Chapter, Co-chair

• St. Joseph Hospital Board of
Directors, Quality Council Chair

• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory

Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Board of

Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company

• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council

• Community College System of NH s

• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic

Involvement- Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of
Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member

• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors

• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public Policy Studies

• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding
Member

EXPERIENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org)
Manchester, NH (January 2016-Present)

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hlllsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016) - Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city In the state of NH with development and implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennlchuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hlllsborough County
through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new Initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center



Past Community/Civic
Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building

Coalition, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable

Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eagle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community

Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• Rivier College, Nashua-

Undergraduate work in Political

Science

• Restaurant Management

Institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training

• Leadership Institute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, HHIsborough County, District 30

(1984 - 2000)-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives

(1996 - 2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH.House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or in the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation, Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Suprerhe Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbranch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

•  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
•  Space and Prison Programming
■  Juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments Intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Public Safety

C/ty Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)
City Streets Diner, (2000 - 2003) Nashua, NH Co-Owner/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements



RYAN CLOUTHIER, CCAP

www.caphr.org

SUMMARY Highly experienced and dedicated Certified Community Action
Professional (CCAP) with extensive expertise in managing and directing
operations within non-profit organizations. Proven track record of
enhancing program efficiency and community impact through strategic
leadership and innovative solutions.

WORK

EXPERIENCE

Chief Operating Officer (COO) • Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc. now dba
Community Action Partnership Hillsborough and Rockingham Counties

2018-Present

• Oversee the daily operations and strategic initiatives of the organization to
ensure alignment with the mission and goals.

•  Lead and manage multiple departments to drive performance and
program outcomes.

•  Co-host monthly program budget meetings with Chief Fiscal Officer.
•  Develop and implement policies and procedures that enhance

operational efficiency and effectiveness.
•  Collaborate with community stakeholders, partners, and funders to

strengthen resources and support for the organization.

Operations Director, Energy and Housing Programs - Southem New Hampshire
Sen/ices, Inc.

2016-2018

•  Directed and managed the energy and housing programs, ensuring
compliance with federal and state regulations.

•  Streamlined program operations to improve service delivery and client
satisfaction.

•  Secured funding and resources to expand program reach and impact.

Energy Director- Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
2013-2016

•  Developed and implemented energy programs aimed at reducing
energy costs for low-income households.

•  Collaborated with utility companies and government agencies to
leverage resources and support.

• Monitored program performance andoutcomes, making adjustments
as needed to achieve goals.

Weatherizatlon Director- Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

2006-2013

• Oversaw the weatherization program, Improving energy efficiency for low-
income homes.

•  Managed a team of technicians and contractors to ensure high-quality
service delivery.

•  Conducted outreach and education efforts to inform the community about
the benefits of weatherization.



Energy Auditor- Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.
2004-2006

•  Conduct field energy audits for low-income residential properties.
•  Record data in both written and computerized formats to assess the cost-

effectiveness of conservation measures.

•  Generate work order specifications for contractors.

•  Ensure quality installations and client satisfaction through properfollow-
through and field inspection.

PROFESSIONAL

HIGHLIGHTS

EDUCATION

CERTIFICATION

NH Business Review 2024 Top 200 Influential Business Leader

Numerous press articles related to Weatherization, including visits from the
Assistant Secretary of Energy Efficiency from the Department of Energy and

Vice President Joe Biden

Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee

Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Strategic Planning
Committee

Class 2019 Leadership Greater Manchester

Union Leader 2015 Class of 40 Under Forty

Vice President of the Neighbour Helping Neighbour Board

Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board

Member of the Residential Ratepayers Advisory Board

Weatherization written and field certification, Department of Energy Quality

Control Inspector Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization
best practices training

BPI Energy Analyst

Lead contractor abatement Certification

Lead Renovation Repair and Painting (RRP)

Certification OSHA 30-hour worker safety

DOE Lead Safe Weatherization certification

Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and T3 design and troubleshooting training.
Asynchronous Transfer Mode (ATM) and Frame Relay network design
training, LAN and WAN training, 0C3, 0048, and OC192 design and
troubleshooting training

NH Community TechnicalCollege

Certified Community Action Professional (CCAP)



SKILLS

•  Leadership, Management and Supervision
•  Budget Oversight, Forecasting, Analysis, Financial Management
•  Program Development Implementation

•  Stakeholder Engagement
• Grant Writing and Fundraising

•  Compliance and Regulatory Affairs
• Operational Efficiency
•  Community Engagement



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 yearis of non-profit experience and. over ZO years of broad
experience in manufacturing, dist'ributlbhVreorganizatlons, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring perfoirhance metrlcs In a manufartiirlrig ehvlfbhmeht.
Experienced in private arid publicxbrpbratlons; Including 8 years;in a private equity environment with a strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity rrianagement Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff leadership, training and developrnent In a team
envjronrnent. ProiPessional Experience:
•  Fiscal Officer In ncriprpfrt organization
•  Controller in MFG & Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow. Management

•  Fihancial & Capltar Budgeting, Reporting iSt Control
•  cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business performance Metric-Establi'shment and Measurement

PROFESSIdNAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Manchester^ NH s/200^Present
Southern New Hahfipshlre'Services (SNHS) is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping-people help themselves;
SNHS accomplisheithis through a variety, of programs offered at:centers,'6ffices, clinics, and intake sights
located.throughout Rocklngham and Hlllsbprough counties. The agency also oversees^29 housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and administers $36 niiljipn in program funds annually with
over 450 ernployees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present

•  Oversee financial and accounting cornpliahce, maintaining controls and managing potential buslhe^
risks I

• Manage the annual budget process and analysis activities

•  Prepare preseptatfon for Board of Directors meetings. presenting thejorganizatlon's financial.results
•  Develop and maintain banking relationships

• Manage the Annual.Audit process

Senior Accountant 5/2(^-1/2017
Assisted Fiscal Director !n overseeing all fiscal and finandal activities includlng.compliance with federab state,
and funding source requirem..e.nts as well as accordance with GAAP
•  Developed and implemented Indirect cost calculation and interfaced with Genera! Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recommended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements
•  Designed allocation methods for properly biiling shared Items to individual grants and programs'
•  Prepared rnohthly agency prograni reviews for Fikal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. Chatsson-

WOOD STRUCTURES> INC; Biddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI, is a.highly leveraged business owned by Roark Capltal,.a private equity fund, headquartered in Atlanta,
GA. WSI Is a $70 miirion manufacturer of fopf and floor trusses, wall pahels-ahd a distflbutor of eh'gijieered
vyood pfbducts. The cdmpan/s products are sold into the residential and light commercial construction
markets

Controller 2006-4/2009

Managed all'aspects of'accounting and reporting:ln a truss manufacturing plaht'as well as an engineered wood
products diistributipn location thatjhc|uded 2 locations In Maine.and 1 in Massachusetts.
•  Galcujated and-assisted'ih the ffran"agemeht of the cqmpany's'cbveha'hts
• Worked closely with senior management during the;sale process from" the'selle'r (Harbour Group) and

buyer (Rdark Capital)

•  Identified cost drivers'and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted rnonthly reviews-with the managers on financial results ahd.measurement

•  Oversaw the payfolf function.of 160+ employees

Accounting Manaaer 2001-2006

Recruited to company toTestpre financjaJ controls and establish best practices concerning,both general ledger
and cost,accou.ntlng;processes: Responsible for overseeing-the accounting of 2"lbcations-in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Establishecf the reporting protocols of the company used by both equity sponsors

•  Educated, mbtivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed in their foils of financial responsibility
•  Identified and implerrfented prpcesses and procedures for all iritercompany-sales, transfers;

consolidation and elijninations

•  Streamlined the payroll process tha^ included transferring to an external supplier (ADP), which reduced
cost by 40%

•  CdnUucteTJ physical inventories and defined their policies and pfoce'dure at all locations:

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sanfofd, ME 1978-2001
Vishay Sprague is ardivision ofA/ishay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSELVSH) a global manufacturer ofjdtscrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division rnanufactures sdl'^ tantalum

capacitors with annual sales of $200 mjllion and l,4C0'employees.

Plant CostAccountinoiManoaer 1997-2001

Division General Accountina'Manaaer 1995rl997

Division ODeraiioh A'ccouhtant 1989-1995
Division Fixed AssetAccouhtdnt 1987-1989

Master Enaiheerinafechniciah 1984-1987

Lead Productiah TechnicidTi- 1978-1984

EOUCATION

NASSON C0LLEGE}Spi;ingyaleMyiE'3
B.S. in Business Administration



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

d/b/a Community Action Partnership Hlllsborough and Rocklngham Counties
Mailing Address; PC Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone; (603) 668-8010 FAX; (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel

November 2024

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnalee Lozeau $213,759 0.00% 0

Chief Operating Officer Ryan Clouthier $138,939 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chalsson $155,009 0.00% 0
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N*w Himpthlrf Department ef

BUSINESS AND

ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

51 V.★j

October 27. 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity to enter into a
Sole Source amendment of an existing contract (Contract #1093270) with Southern New Hampshire
Services (SNHS) (VC#177198), Manchester, NH, for the delivery of the Workforce Innovation and
Opportunity Act (WlOA) Adult Program services by increasing the price limitation by $2,918,490 from
$5,900,000 to $8,818,490 and by extending the completion date from June 30. 2024 to June 30, 2025
effective upon Governor and Council approval. The original contract was approved by Governor and Council
on December 18, 2020, Item #37, and amended on April 12, 2023, Item #5K. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account Office of Workforce Qpoortunitv for Fiscal Year 2024 and Fiscal Year 2025
with the authority to adjust encumbrances between fiscal years within the price limitation through the Budget
Office, if needed and justified.

FY 2024 FY2025

03-22-22-220510-14530000-102-500731-Contracts for Program Services $1,125,000 $1,793,490

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source due to the successful delivery of WlOA Adult Program services provided by
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS), as SNHS exceeded enrollment goals last year and is again on
target to surpass this year's goals. These increases are being seen due to the expansion of eligibility as
well as through various outreach efforts that are under way. In addition, the transfer of administration of
WlOA Title I services from NHES to BEA occurred late in program year 2022.

This contract between the Department of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity
(BEA/OWO) and Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) is for the delivery of the WlOA Adult Program
services. The amendment of the existing agreement increases the funding to reflect the increase in
enrollment and services being provided to eligible participants. Through various outreach initiatives and the
expansion of eligibility, SNHS has far exceeded enrollment goals. The amendment will also extend the
existing agreement by one program year to allow for the continuation of planned deliverables with minimal
disruptions.



Hla ExcoDency, Governor Chrtslofrfwr T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

October 27.2023
Pa962af2

The Attorney General's office has reviewed and approved this document as to form, sutistance and
execution.

In the event Federal Funds are no longer available, General Funds will not be requested to support this
program.

RespectfuDy submitted.

Taylor Caswell
Commissioner



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJECT; WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WlOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC

AMENDMENT

This Amendment dated October 27,2023, Is between the State of New Hampshire Department

of Business and Economic Affairs, Office of Workforce Opportunity, 100 North Main Street Suite 100,
Concord, Merrimack County, New Hampshire 03301 (hereinafter referred to as the "State") and
Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc, 40 Plr>e Street, Manchester, Hillsborough County, New

Hampshire 03106 (hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor").

Pursuant to an Assignment of Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement"), as

approved by Governor and Council on April 12,2023, Item SK (Consent Calendar), the Contractor has

agreed to provide certain Services, per the terms and conditions specified in the Agreement and in
consideration of payment by the State of certain sums as specified therein.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Item 5 of the Agreement, the State and the Contractor

have agreed.to amend the Agreement In certain respects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants and conditions In the

Agreement as set forth herein, the parties agree to the following:

1. Amendment and Modification of Agreement. The Agreement is amended and modified as
follows:

A) Completion Date: Amend the Agreement by rtrlklng the current completion date of .
June 30,2024 and inserting in place thereof the date of June 30,202S.

8) Price Umltatlon: Amend the Agreement by striking the current price limitation of
$5,900,000 and inserting in place thereof the amount of $8,818,490.

2. Continuance of Agreement. Except as specifically amended and modified by the Terms and
Conditions of this Amendment, obligations of the parties hereunder shall remain In full force

'  and^'effe^ In accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement as It
exlsteij immediately prior to this Amendment.

SNHS Amendment Contractor Initials:

WlOA Adult Oate:_^
OFOA: 17.258 ' f



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

OFnCE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJECT: WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY Aa (WlOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC

AMENDMENT [pafe 2 of 3)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, th« parties have hereunto set their harxis as of the day and year flrst above
written.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

NH Department of Business and Economic Affairs

By;

Taylor Caswell, Commissioner

Souttfem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

alee Lozeau Officer

State of

County of

0" ^3Q^av of October, 2023, before me, the undersigned officer,
Mfsoiull^appeared who acknowledged himself/herself to be the
C^ePQcUu-k\)L.Gf4*'i-p/' ofrtda/Ag./-rt fJH . a corporation,
and that he/she, being authorized so to do. executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes
contained therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public/Justice of

My Commission expires My oemmittlon Bcphee October 7.2025

Approved as to form, execution and substance:

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date: ii/06Q02y

SNHS Amtndmint Contnctor Inldils

W10A Adult Date:

CrOA: 17.258



NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC AFFAIRS

OFFICE OF WORKFORCE OPPORTUNITY

SUBJEa; WORKFORCE INNOVATION AND OPPORTUNITY ACT (WlOA) ADULT PROGRAM CONTRACT
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC

AMENDMENT (page 3 of 3)

I hereby certify that the foregoing contract was approved by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire at their meeting on , 2023.

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

By:

Title:

SNHS Amendment Contractor Initials:,

WlOA Adult

he,
CFOA: 17.258 '



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrctaiy of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on May 28, 1965.

I further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good standing

as far as this ofiTice is concerned.

Business ID: 65506

Certified Number: 0006209491

Bo.

&0

4*

IN TESTIMONY WIEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State ofNew. Hampshire,

this 18th day of April A.D. 2023.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Orville Kerr . hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cahnot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duty elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. ^ ^
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The fdllpwing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on September 11 .2023 . at which a quorum of the Dlrectors/sharehokters were present and voting.

VOTED: That Donnatee Lozeau. CEO, Rvan Clouthlef. COO: and James Chalsson. CFO (may list more than
one person )is duly authorized on behdf of Southern New Hampshire Services. Inc. to enter Into contracts or
agreements with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instrument, and any amendments, revisions, or
modifications thereto, which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that It Is undeiitood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the persoiVs) listed above currently occupy the
po8itlon(s) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporatjon In ̂ roac^s^th the State of New Hampshire,
ail such limitations are expressly stated herein.

bated:.
Signature of Bected Officer
Name: Orville Kerr
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



A^^cf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE OATE(MMJCXVYYYY)

03/31/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. TNIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT If the certificate holder Is an ADDITTONAL INSURED, the p6l}cy(los) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provblona or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms end conditions of the poDcy, certain pollclos may requtro en endorsement A statement on
this eortlflcato docs not confer rights to the eertificato hoMer In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

FIAI/Cross Insurance

1100 Elm Street

Manchester NH 03101

.DlenneSoto

(603)6BM218 | (603)645^31
manch.cettsOopssagency.com '

MSURSUSt AFFORDWO C0VERA08 NAieS

msuREA A; Philadelphia Indemnity Ins Co 18058

MSURSO

Southern NH Services Inc.

P.O. Box 5O40

Manchester NH 03108

MSU^B - Midwest Employers Casualty Corp 23612

MSURERC:

MSURER D:

KSURSRB:

KSURERP:

COVERAGES CERTIHCATE NUIIflSER: »-24 AD BnM SNHS REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 18 TO CERTIFY THAT THE POUCIES Of INSURANCE USTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWrrHSTANDINGANYREOUIREMENT.TERMORCONOmONOFANYCONTRACTOROTHERDOCUMENTWITHRESPECTTOWHICHTHIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES DESCRIBED HERON IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDmONS OP SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSft
LTR TYPeOF.mSURANCE POLICY NUMBER UtOTS

A

X COMMERCIAL CENERALUABniTY

E 1 X| OCCUR

PHPK2535524 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

EACH OCCURRENCE
, 1,000,000

] CLAIUSMAO tUUAOETOREKTEC
PREMfSeS «=■ oeeun*fw«1

, 100,000 -

MS EI9 (Am ont otnen) , 5,000
reRSONAL a AOV INJURY ^ i.ooo.roo

OBTtAGOREQATE LMTTAPnjES PER: OENERALAQGREGATE , 2,000.000

X POUCV [ ] 1 1 LOG
OTHER;

PRODUCTS • COMPTOP AGO , 2,000,000

n •

A

1 AUTOUOBAfUABam 1

PHPK2535522 04/01/2023 04/01/2024

COMBtNEO SINGLE UUn- $ 1.000.000

X ANYAUTO

iff

BOOCLY INJURY (Pv ptnon) %

OVWEO
AUT080NLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

8C
AL

aOOTLY INJURY <Pw MCUtni)

Nt
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE %

*

A
X UMBTTEUAUAB 1

EXCEttUAB . I
OCCUR

CLAIUS^tX PHUB857270 04/01/2023 04/01/2024
EACH OCCURRENCE , 6.0OC.0O0

AGGREGATE , 5,000,000 .

1 060 1 X| RETENTION S 10.WO 1 s

B

WORKERS COSIPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'LIABaJTY y/N
AMYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUnVE
OPFICBM1IEM8ER SCCLUOED?
(UindatorybiKH) ^
tl yM, dMokt inte
D^RIPTION OF OPERATIONS btkw

N/A HCHS2023(»00534 (3&) NH 01/01/2023 01/01/2024

VI PER 1 OTH-^ STATUTE 1 ER
EL EACH ACCIDENT , 1.000.000

EL DISEASE. EAEMPLCTiTeE
, 1,000,000

E.L DISEASE. POUCYUMTT , 1,000.000

A
Professional UaiXllly

PHPK2S35624 04/01/2023 .04/01/2024

Limit • •

Aggregate

81,000,000-

8 2,000,000

oeSCRIPTtON OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VBttCLES (ACOR0101, Addiaond Rwowta SeiwduK nuy b« Mactwd If dprn I* rSRUlrM)

Refer to poScy tor exctustonery endorsements and special provisions.

NH Dqiartment of Business & Economic Affairs
100 North Main Street

Concord NH 03301
1

SHOULD ANY OP THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPtRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTTCE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORtZED REPRESENTATTVe

ACORD25 (2016/03)

ei888-2016ACOROCORPORATION. AD rights reserved.

TheACORD rxame and logo are registered marks of ACORO



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHmE SERVICES
The Community Action Partnership for Hillsborough and Rocklngham Counties

Helping People, Changing Lives.

MISSION STATEMENT

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (SNHS) is a private non-profit corporation chartered in the State of New
Hampshire, May 21, 1965 to serve as the Community Action Partn^hip for Hillsborough.County in compliance
with the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964. From 1965 through 1969, SNHS was known as the Community
Action Agency for Hillsborough County and served the City of Nashua and the twenty-nine towns. In 1969 SNHS
became the Community Action Partnership for the City of Manchester as well. In 1974 the agency's name was
changed to Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. In July 2011, Rockingham Community Action (RCA), the
Community Action Agency serving Rockingham County, was merged with Southern New Hampshire Services. As
a result of this merger, SNHS now provides services to residents of the 65 towns and 3 cities in Hillsborough and
Rockingham Counties.

The Economic Opportunity Act of 1964 and subsequent federal legislation establishing the Community Services
Block Grant define our basic mission. Under these provisions the fundamental mission of SNHS is:

A. To provide a range of services and activities having a measurable and potentially major impact on causes of
poverty in the community or those areas of the community where poverty is a particularly acute problem.

B. To provide activities designed to assist low-income participants including homeless individuals and
families, migrants, and the elderly poor to:

1. Secine and retain meaningful employment
2. Attain an adequate education
3. Make better use of available income

4. Obtain and maintain adequate housing and a suitable living environment
5. Obtain emergency assistance through loans or grants to meet immediate and urgent individual and

family needs, including the need for health services, nutritious food, housing, and employment related
assistance

6. Remove obstacles and solve problems which block the achievement of self-sufficiency
7. Achieve greater participation in the affairs of the community, and
8. Make more effective use of other programs related to the purposes of the enabling

federal legislation.

C. To provide'on an emergency basis for the provision of such supplies and services, nutritious foodstuffs, and
related services, as may be necessary to counteract conditions of starvation and malnutrition among the
poor.

D. To coordinate and establish linkages between governmental and other social service programs to assure the
effective delivery of such services to low-income individuals.

E. To encourage the use of entities in the private sector of the community in efforts to ameliorate poverty in the
community.
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CERtlFlEt) PUBLIC ACMarmSTS

WOLFEBOjtQ • IIQRTH CpIW

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' COMPILATION REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiiiates

Management Is responsible for the accompanying combined financial statements of Southern
New Hampshire Services, Inc. and Affiliates, which comprise the combined statement of
financial position as of July 31. 2022, and the related combined statements of activities and
functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended In accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. We did not audit or review the combined financial statements nor were we required to
perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by
management. We do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on
these combined financial statements.

Management has elected to omit substantially all the disclosures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted disclosures were
included In the combined financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions
about the companies' financial position, results of operations / changes in net assets, and cash
flows. Accordlngiy, the financial statements are not designed for those who are not informed
about such matters.

The suppiementary information contained in Schedules A, B and C Is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management. The suppiementary information was subject to
our compilation engagement. We have not audited or reviewed the supplementary Information
and do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance on such Information.

Dover, New Hampshire
February 2, 2023



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRg SgRVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATES

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.2022

assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Contracts receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and Improvements

Vehicles and equipment

Total property

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, net

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

Miscellaneous other assets

Total other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILfTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll ̂ d payroll taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other liabilities
Refundable advances

Over applied overhead
Tenant eecurity deposits

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion
Capital advances

Total noncurrent lieibilltles

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Net assets without donor restrictions

TOTAL LIABIU71ES AND NET ASSETS
See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report

$ 12,796,926
9,696,836
4,458,963

6,228
309.219

27.268.172

9,292,319

83,880,879

2,425,402

95,598,600
40,709,885

54,888.715

5,986,808
1.708

5.986.516

$ 88.145.403

$ 184,795
1,206.563

1.678.480

407,125

767,029
4,393,168
159,745

400,961

9,197,886

5,122,480
66,428,341

71.550,821

60,748,707

7,396.696

88,145,403



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRg SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATgS

COMBINED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rental Income

Gifts and contributions

Interest and dividend income

Unrealteed loss on investments

Debt Forgiveness
Loss on sale of equipment
in-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

$  131.572.939
256,296
162,140

9,150,150
375,231
405,225

(1,101,886)
900,000
(27.975)
992,197
286,190

Totai revenues and other support 142,970.507

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS, Inc.

SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations

130,202,087

2,458,985
8,721.887

Total program services 141,382,959

Supporting activities

Management and general 1,977.716'

Total expenses 143.360.675

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (390,168)

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 7.786.864

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR $  7.396.696

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SQim<ERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AMP Ami tATFH

COMBrNED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2022

EXPENSES

Payroll
Payroll taxea
Fringe benefits
Worker^ compensation Insurance
Retirement tjenefits
Consultant arul contractual
Travel and transportation
Conferences and meetings
Occupancy
Advertieirtg'
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurarwe

Tel^rhone
Postage
Printing and put)licatkms
Subscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation end amortization
Assistance to cflents
Other expense
MIsceDanetbus

lr*-kirxl

SutXotal

EDminations

Total expenses

SNHS. Ine.

12,012,193
904.370

3,106.244
155,486

823.400

5,092,194
186,330

19,746

1.624,879
16,995

774,790

83,665
108,245

280,674

62,955

23,252
1,604

150,756
7,811

271,530

103,433,099
372,164

64,668
992,197

SNHS

Management
Cerooratlon

680,957

51.276

124,330

12,763

51,873

154,643
43,639

36,679

653,118
1,641

22,434
10.928

46.929

24,285

766

1,477

685

73,105
47,746
395,803
24,779
7,175

66,702

$  130.56937 $

(367,170) _

Housing
Conwratlona

Total

Program
Servlcaia

Management
and

General

2,533,713

(74.7281

S  130.202.Q87 $ 2.458.985

Total

$ 1,427,683 $ 14,120,633 $ 138,63 $ 15,379,656
115,348 1.070,994 91,302 1,162,296
38539 3,615,863 172,052 3,787,915
53.637 221.886 4,964 36,850
83,056 958,329 13,402 1,081,731

1.111,492 6,35836 181,115 6,539,444
34,261 26430 6,137 270.367

- 56,43 236 58,701
23935 4.527,232 44,863 4,572,095

2,484 21,13 338 21,458
38,082 835,306 44,635 879,941

1.198.289 132.672 1,052 1,23,924
361,43 16,31 378,354

54,634 359.593 14,673 374,23
7516 71,37 11,966 3,203

- 24,729 - 24,73
30,322 32,591 1,03 33.620
4.456 23.317 . 23,317

121,752 177,309 . 177,309
1,938,890 2.606.23 4.114 2,610.337

- 103,457.878 . 13.457,870
313,219 692,578 1,539 694,117
20,545 151.915 209 152,124

- 992.197 - 93.197

s 9,396,439 $ 142,499,409 $ 1,31,43 $ 144,480,83

(674.5521 (1.116.450) (3.704) (1.13.154)

$ 8.721.887 141.382.959 $ 1.977.716 S 143.360.675

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN New HAMPfiHIRF SERVICES. INC. AND AFRLIATgR

COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change In net assets $  (390,168)
Ad|ustments to reconcile changes In net assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,610,337
Loss ori sale of equipment 27,076
Unrealized loss on Investments 1,101,886
Debt forgiveness (900.000)
Loss on construction 70,044

Decrease Oncrease) In assets:
Contracts receivable (1,000,014)
Accounts receivable 30,043
Prepaid expenses (16,015)

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable 389,561
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 460,105
Accrued compensated absences (58.870)
Accrued other liabillties 26,448
Refundable advances 2,987,173
Over applied overhead (19,931)
Tenant security deposits 10.928

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,309,502

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property (1.103.530)
Proceeds from sale of property 45,428
' Purchase of Investments (402.006)

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1.460,114)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVmES

Payments on long-term debt (460.603)

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (460.603)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH 3,388,785

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 15.394.949

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR S  18.783.734

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMTION

Cash paid during the year for Interest $  121.752

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

Cash $  12,796,926
Restricted cash 5.986.808

Total cash and restricted cash $  18.783.734

See Accompanying Independent Aocountants' Compilation Report
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8ch«dula A

SQUTHERM NEW HAMPSHIRP SF-pVICES. tNC. AMD AFRLIATES

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31. 2022

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due Irom other corporations

SNHS. Inc.

ASSETS

S

4,456,511

71,614
6,683,413

936,692

SNHS

Management
Corporation

 $ 10,504,931
9,696,836

Etlmlnatfon

2,452

57,596
(3.514,161) (2,395,856)

SNHS

Sub»Total

11,441,623

9,696,836
4,458,963

129,210
973.396

Total current assets 12,348.230 18.747,654 (2.395.856) 26,700.028

PROPERTY

Land 646,805. 2.928,276 . 3,575,080
Buildings and Improvements 2.535.854 11,400,371 • 13,936,225
Vehicles and equipment 1.275.872 194.745 - 1,470,617
Total property 4,458,531 14,523,391 • 16,981,922

Less accumulated depredation 1.834.800 4.885.157 , 6.720.057

Property, net 2.623.631 9.638.234 12.261.865

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 30,521 481,445 511.966
Miscellaneous other assets - - -

Total other assets 30.521 481.445 • 511,966

TOTAL ASSETS ^  15,002,362 f 26.867,333 S (2.395.856) S 39.473.859

CURRENT UABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payrolt and payroll taxes
Axrued comperrsat^ absences
Accrued other llablliUes

Refundable, advances

Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits .
Due to other corporatlorrs

Total current liabililies

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES .
Long term debt, less current portion
Capital advances

Total noncurrent [iabllltles

Total {labilities

NET ASSETS (DERCIT)
Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions

LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

$  19,186 $
769,090
258,246

62,349
4,378,507

159,745

30,466

64,471 $
245,427

1,387,920

407,125

12,133

65,271

83,656
1,014,517
1.646,168
407.125

62,349
4,390,640

159,745

95,757

B.132.751 2,123,062 (2,395,856) 7,859,957

163,204 1.742,589 ■ 1,905,793

163.204 1.742.589 1,905.793

6,295,955 3,865,651 (2,395.856) 9,765,750

6.706.427 23,001,682 29.708.109

S  15.002.382 $ 26,867.333 S (2,395,656) S 39,473.859

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report

6



8QUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRF RFRVIOES. INC. AMD AFFII IflTFS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF RNANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31. 2022

SchfldujB A (ContiniMd)

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Inv^tments
Qranta receivable

Rural Housing
for the Elderly 11

Landing II

Rural Housing
for the SNHS Elderly
Elderly Housing

Sundial

Elderly
Housing

assets

S  61,121 $ 238,640 $ 39,362 $ 67,667

Accounts receivable

Prepaid experrses
Due from other corporatloru

12,639

4,147

13,606
666

7.166
1,415

17,316

Total ourrent assets 93.960 256.183 47.194 86.398

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and improvements
Vehicles and equipment
Total property

16,498

3,335,396
23.031

3,374,925

269,667

4,314,511
275.368

4,859,546

112,896
1,194,742

-24.688

1,332,226

342,450
4.094,743

58.344

4.495,542

Less accumulated depredation 1.789.268 3.414.870 890.963 2.638.610

Property, net 1,685.657 1.444.676 441.283 1.856.732

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

Miscellaneous other assets
154,371 1,291,450 353,997 326,308

Total other assets 154.371 1.291.450 363.997 326.306

TOTAL ASSETS 1.633.968 S 2992,319 $ 642.454 S 2.269.438

cuRREhrr liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other liabilities

Relund^le advances

Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits
Due to other corporations

UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$  - $
9,873
911

3,525

18,577
56.680

74,005 $

17,954
3,297

348.142
2,507

21,985

33.520

27,134 $
7,723

476

11,704

5,818
15,655

10,490
2,157

6,755
41

31,670
46,192

Total current fiabiiitles 89.646 501.410 68.710 97.314

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debt, less current portion
Capital advances 3.167,200

1,768,044 998,643

4.081.600

Total noncurrent llabiiides 3.167.200 1.768.044 998,643 4,081,600

Total liabilities 3.256,746 2,269,454 1.067.353 4,178.914

NET ASSETS (DERCIT)
Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions (1,422,758) 722.865 (224.899) {1,909,476)

TOTAL UABILfTES AND NET ASSETS (DERCIT) 5 1.833,963 S 2.992,319 $ 842.454 S 2.269.438

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Schaduia A (ConUnued)

SnUTHFRN New HAMPfiHlRP seRWCES. INC. AND AFFILIATPS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31. 2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash

Investments

Grants receivable

Accounts receivable

SNHS

Northwood

Elderlv Housing

SNHS Qderly SNHS EldeHy SNHS Elderly
Housing. VII Housing. VII Housing. VllA

assets

S  35.554 $ 65,499 $ 46,416 $ 56,084

Prepaid expenses
Due from other corporations

8,540 6,474 3,291 2,304

Total current assets 44.094 71.973 49,707 56,388

PROPERTY

Lar>d

Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles end equipment
Total property

145,491
3,476,506

27.734

3,649.731

662^11
4,457,221

31.908

5,151,340

670,320
2,648,121

23,324

3,241,765

373,643
2.165,510

41,562

2,580,715

Less accumulated depreciation 1.472.613 1.503511 871.238 611,704

Property, net 2.177.118 3.647.829 2.370.529 1,969,011

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash

Miscellaneous other assets
141,248 197,236

1,000
189,782

708
91,934

Total other assets 141,248 198,236 190,490 91,934

TOTAL ASSETS L- 2.362.460 S 3,918,038 $ 2,610,726 $ 2,119.333

CURRENT UABILITIES

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other liabilities

Refundable advances

Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits
Due to other corporations

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

$  . s

4,561

1,677

10,038

14,045

61.766

5,497

1,301

26,631

12,999

20,420

S •  $

3,475
768

74,456

7,842
15.037

2.B68

562

7,426

6,235

13,069

Total current liabilities 92,107 66,748 101,378 30,180

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Lortg term debt less current portion
Capllal advances 3.SS5.700 5,143.400 3.151,000 ^596.400

Total noncurrent liabilities 3,555,700 5,143,400 3.1B1.000 2,596,400

Total liabilities 3,647,807 6,210,148 3,252.378 2,626,580

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Net assets (defldt) without donor restrictions (1.285.347) (1.292110) (641.652) (507,247)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS fDEFICm 2,362,460 $ 3,918,038 5 2,610.726 $ 2,119,333

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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8ch«dul« A (Contlnuad)

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF RNANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31. 2022

SNHS SNHS Elderly SNHS

Farmlngton SNHS Elderly Housing II- Elderly
Elderiv HouSIno Houslno V Roberoe Houslno III

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $  62,343 $ 41,338 $  34,426 $ 83,602
Investments . .

Qmr\t6 receivable . .

Accounts receivatHe .

Prepaid expenses 6,615 4,712 7.2S6 6,901
Due from other coiporatlons . . . .

Total cun^nt aaaets 69.158 46.050 41,684 90.503

PROPERTY

Land 302,385 150,000 196,264 314,070
Buildings and Improvements 2,749,066 2,810,858 2,546,416 3,467,507
Vehicles ̂ d equipment 2Z042 4.956 28.617 40,415

Total property 3,073,493 2,865,814 2,771,497 3,821,996

Less accumulated depreciaUcn 1.750.916 1,174,940 1.735,172 2.007.741

Property, not 1.322.577 1,790,874 1.036.325 1.614.257

OTHER ASSETS

ReStrtcted cash 159,963 106,863 165,215 164,636
Miscellaneous other assets - - . .

Total other assets 159.963 106,883 165.215 184.636

TOTAL ASSETS S  1.551.698 S 1.943.807 S  1.243,224 $ 2.089.396

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT UABILrriES

Current portion of long-term debt $  . $ . $ $ .

Accounts payable 17,888 7,069 8,236 6,989
Accoied payroll and payroll taxes 1,658 1,253 1,442 1,858
Accrued compensated absences - - - .

Accrued other liabilities 31,620 14,460 14,126 14,359
Refundable advances . .

Over applied overhead - . .

Tenant security deposits 16,625 10,450 16,561 20,964
Due to other corporations 32.213 26,324 38,407 37.170

Total current liabilities .  99.002 59,576 77.792 60.340

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES
'

Lo;^ term debt, less current portion . . .

Capital advances 2,827.000 2,948,700 2,485.859 3.522.500

Total noncurrent liabilities 2.827.000 2,948,700 2,485,859 3,522.500

Total liabilities 2,926,002 3,008,276 ^563,651 3,602.640

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)
Net ̂ sets (deficit) without donor restrictions (1.374,304) (1,064,469) (1.320,427) (1,613,444)

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) $ 1.551.698 $ 1.943.807 $  a089.398

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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8etwdulo A (ConUnued)

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SFRVtOgfl. INC. AND APPIi lATFS

COMBINING 8CHE0ULE OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31. 2022

SNHS. Elderly Rural Houslrig
Housing II • for the Elderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Raymond
Chasse II• Landtnd 1 Houslna IV Eldertv Houslna

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash $  72,247 S 93.309 $ 32,130 S  25,846
Investments . . .

Grants recelvat)ie . . .

Accounts receivable . . . •

Prepaid ejqaanses 6,655 9,736 13,187 7,231
Due from other corporations - . . .

Total current assets 76.902 103.045 45.317 32.877

PROPERTY

Land 32,256 21,596 168,777 185,290
Bundtngs end Improvemente 3,012,650 2,539,167 4,347,738 1.776,071
Vehicles end equ^ment 23.816 16.946 27.163 28.534

Total property 6,066,625 2.579.713 4,543,666 1,989,695

Less accumulated deprecladon 1,441.676 1.444.644 1.967.194 1.086.913

Property, net 1,626.949 1.135.169 2.576.474 902.982

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 108,269 195,920 78,708 211,264
- Miscellaneous other assets - - .

Total other assets 106.289 195.920 78.706 211.254

TOTAL ASSETS S  1.614.140 $ 1.434.134 $ 2.700.499 $  1.147.113

UABILmES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILrnES

Current portion of long-temi debt $ S - S . S

Accounts payable 21,090 7,929 8,650 3,664
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 1,766 763 1,917 1,287

Accrued compensated absences - . .

Accrued other llabUHlea 14,438 3,529 5,335 7,743
Refundable advances . . . .

Over applied overhead - . - -

Tenant securf^ deposits 16,403 14,108 17,186 6,653
Due to other corporations 37.447 44.650 53,920 94.853

Total current liabilities 91.143 71.199 87.008 116.220

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term debt less current portion . - - ■

Capital advances 2.966.900 2.337.800 4.412.500 1.773.900

Total honcurrent liabilities ^966.900 2.337.800 4.412.600 1.773.900

Total llablini.es 3,058.043 2,408,999 4,499,606 1.890,120

NET ASSETS (DEFlCn)
Net assets (defldO without donor restrictions n.243.903) 1974.665) (1.799.009) (743.007)

TOTAL UABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DERCIT) $ t ,614,140 1.434.134 2.700.499 $  1.147.113

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compliatlon Report
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8en*(Iule A (CentEnuBd)

SOmUgRN NPW HAMPRrtlHP ftFRVtCgS. INC. AND AFRUATeS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OP RNANCIAL POStTtON
JULY 31.2022

8NH8 8NHS North SNHS

Rittsburg Berwieic Elderly Greenfield SNHS Ashland

Elderlv Houslno Housing Elderlv Houslno Elderiv HoUsIno

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Casti t  29.500 i  36,701 S  27,262 $  34,783
tnvdetments . .

Grants receivabts

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses 3,600 6,653 6218 8,660
Due from other corporations - . .

Total current assets 33,100 43.654 32.460 43.443

PROPERTY

Land 23.269 142,379 98,857 295,000
Buildings and improvements 1,646,803 2.016,766 1,994,386 3.053,258
Vehicles and equipment 10.619 35.339 26282 41.482

Total property 1.680.691 2,194,484 2,116,826 3,389,740

Less accumulated depreciation 1.001.215 1.143.413 1.070.237 1.182.872

Property, net 679,676 1.051.071 1.049.388 2.207.088

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 142,478 194,811 237,623 364,138
Miscellaneous other assets - . . .

Total other assets 142.478 194.811 237223 364.138

TOTAL ASSETS S  855.254 S  1.289.536 S  1219.391 $  ̂604.649

UABILTTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABILtTIES

Current portion of long-term debt $ $ S $
Accotrnts payable 6,365 8,080 4,412 6,687
Accnjed payroll and payroll taxes 1,662 1,257 1,041 1,132
Accrued coinpensated absences . . .

Accrued other liabilities 9,114 3,439 12,670 10,213
Refundable advances . ' .

Over applied overhead . . .

Tenant security deposits 7.810 9,574 7.055 10,004
Duo to other corporations 96.328 66.557 30.711 19.192

Total current liabilities 121299 88.907 55.889 46.208

NONCURRENT UABILITIES

Long term debt, less current portion . . 450,000
Cai^tal advances 1.461.082 2.016.600 1.545.300 3.426.1X

Total noncurrent llabllllles 1,481.082 2.016.800 1.995200 3.426.100

Total liabilities 1,602,381 2,105,707 2.051.189 3,472,306

NET ASSETS (DERCIT)
Net assets (deficit) without donor restrictions (747.1271 (816.171) (731.798) (867.869)

TOTAL UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS (OERCm $ 855254 S  1.289.536 $  1.319,391 $  2,604.649

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Sehtdulv A (CQntlnucd)

SOUTHERN NPW HAMPSHIRF ftPRVICga. INC. AND AFFlt tATPfi

COMBINING schedule OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JULY 31.2022

SNHS Elderly SNHS.EIderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly
HouslnoVI HouelnaVIlI Houslna IX

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cofih $  21,617 $  36,818 $  35.439 $  16.069
IrWdstments _

Grants riedelvatils .

AccoVits receivable .

Prepaid eiqwnsea 4,106 6,699 3,428 4,004
Due from other corporations . . .

Total currant aSsets 25.722 42.517 38.667 20.073

PROPERTY

Lapd 326.-131 294.973 171,394 150,000
Bufldlngs end Improvements 2,671^10 2,260,199 2,346,597 2,347.248
Vehicles and equlpmaht 32.038 19.078 16.920 23.554

Total property 2,928,379 2,574,250 2,534,911 2.520,800

Less aecufflulated depreciation 992.491 624.676 714.641 666.164

Property, net 1.935.688 1.949.674 1.820.370 1.634.616

OTHER ASSETS

Restricted cash 86,603 79,681 115,175 143,919
Miscellaneous other assets . . . .

Total other assdts 66.603 79.661 115.175 143.919

TOTAL ASSETS S  2.046.213 $  2.071.872 $  1.974.412 S  1,998,608

LIABILiTIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT UABIUTIES

Current portion of long^rm delTt 8 S $ $
Account payable 6,554 2,027 2,896 10.709
Accnied payroll and payroll taxea 772 450 450 686
Accrued compensated absances - . .

Accrued other DablllUas 21,970 8,536 8,997 6,344
Refundable advances . . .

Over applied overtiead . . .

Tenaht security deposits 7,026 6,001 6,632 5,876
Due to other corporations 41.568 17.182 17.145 19.719

Total current liabilities 76.890 34.178 36.020 .  45.314

NONCURRENT UABIUTIES

Long term debt, less current portion . . . .

Cspltal advances 2.711.900 2.35^SOO 2.341.700 2.351.200

Total noncurrant llablllllea 2.711.900 2.352.600 2.341,700 2.351.200

Total Dablinies 2,788,790 2,386.676 2,377,720 2,398,514

NET ASSETS pERCIT)
Net assets (defidQ without donor restrictions (740.5771 (314.804) (403.30S) (397.906)

TOTAL LIABUneS AND NET ASSETS (DERCTT) $ 2.048.213 $ 2.071.672 $ 1.974.412 $ 1.998.608

See Accompanying Indepeivlent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRP fiPRVtCPfi. IMC ANn flFFILIATgS

COMBININQ SCHEDULE OF RNANCIAL POSITION

JULY 31.2022

Sohedde A(CorUInutd}

8NHS Elderly
Sub-Total Elimination Totals

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Qmnls recehratHe

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses
Due from other corporations

ASSETS

S  41,828

4,413

$ 12,796,926
9,698,836
4,458,963

6.228

309519

973.396

S  - $

(973.3961

12,796,926

9.696,636
4,458.953

6526
3Q9519

Total currant assets 46.241 28541.568 (9735961 27.268.172

PROPERTY

Land

Buildings and Improvements
Vehicles and equipment

352,414

2.772.061
48.630

9592,319

63.860,679
2.425.402

- 9,292.319

83.880,879
2.425.402

Total property 3.173,105 95,698.600 • 95.598.600

Le» accumulated depreciation 772.428 40.709.385 _

40.709.885

Property, net 2.400.677 54568.715 54.886.715

OTHER ASSETS

RestilctBd cash

Miscellaneous other assets

163,320 5,966,808

1.708

• 5,986508

1.708

Total other assets 163.320 5.988.518 5.968.516

TOTAL ASSETS $  2.610.236 S 89.118.799 S  (973.396) $ 86.145.403

CURRENT UABrumES

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroQ and payroll taxes
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other nat>nitles

Refundable advances
Over applied overhead
Tenant security deposits
Due to other corporeltons

UABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS

s  • $
3,322

1,750

27.190

7,378
37.311

184.795

1,206,563

1,676,460

407,125

767,029

4,393,186

159,745

400,961

973.396

S  • S

(973.396)

184,795

1506.663

1,678,480

407,125
767,029

4,393,188

159,745

400,961

Total current (labintles 76.949 10.171582 (973.396) 9.197.886

NONCURRENT UABILmES

Long term debt, less current portion
Capital advances 3531.300

5,122,480

66.426.341

- 5.122,460

66.428.341

Total noncurrent Datillitles 3.231.300 71550,821 71550521

Total liabilities 3,308.249 81,722,103 (973,396} 60,748,707

NET ASSETS (DEFIOn)
Nst assets (deficit) wllhout donor restrictions 1698.0111 7.396.696 7596.696

TOTAL LIABIUTIES AND NET ASSETS (DERCm S 2.610.238 S 89.118.799 S (9733961 $ 86.145.403

See Accompanying Independent Accountanta' Compilation Report
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Schedule B

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SgRVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATES

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenua

SNHS. Inc.

$ 131,572.939 $

SNHS

Management

Corporation Elimination

SNHS

Sub'Total

-  5
Program service fees
Local funding
Rental income

Gifts and contributions

interest and dividend Income
Unrealized loss on Investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
in-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

304.206

269,675
95

(2,813)
992,197
132.760

850.507
162,140

1,470.525
105.556
403,135

(1.101.886)
900,000
11,358

29.669

(223.865)

(221.737)

930,848
162,140

1,248,788
375,231
403,230

(1,101,886)
900,000

8.545
992,197
162,429

Total revenues and other support 133.269.059 2.831.004 (445.602) 135.654,461

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS. Inc
SNHS Management Coloration
Housing Corporations-

130,569,257

2,533,713
(367.170)
(74,728)

130,202,087
2,458,985

Totai program services 130,569,257 2,533,713 (441,898) 132,661,072

Supporting services
Management and general 1.981.420 (3,704) 1.977,716

Total expenses 132.550.677 2,533,713 (445,602) 134.638.788

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 718,382 297,291 - 1,015,673

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR 5.988.045 22.704.391 28.692,436

NET ASSETS (DEFICrO, END OF YEAR $  6.706.427 $ 23.001,682 $ -  $ 29.708.109

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Schedule B (Continued)

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATES

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES

FOR tHE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees
Locd funding
Rental Income

Gifts and contributions

Rural Housing Rural Housing
for ttie Elderly 11 for the

Landing II Elderly

SNHS

Elderly

Housing

$

352,70

$ -  $ -  $

1,039,651 316,012

Sundial

Elderly
Housing

565,763

Interest and dividend Income

Unrealized lose on investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
In-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

31

6.360

495

23,145

106

1,535

50

5.915

Total revenues and other support 359.094 1,063,291 317,653 671.728

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS. Inc
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations 427.601 875,279 304,595 664.265

Total program servioes 427.601 875,279 304,595 664,265

Supporting sendees
Management and general

Total expenses 427.601 875,279 304.595 664.265

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (68,507) 188,012 13,058 (92,537)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (1.354,251) 534.853 (237,957) (1,816,939)

NET ASSETS (DERCIT), END OF YEAR $ (1.422.758) $ 722,865 $ (224,899) $ (1,909,476)

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN N^W HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AMn affii

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.2092

Schedule B (Continued)

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

SNHS

Northwobd

Elderly

Houalna

SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly
Housing, V|( Hopgtnq.VII Houslno. VIIA

Grant and contract revenue
Program service fees
Local funding
Rental Income

Gifts and contributions

Interest and dividend income
Unrealized ioea on Investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
In-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

$  - $

268,793

80

(6,199)

3.455

-  $

277,424

129

5.695

-  $

198,649

107

2.496

171,561

91

2.005

Total revenues and other support 266.129 283.248 201.262 173.657

EXPENSES

Program aervlces
SNHS, Inc
SNHS Memagement Corporation
Housing Corporations 391.418 352.706 300.197 258.452

Total program services 391,418 352,706 300,197 258,462

Supporting sendees
Management and general

Total expenses 391.418 352.706 300.197 258,452

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (125,289) (69,458) (98,945) (84,795)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (1.160.0581 (1,222,6621 (642.707) (422,452)

NET ASSETS {DERCIT), END OF YEAR $  (1.285.3471 S (1.292.1101 $ (641.6521 $ (507.2471

See Accompariylng Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Schedule B (Continued)

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVinFfi. INn. AND flFFlLI&TFS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACHVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rente) Income

Gifts and contributions

5NHS SNHS Elderly SNHS
Farmington SNHS Eldeiiy Housing II - Elderly

Elderly Housing Housing V Roberae Housing III

$ ■ $ $ $

344.702 250,456 375,000 475,240

Interest and dividend income

Unrealized loss on investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain Ooss) on sale of equipment
In-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

29

3.992

71

4.311

26

(10,045)

4.527

28

(8,398)

5.165

Total revenues and other support 348.723 254.838 389,507 472.035

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS, Inc
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations 408,270 318.693 415,139 509.768

Total program, services 408,270 318,693 415,139 609,768

Supporting services
Management and general

Total expenses 408.270 318,693 415,139 509.768

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DERCIT) (59,547) (63,855) (45,632) (37,733)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (1.314,757) (1.000.614) (1.274.785) (1.475.711)

NET ASSETS (DERCIT), END OF YEAR $  (1,374.304) $ (1.064.469) $ (1.320,427) $ (1.613.444)

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report

17



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPfiHIRF fiF-RVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATgS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACnVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

Schedule B (Continued)

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

SNHS Elderly Rural Housing
Housing 11- for the Elderly II SNHS Elderly SNHS Raymond
Chasse - Landing I Housing IV Elderly Housing

Grant and contract revenue s  - $ -  $ -  $
Program service fees
U)cal funding - • .

Rental Income 364,460 307.975 362,544 255,121
Gifts and contributions .

interest and dividend Income 75 43 59 29
Unrealized loss on investments

Debt Forgiveness .

Gain (loss) on sale of equipment (3,109) • _

In-kind ♦

Miscellaneous revenue 3.933 3,500 4.435 3,275

Total revenues and other support 365.359 311.518 367,038 258.425

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS. Inc . .

SNHS Management Corporation •

Housing Corporations 407.564 373.141 507.779 303.039

Total program services 407,564 373,141 507,779 303,039

Supporting services
Management and general. - - .

Total expenses 407.564 373.141 507,779 303.039

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (42,205) (61,823) (140,741) (44,614)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (1,201.693) (913,242) (1.658.268) (698,393)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR $  (1.243.9031 $ (974.865) $ (1,799,009) $ (743,007)

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN NFrW HAMPSHIRF SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATES

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

Schedule B (Continued)

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

SNHS SNHS North SNHS
PItteburg Elderly Berv/Ick Elderly Greenfield SNHS Ashiand

Housing Housing Elderly HouslnaElderlv Housing

Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rental Income

Gifts and contributions
Interest and dividend Income

Unrealized loss on Investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
In-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

$ -  $

282,975

27

20.302

-  $

269,661

41

(8,278)

2,560

-  $

253,245

50

(491)

2,255

243,940

57

2,818

Total revenues and other support 303.304 263.984 255.059 246.815

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS. Inc
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations 320.221 356.508 299,531 313.407

Total program services 320,221 356,608 299,531 313,407

Supporting services
Management and general

Total expenses 320.221 356,508 299,531 313.407

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) (16,917) (92,524) (44,472) (66,592)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR (730,210) (723.647) (687.326) (801,067)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT). END OF YEAR $ (747.127) $ (816,171) $ (731.798) $ (867.659)

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Schedule B (Continued)

SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATFR

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVrnES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees
Local funding
Rental Income

Gifts and contri^tions
Interest and dividend income
Unrealized loss on Investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
in-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Prbgrarn services
SNHS, Inc
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations

Total prograrn services

Supporting seindces
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICIT)

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

SNHS Elderty SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly
Housing VI Houelno VIH Housing IX Housing X

$  - $ - $ -  $ -

188,578 163.635 171,947 178,640

54 53 70 78

2.961 2.809 1.955 2.062

181,693 166.297 173,972 180.780

284.505 207,778 224,995 233,821

284,505 207,778 224,995 233,821

284.505 207.778 224.995 233,821

(92,912) (41,481) (51,023) (53,041)

(647.665) (273,323) (352,285) (344,865)

$  (740.577) $ (314,804) S (403.308) $ (397,906)

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. tNC. AND AFFII lATFS

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31. 2022

Schedule B (Continued)

SNHS Elderly

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT
Grant and contract revenue

Program service fees.
Local funding
Rental Income
Gifts and contributions
Interest and dividend income
Unrealized lose on Investments

Debt Forgiveness
Gain (loss) on sale of equipment
In-kind

Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues and other support

EXPENSES

Program services
SNHS, Inc
SNHS Management Corporation
Housing Corporations

Total program services

Supporting services
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (DEFICID

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT), END OF YEAR

HouSlriaXI Sub-Total Elimination Totals

$ $ 131,572,939 $ $ 131.572,939
- 930,846 (674,552) 256.296
- 162,140 - 162,140

222,687 9,150,150 9.150,150
- 375,231 . 375.231

117 405.225 . 405,225
- (1,101,886) - (1,101.886)
- 900,000 - 900,000
- (27,975) - (27,975)
- 992.197 - 992,197

2.495 286,190 . 286,190

225.299 143.645.059 (674,552) 142,970,507

130,202,087 130,202.087
- 2.458.965 . 2,458.965

337.767 9,396.439 (674,552) 8.721.887

337.767 142,057,511 (674,552) 141,382,959

. 1.977.716 1,977,716

337.767 144.035.227 (674,552) 143.360,675

(112,468) (390,168) - (390,168)

(585.543) 7.786.864 7,786,864

$  (698.0111 $  7.398,696 $ $  7,396,696

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATgR

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAH ENDED JULY 31. 9Q90

Schedul* C

EXPENSES

Paytoll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Worker's compensation Insurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and corttradual
Travel and transportation
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance

Telephone

Postage
Sut)scr1ptiott3

Program support
Interest

Depredation and amortization
Other e}q)ense
Miscellarieous

Total expenses

Rural Housing
for the Elderty
H Landlnn H

43,953
3,507
13,595
1,726

56,555

148

112,655
71

4.503
68,505
9,579
2,299

769

'1.588

89,632

18,516

427.601 $

Rural Housing Stmdlal
for the SNHS Elderly Elderly
Eldnrhr Houslna Housing

$ 132,023 $ 41,790 $  91,928
10,826 3,497 7,636
16,717 11,716 17,776
4,441 1256 3,562
3,931 2210 4,006

108,378 36,031 86,345
2,098 529 1265

239,915 61.757 181,634
427 - 171

4.294 532 7.773
103,260 40,540 95,814
29208 10,395 15218
3,073 559 3,269
373 312 725

2,155 822 2.155
1,666 - 1,174

76,741 45,011 .

91,656 46,014 113,353
25,661 1,468 30,^
18236 156 107

CO

lD

1̂ D<1

304.595 $ 664.265

SNHS
Northwood
Elderty
Housing

69,703
5,642
11,540
2.720
3,007

59,288
3,685

63,246
13

3,001
58,371
9,439
2,072

305

1.274
252

97,580

220

SNHS Elderly
Housing. Vll

36,662
3,034
6,854
1,426
1,601

56,237

725

72,524

50

912

37,747
7,487
1,036

138

1,397

117,453

7,424

SNHS Elderly
Housing, V]{

31,987
2,659
5,917
1,215
1,472

36,961
477

52.995

286

30,357
3,536
670

72

822

76,322

54,427

391.418 $ 352.706 $ 300.197

See Accompanying Independent Aecountanta' Compilation Report
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SQUTHCTN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFRUATES

COMBININQ SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIGNAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY 31.

SchetKiis C (Cohtkmsd)

EXPENSES
Payrofl
Payron taxes
Fringe benefits
Worker's compensation Insurance
Retirement benefits

Corrsuitant and contractual
Travai and transportation
Occupancy
Advertl^ng
SuppDes
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurarice

Telephone
Postage
Subscriptions
Program support
interest

Depreciation and amorttzalion
Other expense
MIsceHaneous

Total expenses

SNHS Elderly
Houstno. VllA

31.105
2,590
5,645
1,176

1.442

26,486

397

43.025

179

18,866
2,765
581

59

688

67,665

55,784

SNHS
Farmlngton

Etdertv Houslno

64,182
5,479
8,328
2,352

6,526

54,065

115

100,892

951

60,883
8,814
1.613

93

1,416

72,656

19,059
858

SNHSEtderty
Housing V

57.030
4.266

20,490
2.267
5,758

34,933

613

72,350

404

45,144
6,122
1,690

151

1,151

SNHS Elderly
Housing n -
Pobcrae

75,711
6,052

23,614
2,904
6,134

47,374

1,082
104,079

298

621

52,009
10,183
1,541

443

1,519

71,658

(5.334)

77,590

3,971
14

SNHS
Elderly

Housing III

94,256
7.513

27,887
3,587
7,679

61,813

1,281
127,129

223

541

57,931
11,734
1.313

558

1.899

299

103,887

231

7

SNHS Elderly
Housing 11 -
Chasse

64,989
5,240
19,303
2,448
4,123

46,301

700

111,749
223

1,118

59,941
10,267
1,511

511

1,450

78,530

170

Rural Housing
for the Bderty
n-Landing I

35,872
2,853
11,041
1,426

43,999

130

104,083

71

1,191
52,686
7,728
2,608

194

1,244

67,641

40,487
7

258.452 £ 408.270 $ 318,693 £ $ 509.768 $ 407,564 $ 373.141

See Aceomparryfng Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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■SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. IMC. AND AFFTUATgR

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JULY ai, ^07^

Sclwtute C (Contimnd]

EXPENSES
Payroll
Pa^ll taxes
Fringe benefits
Worker's compensation Insurance
Retirement benefits
Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Occupancy
Advertising
Supplies
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Insurance
T^ephone
Postage
Sut>scrfptions
Program support
Interest
Depreciation and amortization
Other expense
Miscellaneous

Total e}q>ens8s

SNHS Elderly
Housing

ly

82,504
6.140

31,767
2,606
5,599

61,412
752

113.238
71

4,898
60,233
14,688
2,701

494
1,485

125

118,343
123

SNHS Raymond
Elderly Houah>q

57,852
4,748

15,133
2,152
5,828

37,314
1,259

70.848
75

215
38,707

5,553
2,820

379
1,238

48,246
10,332

342

SNHS
Pittsburg

Elderly Housino

67,497
5.412

26,488
2,570
5,479

27,110
2,657

77.030

507
54,661
6,248
2,678

273
988

41,388
237

SNHS North
Berwick Elderly

Housing

62.528
5,013

20,071
2,651
2,719

39,279
1.220

82.513
223
732

72,445
84

3,267
419

1,232

61,991
223

SNHS
Greenfield

Elderiv Housing

43,014
3,682

12,659
1,953
1,241

30,414
948

85,100

409
43,784

6,499
3,384

210,
986

54,009
10,421

818

SNHS Aishland
Elderly Housind

$  55,302
4,405

17,872
1.991
3.196

34.735
4,298

73.156
128
774

24,169
8,196
2,325

159
1,151

362

81,082
108

SNHS Elderly
Housing VI

37,580
2.990

12,154
1,363
2,197

29,533
2,954

68.936
78

746
33,597

4.896
2.355

175
780

63

74,003
10,105

$  507.779 S 303.038 $_ 320.221 £ 356.508 299.531 $_ 313.407 $ 284,505

See Accompanying Indepettdent Accountants' Compilation Report
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SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES. INC. AND AFFILIATES

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAH ENDED JULY 31. gOM

Scheduts C (Continued]

SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Elderly SNHS Eldedy
Hotisinq VW IX Houstno X HousInoXl

EXPENSES
Payroll
Payroll taxes
Fringe benefits
Worker's compensation Irtsurance
Retirement benefits

Consultant and contractual
Travel and transportation
Occupancy
Advertising
SuDpOes
Equipment rentals and maintenance
Irtsurance

Telephone
Postage
Sutiscriptions
Program support
Interest

Depreciation and amortization
Other expense
Miscellaneous

Total expenses

28.370
2,324
9,022
1.069
1,399

20,440

1,515
52.371

103

564

18,064
4,622
2,908
170

688

42

61,531

2,578

23,768 •
1,956
8.010
832

1,399

29,847

1,320
59.342

78

221

18,513
3,865
2.837

180

688

42

71,995

102

29,420
2,413
9,708
1,113
1,941

24,442

2,019
58,721

78

180

24,645
4,164
3,829

181

688

42

70,346

91

68,659
6,471
21,984
2,612

4,109

23,190

2,076
59,947

103

2,530
27,417
5,667
1,696

173

822

189

84,319

26,503

Total

Housing

1.427.683
115,348
385,289
53,637
83,056

1,111,492

34,261
2.249,235

2,484

38,082
1,198,289
206,249
54,634

7,516
30,322

4,456
121.752

1,938,890

313,219
^,545

$  207.778 $ 224.995 $ 233,821 $ 337.767 $ 9.396.439

See Accompanying Independent Accountants' Compilation Report
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Southern New Hampshire Services; Inc.

Board of Directors

August 2023

Senator Lou D'Allesandro, Chairman

Dr. Kevin Moriarty, Vice Chairman

Thomas Mullins, Esq., Treasurer

Orville Kerr, Secretary

Representative Sherm Packard

Commissioner Toni Pappas

James Brown

Molliy Driver

Carrie Marshall Gross

Anna Hamel

Bonnie Henault

Wanda Kennerson

Kathleen Mackin

German Ortiz

Peter Ramsey



SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE SERVICES, INC.

The Community Action Partnership serving Hillsborough and Rocklngham Counties
Mailing Address: PO Box 5040, Manchester, NH 03108

40 Pine Street, Manchester, NH 03013

Telephone: (603) 668-8010 FAX: (603) 645-6734

List of Key Administrative Personnel
October 2023

Title Name Annual Salary Percentage Amount

Chief Executive Officer Donnalee Lozeau $207,735 0.00% 0

Chief Operating Officer Ryan Clouthler $133,260 0.00% 0

Chief Financial Officer James Chalsson $155,009 0.00% 0

Director of Workforce

Development

Sara Sacco $79,716 34.0% S27,103



DONNALEE LOZEAU

Communfty/Civic
Involvement- Current

• NH Community Action Partnership
• HB4 Cliff Effect Working Group,

Co-chair

• Governor's Office for Emergency

Relief and Recovery Stakeholders
Advisory Board, Chair

• Whole Family Approach to Jot)s NH

Chapter, Co-chair

• St. Joseph Hospital Board of
Directors, Quality Council Chair

• St. Mary's Bank Supervisory
Committee, Chair

• NH Healthy Families Board of
Directors

• Mary's House Advisory Board

• The Plus Company
• NH Tomorrow Leadership Council
• Community College System of NH s
• American Council of Young Political

Leaders, Alumni Member

• State Workforce Innovation Board

Community/Civic

Involvement-Past

• Reaching Higher NH

• NH Center for Public Policies

Studies

• Governor's Judicial Selection

Commission

• Big Brothers Big Sisters Board of
Directors, Past President

• Greater Nashua Dental Connection

BOD, Founding Member

• Great American Downtown,

Founding Member
• Domestic Violence Coordinating

Council Nashua

• US Conference of Mayors
• No Labels

• Fix the Debt

• NH Center for Public,Policy Studies
• Greater Nashua Chamber of

Commerce, Director

• Greater Nashua Workforce

Housing Coalition, Founding

Member

EXPERIENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (www.SNHS.org}
Manchester, NH (January 2016-Present}

Chief Executive Officer

• Development and oversight of Community Action Partnership serving
NH's two largest counties, Hillsborough and Rockingham

• Cooperation and engagement with local, state and federal agencies and
organizations on issues and programs that Intersect with the
Community Action Mission

• Work to fundamentally enhance the delivery of service to targeted
community to wrap services around clients and streamline the
application process by implementing the Whole Family Approach

City of Nashua, New Hampshire (2008-2016)- Elected

Mayor

• Full time overall day to day management and operations of 2nd largest
city in the state of NH with development and.Implementation of $245
million dollar (2016) annual budget

• Worked with elected boards Including Board of Aldermen; Public
Works; Board of Education and others to prioritize and balance budget
requirements and the needs of the community

• Chaired Board of Public Works and the Finance Committee

• Successfully negotiated the City's purchase of the publicly traded
water company (Pennichuck) after a prolonged case before the NHPUC
and the NH Supreme Court .

Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc. (1993 - 2008) Manchester, NH

Director of Program and Community Development

• Assessed the need for services throughout Hillsborough County
through community outreach by developing partnerships,
collaborations and new Initiatives with service providers and
businesses

• Negotiated purchases and contracts and presented projects before
local boards, commissions and departments relative to housing,
support services and economic development

• Designed and implemented strategies for developing working
relationships with town and city officials, local service providers and
appropriate private sector officials in order to project a positive image
of Southem New Hampshire Services, Inc.

• Founded Mary's House 40 units of housing for homeless women and
developed 219 units of Elderly Housing

• Pioneered Initiatives for the Community Corrections and Academy
Programs

• Expanded Head Start Services and developed the program and secured
the site for Economic Opportunity Center



Past Communfty/CMc
Involvement Continued

• Greater Nashua Asset Building
Coalltlpn, Founding Member

• New Hampshire Charitable
Foundation State Board,

Member

• Eaigle Board of Review

Education and Training

• CCAP, Certified Community
Action Professional

• CCAP Proctor

• RMer College, Nashua-
Undergraduate work in Political
Science

• Restaurant Management

institute

• Mediation and Alternative

Dispute Resolution Training
• Leadership iristttute, Aspen

• Justice of the Peace

NH State Representative, Hillsborough County, District 30
(1984 - 2000)-Elected

Deputy Speaker of the NH House of Representatives
(1996 - 2000)

• Addressed constituent concerns

• Assisted Non-profit organizations and local businesses with governmental
concerns and steering legislation through the political process by working with
members and leadership in the NH House of Representatives and the NH
Senate and representatives of the Executive and Judicial branches

• Managed.floor debates and supervised House Calendar content

• Responsible for functions of the House on behalf of or In the absence of the
Speaker

Committee Assignments:

• House Rules Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Legislative Administration Committee

• Joint Facilities Committee

• New Member Orientation; Chair

• House Corrections and Criminal Justice Committee, Vice Chairman

• House Judiciary Committee

• Criminal Justice Sub-Committee, Chairman

• State and Federal Relations Committee

Appointments:

• Joint Legislative Performance Audit and Oversight Committee

• Juvenile Justice Commission, Chairman

• Supreme Court Guardian Ad Litem Committee

• Superior Court Alternative Dispute Resolution Committee

• Work Force Opportunity Council

• Interbrahch Criminal and Juvenile Justice Council

■  Subcommittee on Offenders, Chairman
•  Space and Prison Programming
■  juveniles Subcommittee, Co-Chair

• National Conference of State Legislatures Law and Justice. Vice Chair

• Council of State Governments intergovernmental Affairs, Corrections and
Public Safety

Gty Streets Restaurant, (1986-1991)
aty Streets Diner, (2000^ 2003) Nashua, NH Co^wrter/Operator

• Operated 450 seat restaurant and banquet facility and effectively managed
financial accounts, staff and licensing requirements



RYAN J
o

CLOUTHIER

OBJECTIVE

Seeking a lead^hip role whicb will allow mc the opportunity to utilize and build upon my knowledge and
passion for the work petformed by Community Action Agencies in the state of New Hampshire, while at the
same time being the support and strength for the Communities we serve.

EXPERIENCE

Chief Operating OfHcerl Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
FEB. 2018-PRESENT

Serving as part of the Executive Management Team and is responsible for providing inspiring leadership to the
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) senior management team and developing a perfonnaoce culture to
ensure the effective management of a comprdiensive array of over sixty programs. The Chief Operating Officer
will tic the various component programs including: nutrition; bousing; energy; workforce development; income
enhancement;'education; and elderly services to the agency, to each other, and to the general community, by
promoting and communicating the mission of Community Action. In conjunction with the Chief Executive
Officer and Fiscal Officer the Chief Operating Officer provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively
involved with the agency's high-performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and
management of the program content as well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and
programs provided fulfill the agency's mission, and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, and city
regulations, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy and Housing Operations Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2016-2018

Responsible for providing the various SNHS Energy and Crisis programs. Information Technology, Housing and
Maintenance programs with mission, vision and leadership. Responsible for the planning, implementation, and
evaluation of all fac^ of fiscal and program management, effectiveness while providing general oversight for all
of the program's administration and day-to-day management, including budget management, grant writing and
purchasing. Also, responsible for maintaining a woricing relationship with governmental officials, local boards
and agencies in developing and managing the programs. In coojuoction with the Executive Director and fiscal
Officer this positions provides the stewardship of SNHS by being actively involved with the agency's high-
performance senior leadership team in the development, implementation, and management of program content as
well as annual budgets. Responsible for ensuring that services and programs provided fulfill the agency's
mission and are in compliance with all federal, state, funding, city, certifications, and licensing requirements.

Energy Director j Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2013-2016

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the Fuel and
Electric Assistance Programs, Crisis Programs, Weadierizatioo Program, Lead Hazard Control Program, and
YouthBuild Program for Hillsborougb and Rockingham Counties. Develop and Maiatain relationships with
federal, state and local grantors. Intervene on behalf of the Community Action pertaining to the Core Utility
Weatherization Energy Efficiency Programs. Maintains a strong woridng relationships mtb OCA, NH Legal
Assistance, Office of Strategic Initiative, DOE, Liberty Utilities, Evcrsourcc, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA, NREL,
Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industry. Participates in multiple Healthy Home
strategic planning committees.

Weatherization Director | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2006-2013

Responsible for coordination, implementation, budgeting, overall supervision and management of the
Weatherization, Lead Abatement, and YouthBuild Programs for Hil^borough and Rockingham Counties.
Developed and Maintain relationships with federal, state and local grantors. Intervened on behalf of the
Community Action Association during the merge of Liberty Energy and National Grid Gas along with filings
pertaining to the Core Energy Efficiency Programs. Developed strong working relationships wiA OCA, NH



Legal Assistance, Office of Energy and Planning, DOE, Liberty Energy, Evcrsourcc, NHEC, Unitil, NHHFA,
NREL, Apprise and other local non-profit and private companies in the industiy. Served on the Department of
Energy special task force designed to implement a National Best Practices Manual for JTA/KSA for
Wcatherization Energy Auditor Certification. Participated in a "One Touch" pilot effort which became a
statewide practice and has received national recognition

Energy Auditor | Southern New Hampshire Services Inc.
2004-2006

Responsible for performing field energy audits of low income residential properties; record the data in written
and computerize formate to determine cost effectiveness of conservation measures needed; generate work order
specs for the contractors. Conduct proper follow through and field inspections to assure quality installations and
client satisfaction.

Network Analyst | Genuity
2004-2006

Responsible for monitoring the Genuity Dial up network supporting AOL Domestic and Interhational subscribers
including J^an, USA and Canada. Responsibilities include isolating and troublesboodng problems/outages and
configuration issues, on different types of Cisco routers, Lucent APX's, MAX's, and Nortel CVX's.
Troubleshooting consists of isolating problems through head to head testing with different Telco's. Also
responsible for creating, troubleshooting, and closing tickets in a group ticketing queue. Demonstrated strengths
in ̂ e areas of interpersonal skills and negotiation.

EDUCATION

2000 NH Community Technical College
I994']998: Dover High School
Other: Weatherization written and field certification, Department of Energy Quality Control Inspector
Certification, multiple national and regional weatherization best practices trainings. Intro to Cisco routers, T1 and
T3 design and troubleshooting training, ATM and Frame Relay network design training, LAN and WAN
training, 0C3, CX>48, and OC192 design and troubleshooting training, BPI Energy Analyst. Lead contractor
abatement Certification, RRP certification, OSHA 30 hour worker safety, DOE Lead Safe Weatherization
certification.

© SKILLS

Problem solving

New Business Development

Social Media

Public Speaking

Data Analysis/Analytical thinking
Strategic Planning

Operations Management

Contract Negotiations

Team and Relationship building

Planning and forecasting

Budget and Financial management
Leadership

Community Assessment

Computer skills specific to job include,
TREAT, NEAT, OTTER, FAP/EAP
Microsoft 365, PowerPoint, Outlook,
Word, Excel, Web, EmpowOR and CSST
and many others that can be beneficial.

o ACTIVITIES/ACCOIVIPLISHMENTS
•  Numerous press articles related to Weatherization including visits fh)m the Assistant Secretary of Energy

Efficiency from the Departaenl of Energy and Vice President Joe Biden.
•  Member of the City of Nashua Healthy Homes Strategic Planning Committee.
•  Member of the City of Manchester Healthy Homes Shutegic Planning Committee.
•  Union Leader 40 undo-40 Class of 2015. /

•  Vice President of the Neighbor helping Neighbor Board.

•  Member of the Energy Efficiency and Sustainable Energy Board.

•  Member of tbe Residential Ratqiayers Advisory Board.



JAMES M. CHAISSON

SUMMARY

Dedicated accounting professional with 8 years, of non-profit experience and over 20 years of broad
experience in manufacturing dl^rlbution; reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, sales/operations
planning/forecasting and establishing & monitoring performance metrics In a manufacturing environment.
Experienced In private and public corporations, including 8 years in a private equity environment with a strong
focus on equity sponsor communication and liquidity management. Complete knowledge of P&L, balance
sheet, cash flow and cost accounting. Proven skills at staff (eadership> training and development jn a team
environment. Professional Experience:
•  Fiscal Officer In nonprofit organization
•  Controller in MF6 & Distribution

•  Treasury and Cash Flow Management

•  Financial 8i Capital Budgeting, Reporting 8( Control

•  Cost Accounting Manager

•  General Accounting Manager

•  Business Performance Metric Establishment and Measurement

PROFESSIONAL EXPEIRENCE

Southern New Hampshire Services^ Manchester, NH 5/20P9-Present
Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS) Is a non-profit entity dedicated to helping people help themselvesi
SNHS accomplishes this through a variety of programs offered at centers, offices, clinics, and intake sights
located throughout Rockingham and Hiilsborough counties. The agency also oversees 29 housing facilities
with approximately 1000 tenants. SNHS receives and admlrijsters $.36 million In program funds annually with
over 450 employees.

Chief Fiscal Officer 1/2017 to Present
•  Oversee financial and accounting compliance, maintaining controls and managing potential business

risks

• Manage the annual budget process and anaiysis activities
•  Prepare presentation for Board of Directors meetings presenting the organization's financial results
•  Develop and maintain banking relationships

• Manage the Annual Audit process

Senior Accountant 5/i20C9-l/2017
Assisted Fiscal Director In overseeing all fiscal and financial activities including compliance with federal, state,
and funding source requirements as well as accordance with GAAP
•  Developed and implemented indirect cost calculation and interfaced with General Ledger
• Monitored and prepared monthly budget vs actual reporting; recornmended adjustments and forecast

spending

•  Created specialized reports for the individual grant's reporting requirements
•  Designed allocation methods for properly billing shared items to individual grants and programs
•  Prepared monthly agency program reviews for Fiscal Director's Board of Directors review



James M. Chais^n

WOdD STRUCTURES, INC. Biddeford, ME 2001-4/2009
WSI^ is a highly leveraged busihew owned by Roark Capital, a private equity fund, headquartered in Atlanta,
GA. WSI is a $70 milljon rnanufacturer of roof and floor trusses, wail panels ahd a distributor of engineered
wood products. The company's products are sold into the residential and light commercial construction
marked

Controller 20,06-4/2009
Managed ait aspects of accouritirig and reporting in a truss manufacturing plant as well as an engineered wood
products distribution loMtio.n that included 2 locations in Maine and 1 in Massachusetts.
•  Caicuiated and assisted in the management of the company's covenants
• Worked closeiy with senior management during the sale process from the.seiler" (Harbour GrOup) and

buyer (Roark Capital)

•  Identified cbst drivers and implemented process changes to reduce the monthly closing cycle from 18
to 5 days

•  Conducted monthly reviews with the managers on financial results and measurement
• Oversaw the payroll function of 160+ employees

Accounting Manager 2001-2006
Recruited to company to restore financial controls and establish best practices concerning both general ledger
and cost accounting processes; Responsible for overseeing the accounting of 2 locations in Maine and 1 in
Alabama.

•  Established the reporting prbtocois 0f the company used by both equity sponsors
•  Educated^ motivated and developed a staff of 3 to succeed in their rolls of financial responsibility
•  IdentiRed and Implemented processes and procedures for ail intercompany sales, transfers,

consolidation and eliminations
•  Streamlined the payrpll process that included transferring to an external supplier (ADP), which reduced

cost by 40%

•  Conducted physical Inventories and defined their policies and procedure at all locations.

VISHAY SPRAGUE, Sariford, ME 1978-2001
Vishay Sprague Is a division Of Wshay Intertechnology Inc. (NYSEL VSH) a global manufacturer of discrete
semiconductors and passive electronic components. The Sprague Division manufactures solid tantalum
capacitors with annual sales of $200 million and. MOO employees.

Plant Cost Accounting Manager 1997-2001
Division Genercil Accountina Mariaaef 1995-1997
Division dperotlon Accountant 1989-1995
Division Fixed Asset Accouhfo/iit 1987-1989
Master Cnaineehna Techniclah 1984-1987
Lead Production Technician 1978-1984

EDUCATION

NASSON COLLEGER, SpringVale, ME
B.S. In Business AdrhlnistratiOn



Sara Sacco

Professional Experience

Workforce development Director. Manchester, NH September 2023 - Present
Southern New Hampshire Services, Incorporated
•  Oversee the administration and performance of the agency's workforce development programs, including WIOA

Adult, NHEP, English for New Americans, WIOA Plus, VIP, and other workforce development grants
•  Develop and maintain partnerships with NH employers, stakeholders, and partner agencies
• Adhere to contractual requirements for various funding sources
• Monitor program compliance with performance standards set by federal program guidelines
• Write and respond to RFPs
•  Develop and forecast budgets
•  Recruit, hire, train and manage staff
• Administer annual performance reviews of Program Managers

WIOA Outreach Coordinator. Manchester, NH January 2022 - September 2023
Southern New Hampshire Services, Incorporated
•  Supervise, assist, and train workforce development staff for the VIP/WIOA Adult grant
•  Developed a new group enrollment strategy to enroll historically marginalized populations into WIOA Adult
•  Participate in job fairs and outreach events either in-person or online using Zoom, Teams, Remo, etc. to increase

program awareness and represent all SNHS programs
• Maintain and develop collaborative relationships with all SNHS programs, all NH Community Action

Partnerships, local NH businesses, community-based organizations, and partner agencies to increase customer
enrollment

•  Created and maintained VIP Outreach and Participant tracking using Excel
• Monitor and analyze data and reports for continuous improvement utilizing the.NH Works IMS
•  Perform technical assistance along with best practices with the goal of process improvement
•  Utilize Microsoft Office Suite; Teams, Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Outlook, SharePoint, Forms, and Adobe PDF

WIOA Statewide Career Navigator. Manchester, NH September 2017 - January 2022
Southern New Hampshire Services, Incorporated
•  Provided employment counseling and case management services to WIOA participants statewide
•  Enrolled Adult, Dislocated Workers, and NHE customers to develop individualized training and employment

plans
•  Provided job placement services leading to successful employment outcomes and retention
•  Provided statewide field support coverage for special projects and initiatives including job fairs and Rapid

Responses
• Determined eligibility and assessed customer's skills, aptitudes, and barriers using a variety of tools and tests
•  Conducted required follow-up procedures for exited customers

WIOA Job Placement Specialist. Manchester,NH August2016-September2017
Southern New Hampshire Services, Incorporated
•  Prepared and executed training-related OJT contracts
•  Developed training outlines based on employee's skill gaps
•  Executed business outreach activities for the purpose of matching workers with employers for the OJT

opportunities including attending job fairs Md networking meetings throughout New Hampshire
•  Conducted follow-ups with employers to identify and remediate issues and concerns ̂ d discuss future hiring

needs



STORE Manager. Epping, NH November 2014 - August 2016
Rae21, Incorporated
• Managed a store team of approximately 10 associates and 3 managers
•  Forecasted sales using KPls
•  Demonstrated exceptional customer service while driving and maximizing store sales to achieve goals
•  Established associate work schedules while budgeting and managing payroll
• Motivated and coached associates and managers to achieve their maximum potential while providing company

tools to further develop performance
•  Partnered with the new store opening team to implement and coordinate mariceting initiatives by grand opening
•  Executed company directives for compelling visual presentations and merchandising efforts
• Modeled a "Whatever it takes" kind of attitude

Education

B.S. IN Business administration, option in Marketing

University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH
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March 28, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Approved by the Governor
and Gbunclj On 4- I2 10H
Aflendaltem Ak

Cons-diif icikndar
?o \mi7o

Authorize the NH Department of Employment Security (NHES) to amend an existing contract
between NHES and Southern NH Services (SNHS), VC#177198, by reassigning the contract from
NHES to theNH Department of Business and Economic Affairs, OfTice of Workforce Opportunity
(BEA/OWO), with no change to the price limitation, effective upon Governor and Council
approval through June 30.2024. The original contract was approved as Item t^37 by the Governor
and Council on December 18,2020. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for Fiscal Year 2023 and are anticipated to be
available in Fiscal Year 2024, upon continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budget with the authoriQ' to adjust encumbrances tetween fiscal years within the price limitation
through the Budget Offtce, if needed and Justified.

03-22-22-220510-14530000, Office of Workforce Opportunity

102-500731 Contracts for Program Scr> iccs

EXPLANATION

FY2023 FY2Q24

$839,241.23 $220,000.00

Amendment H1 to the Memorandum of Understanding between BEA/OWO and NHES regarding
federal workforce programs is intended to provide for the transfer of responsibilities for
overseeing the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) Adult Program from NHES
to BFA/OWO. In furtherance of this intent, and to achieve greater efliclencies in administration,
the contract between NHES and SNHS for the delivery of WlOA Adult program services must
also be assigned to BEA/OWO.

The contract with SNHS Is a three and one-half year cost-reimbursement contract for services to
ensure program continuity. For major WlOA service contracts, efficiency in operations is a
paramount policy consideration, as disruption in service would adversely aBect program

HUES is a proud member ofAmerica's Workforce Network and NH IVorJcs. NHES is on Equal Opportunity Employer arxd complies
with the Americarm with Disabilities Act. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request of mdiwduals unth disabilities

Telephone {603} 224-3311 Fax {603} 228 4145 TDD/ TTY Access: Relay NH I-800-735-2964 Weh site: www.nhes.nKgov



cliencele. Pui>d$ are allocated for opsrating a standardized program that requires significant
training and program management ex^ence and understanding, As reflected In Amendment #1
to the MOU, BEA/OWO v^l now be responsible for overseeing the direct delivery of WIOA
Adult program services and WIOA monitoring and reporting functions without an intermediate
love! of program administration by NHES.

In the event Federal fonds become no longer available, General fonds will not be requested to
support this contract,

The Attorney Generafs Office has reviewed and approved this contract as to form, substance and
execution.

Respeotfolly submitted, Respectfully submitted,

^/WvV^lWVV
George N. Copadis Taylor Caswell
Commissioner CommissicHier

NH Employment Security Business and Economic Affairs



AgpycnMmr awp AsgyMmorf AgiwBwm mQmms.
CONTRACT wrro SOUTHERN NH SERVICES. INC. fSWHS^ fVC#177198^

This Assignmeatfltul AssumpUos AgreemoilCAsslgnmenO Ismadoasoflhis
SSrday of Moroh, 2023 (the "BfTccUvc Dftte^, by and among New Hampshire Depvtment of
Business and Economic Af&in C'BEA") CAssIgeeo**) end New Hampldtire Employmenl

Security CT^HES") CAssignoO-

RECITALS

WHEJUQAS, BBA/OWO andNt^ entered into a Memorandum of UndersUnding
C*MOU") regarding (he oversight end delivery of Workforce (iinovatlon and Opportoolty Act

C*W[OA") PfOgrani services, in part to transfer oversight and management of certain W^A
employment programs from BBA to NHES, as approved by (he Governor end Executive Council

on September 23,2020 (O&C Item 0SS);

WHBREASk the MOU located immediate oversight ofAduh Program Services to

NHES, which included NHES and BEA/OWOJointly Issuing a request for proposal for Ae
delivery of program services, and NHES executing dm subsequent service contract ̂ th 8NHS,

as approved by theOovemcr end Executive Coundl on IDecember 18,2020 (G&C tlcfh 037).
payable on a cost reimbursement basis, with e not-to-excced amount of $5,900,000.00, for a term
beginning on that date end terminating June 30, ̂ 4;

WHEREAS, Amendment 01 to the MOU (*Amendtnen(*7 reallooates rcspansibUitles (br

oversight of the Adult Program from NHES to fiBAA>WO, and thus requires asslgnmenl ofthe
SNHS Adult Program services contract from NHES to BEA/OWO; and

WHEREAS, as ofthe Elective Date, NHES desires to transfer all of its Interest, rights,

and obligations In and to the SNHS Adult Program services contract to BBA/OWO, and
BEA/OWO desires to assume all obligations of Assignor under the SNHS Aduh Program
services contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration ofthe fbregolng and for other good end valuable

consideration, the suflicleacy of which Is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as

follows;

PageiofS



ASSIONMENT OP AGREEMENT

1. As of the Effcctlvt I>8te» Asslgitor NHBS hereby assigns and transfen unto Assignee
BEA/OWO, all of Assignor's iatcrc^ rights and obllgalions In end to the SNHS Adult

.  Program services contract to Assignor.

2. BBA/OWO hereby unconditionally assumes and agrees to perform any and all of tipn
obligations and liabilHies ofKHBS under the SNHS Adult Program services contract
accruing from and after the Effective Date.

3. As of the Bffactfve Dal^ all references to NHES as used in the SNHS Aduh Program
services contract shall refer to BEA/OWO.

4. All invoices from SNHS relative to the Adult Program services contract dated after the
Effoctlve Date shall be sobmhted to BBA/OWO for payment.

5. Except as modified by this Assignment, the SNHS Adult Program services contract shall
remain in forca and affbct In accordance with its terms.

6. SNHS has been provided notice ofand has no objection to the Assignment, as Indicated
by their signature below.

7. This Assignment shall be effective on the dale ofOovernor and Executive Council
approval.

{Signatures on nexl page)

PageZlof3



Ne^v j^mpshlroEmpIoymeni Sectirily

George N. CopadU.

Commissioner

,New Hampsbirt Deparimcot of Boslness and Economic Affairs .

■  D.ic: VZOnOti
TaylorCaswdl

ConunUsioner

AduKmde^meat of Assignment by
lonthero NB Services, Inc.

^  Date;
itlee Lczeau

B^^tiveDiFoitor

OfGce ofihe Attorney General

Approved for Fonn, SubsUnoo; end Bxccutfon by:
Assist^rtl Attorney Oenerel

Approved byttte Governor and Council on , 2023, Ran ,

ATTEST:

.Scorctaiy ofState

Page3of3



New Hampshire
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OlfOKOE N. COPMM, CotwawMW

RjCHARD J. LaVERS, Dvurr CiMWiSMORM

APMimSTRATIVE OFFICE
45 South Fwrr Strbst

Concord, NH 03301-4857

December 2,2020

a. •

G&C Passed

12/18/2020 #37

His ExceJlency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
^te Houra
Concord, New Htmpshire 03301

REOUESTtOAClJON

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Employment SecuriQ' (NHES) to enter into a contract for
serviocs with Southern NH Services, Inc. (SNHS) (VC«I77I98) 40 Pine Street, Manchester NH, for
$5,9P0,0(M. for the delivery of Workforce Innovation and OpportuniQr Act (WlOA) Adult Program services
effective January 1,2021 thrcKqd) Jum 30,2024 upon Governor and Council approval. The United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) funds this program. 100% Federal funds.

Federal funds available for these services will be expended as follows, contingent upon availability and
continued appropriations for fiscal year 2021 forward with the authority to adjust encumbrances between
State fiscal years through the Budget Office if needed and justined:

02-27-27-270010-6040 DEPT OF EMPLOYMENT SECUUH

10-O270O-8CU00000 • 102-500731 ControcI for Program Servicoi

EXPLANATION

State Fbcai Year

mi 2022

$1,475,000 $1,475,000

2023 2024
I

$1,475,000; $1,475,000

This contract between NHES and SNHS for the delivery of WlOA Aduh program services is in response
to Request for Proposal (RhT) #WIOA-ADULT-0l-0S-26-2020, which was Issued jointly by NHES and
the New Hampshire Department of Business and Economic Affairs (BEA) on August 27, 2020. BF.A Is
the State grant recipient for WlOA federal funds awarded by the USDOL. NHES is the sub-recipient of
the grant funds pursuant to an MOU between BRA and NIIES. The State Workforce Innovation Eloard
(Board) Is the oversight body established in federal regulation to oversee the appropriate use of WlOA
federal funds received by BEA.

Four organizations submitted proposals prior to the RfP closing deadline. A sub-committee of the Board
served as the RFP review panel. The following Board members served on the RFP review committee:

• Mr. Dave Cioffl-Former Small Business Owner

• Ms. Kelly Clark - AARP NE Regional Director
• Mr. John Hennessey - Littleton Coin Company, Inc.
• Mr.MichaelSomcrs-Presldcm&CEO.Ncw|lampshircLodging& Restaurant Association
•  Bonnie St. Jean, BEA/OWO Program Administrator served as staff to the review committee

NUBS u a proud member ofAmtrica's Workforce Network ond NH Worke. NHES Is an Equal Opportunity Employer and compbet
uMtb the Americans with Disabilities Act Auxiliary aids and sensces are auoilobia upon request of indiutduals with tlUsabUides

Tciephone (603) 224-33} I Fax (603) 228-4145 TDD/TtV Access: Retay NH 1-800-735-2964 Web site: www.nhes.nh.gou



Tbe evaluation scoring was as follows:

SECTION RANGE OF POINTS

Aduli Proeram Services 0-35

Demonstrated Abiiity & Past Ptrfonhance 0-20

Conflict of Interest 0-05

Budftet 0-40

Total Points 100

The four organizations* proposals were reviewed* scored by the review committee end raoked as follows:

VENDOR RANK

Southern NH Services 1

Adams and Associates. Inc. 2

Abor BdtT. LLC d/b/a Eouus Worldbrce Solutions 3

Grant Associates 4

In executing its responsibilities for WlOA Adult Program fbods* tbe Board, through BEA ond NHfiS,
designates specific operation.Bl and fiscal responsibilities for WlOA fimds to SNHS through this contract
agreement As a condition of (his sgreeraeot, SNHS assumes responsibUity for the specific operational*
fiscal* end monitoring responstbiliries outiin^ in the contract for tbe purpose of delivering services to
WiOA eligible custonoers* and agrees to cany out these duties consistent with all the conditions end tenns
ofthis contract* and all Of^icable federal and state laws, regulations, and requirements.

This is a three end one-balf year cosHeimlmrsemcnt contract for services to ensure program continuity.
For mqjor WlOA seivloe contracts* efflelency in operation (s a paramount policy consideration for the
Board* as disriiptiofl in service would adversely effect program clientele. Funds are allocated for operating
a standardized program that requires signincant training end program management experience and
understanding, along with sufficient resources to reimburse the state for any disallowed costs incurred as a
result oferrotteous dtgibility determinations.

In the event Federal fbnds become no longer available, General funds will not be requested to support this
contract

Tbe Attorney General's Office has reviewed and approved this contract as to form, substance and execution.

Respectfblly submitted*

George N.Copadis
Commissioner
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT SECURITY (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants end egaes that all funds received by the
Contrary under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to
elJotble Individuals and, In the furtherance of the afores^ covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants
and eoraes as foOowa:

1  Compitanoe with Federal end Stats Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to dalarmlne the ellglbfllty
of individuals such el^blllty determination ahaB be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, ord^, guidelines, pdides and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Etlgtollity determlnatjons shall t>e made on forms andAx
case management systems provided by the Department of Employment Security (NHES) for that
purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are presolbed by NHES.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determinafon forms required by NHES, the Contractor shall
maintain a data foe on each recipient of services hereunder, which fBe shall hdude all jnformatfon
necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as NHES requests
particulariy for data validation purposes. The Contractor shall furnish NHES with ell forms and
documentation rogardlno eligibility determinations and services that NHES may request or reqube.

4. Grievance Procedures/Customer Complaints: The Contractor understands that all applicants for
services hereunder. as well as individuals declared Inellglbie have a right to a fair hearing regarding
that determination. The Contractor hereby covenants end agrees that all applicants for services
shall be permitted to f3l out an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be
informed of his/her right to a fair hearing in accordance with the required grievance policy.

a. The Contractor shall ensure that all applicants for WlOA funded services receive a written
grievance procedure notice, and that a signed copy attesting to the receipt of this Information Is
Included In each applicanfs herd copy file.

b. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel funded with WlOA funds are trained In the
grievance policy and procedure applicable for the funding source su^^orting this contract
agreement

c. The Contractor shall ensure that the NHES EO Officer Is informed immediately of any formal
grievance filed by a program applicant or participant.

d. The Contractor shall respond either verbally or In writing to any complaint that does not constitute
a formal grievance wtthfn two days from receipt of such complaint.

6. OratutUes or Klckbacfcs; The Contractor agrees that It Is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or oftor of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit B of this
Contract The State may lerimlnate this Contract end any sub-contract or sub-agreement If It Is
determined that paymento, gratuities or offers of employmenl of any kind were off^ad or received
by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor/Sub-Contractor.

Psgc I of 4 Contfoetof WtJafi:.
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6. Retroaetfve Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrBry contained In the Contract or in
any oth^ document, contract or understanding. It Is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments wOl be made hereunder to reimburM the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to eny indivlduel prior to the Effective Date of the
Contract and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services
provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise
provided by the federal regulattons) prior to a determination that the IrKlividua] Is eligible for such
services.

7. Maintenance of Records: In eddttion to the digibllUy records spedfled above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the followtng records during the Contract Period:

a. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents arui other data evidencing and reftecUng aO costs
and other expenses Inourrod by the Cont/eotof In the performance of the Contract, arto eD
income recall or cofleded by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
rhaintalned in eooordarwa wtth accounting procedures end practloes which sufflctently and
property reflect ell such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to NHES. and to Ir^ude.
without limltaUon. an ledgers, books, rapords. and originai evidence of costs such as purchase
requisitions and orders, vouchers. requistUons for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind
contHbutions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by NHES.

b. Statistical Records: Statistical enrollment, attendance or vIsR records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Pertod. wHch records shall inciude an records of appOcation
end eliglbfllty (Including aO forms required to determine eliglbllty for each such recfoient).
records regartSng the provision of service and ail invoices sutxnittad to NHES to obtain payment
for such services.

c. Record Retention: Comptele paper ("hard copy*) participant files shall be maintained by the
contractor for no less than three years as required under federal regulation. NHES may require
the retention of hard copy fBes for up to six years, if the parlidpent (Be Is selected for a data
validation review or other formal audits. The Contractor shall not de^y any participant fHes
wtthout written permission from NHES.

6. AudH: Contractor shall submit an annual audit report to NHES within 60 days after the
dose of the agency fiscal year. The report must be prepared In accordance with the
provisions of the Office of Management and Budget Super Ctrcuiar. 'Audits of States. Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Or^nizations' and the previsions of Standards for Audit of
Governmental OrganlzBtlons, Pregrams, ActivlUes and Functions, issued by the US General
Accounting Office (GAO starKlards) as they pertain to finandal compllanoe eudita.

a. Audit and Review: Durtog the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder.
NHES, the United States Department of Labor, and any of their designated representatives shall
ha^ access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

b. Audit Liabilities: In eddttion to and not In any way In limitation of pbligatiorts of the Contract. It
is understood and agreed by the Contractor Ihat the Contractor s^ be held liabte for any state
or federal aildN exbeptiofts and Shan return to NHES, all payments made undv the Contact to
which exception has been taken or wti]^ have been disallowed because of such an exce(^n.

9. ConfldantlaUty of Records; The Contractor agrees to maintain the confidentialtty of any
inflation regardir^ participants and their Immediate femiliea that niay be obtained through
ap(dicatk>n forms. Interviews, testa, reports from pubic 8ger)de8 or counselofs, or any other source.
Without the permission of the applicant/participant such Information shall be digged only as
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necessary tor purposes related to the performance or evaluation of Ihis aoreement. and to persons
having responsibOHies imder the agreement.

a. The Contractor is responsible for taking reasonable steps to ensure the physical security of such
data under Its control.

b. The Contractor Is responsible for ensuring each of Its employees, vendors or sub^redplents
having any Involvement with personal data or other confidential Information ere Informed of the
laws and regulations relating to confidentiality, including but not limited to RSA 282-A:116-121.

c. Each employee funded through this contract agreement shaD be required to sign a confidentiality
statement, wtdi^ shall be maintained in local personnel files.

10. Reports: Program and Fiscal: The Contractor agrees to submit the foOowIng reports at the
following times andtor If requested by NHES.

a. Quarterly Progress Reports: Wrftten reports containing a detailed description of all planned
verses actual program pertormance to the date of the report and containing such other
information as shall be deemed satisfactory by NHES to justify the rate of paymerrt hereunder.
Such Reports shall be submitted on a form deemed satisfectory by NHES.

b. Annual Report An annual report shall be submitted within sixty (60) days after the end of each
program year covered under this Contract The Report shall be In a form satisfactory to NHES
and Shan contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated In the
Pr(^)Osal end other information required by NHES.

11. Completion of Servlcet: The Contractor wID be legally obl^ted to turn over complete data files In
the specified electronic format, as weO as hard copy case files, to NHES at the time that the
Contractor ceases to operate the program/project funded through this contract agreement.

12. Credlta: AD documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
durir^) or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall Include following
statement:

The preparation of this (report document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New HampsNre, Department of Employment Securtty, wfth funds provided by BEA/OWO
end Unlt^ States Department of Labor.

13. Veterans'Priority Provisions: The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the'Jobs for
Veterans Act* (JVA), Public Law 107-268 (36 USC 4215), as Implemented by the Final Rule
published on December 19. 2008 at 73 Fed. Reg. 76132. The JVA provides priority of service to
veterans and spouses of ellgtble veterans for the receipt of employment training, and placemeni
sarvices. Agreement by a program operator to implement priority of service is a condition of receipt
of DDL tonds.

14. Buy American Nctfco Requirement: To the greatest extent practicable, end the extent to which
purchases are allowable In this agreement, the Contrector agrees to purchase American made
equipment and products. (See WlOA Section 505—Buy American Requirements).

15. Salary and Bonus Limitations: Incompilancewllh Pub. L. 111-117 (Division D, sec. 107), noneof
the funds made available under this agreement shall be used by the Contractor, or sub-recipient of
the Contractor to pay the salary and bonuses of an Individual, either as direct costs or indireci costs,
at a rate In excess of Executive Level II.
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16. Int«ll«ctual ProfMrty Rights: The Federal Government reserves a paid-up, nonexdusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce. puUish or otherwise use. and to autoorize others to use for federal
purposes: 1} the copyright in all products developed with WlOA funds, Indudlng a sub-grant or
contract under the Contractor; and 11) any rights of copyright to which the Contractor purchases
ownership with WlOA funds (indudlng but not limited to curricula, training models, technical
assistance producto, and any related materials). Such uses indude. but are not limited to. the right
to modify and distribute such products worldwide by any means, electronically or otherwise. Federal
funds may not be used to pay any royalty or licensing fee associatad with such copyrighted material,
atthough they may be used to pay costs for ot>taln!ng a copy which b limited to the developer/seller
costs of cop^r^g and shipping, if revenues are genereted through selling products developed with
Contract funds. Indudlng Intellectual property, these revenues are program income. Program
Income is added to the Contr^ and must be ejq>^ed for ailowable Cmtract ̂ Mties.

17. Mandated Data Entry Systm: The Contractor wDl be legaOy obligated to enter data required by
NHES and/or the US Department of Labor, relating to all pariidpants served during the contract
period In the case management system mandated by NHES/OWO (I.e.. Geographic Solutions for
WlOA services). Contractors ehafl be responsible for Keeping participants fUes up-to-date, espedaOy
in time to meet quarterly reporting deadline requirements.

18. Disallowed Costs: The Contractor wfil be solely responsible for paying NHES any and all disallowed
costs associated with the misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on partidpants
who were erroneously determined to be eilgibie for services. Disallowed costs may not be paid with
any other fed^

19. Rights to Inventiena Made Under a Contract or Agreement (K applicable): Contractor agrees to
comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401. "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit
Organizations and Small Business Rrms Under Government Grants. Contracts and Cooperative
Agreements." and any Implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

20. Clean Air Act and the Pedenil Water Pollution Control Act fif aoDllcabie): For contracts in
excess of $160,000, the Contractor agrees to compty with all appilcabie standards, orders or
regulattons issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal
awarding agency end the Regional Office of the Envlronmenta! Protection Agency (EPA).

21. Byrd Anti-Lebbying Amendment For contracts In excess of $100.0CN3. the Contractor certifies it
will not end has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for
Influencing or attempting to Influence an offiw or employee of any c^ency, a member of Congress,
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of CorxFess In oonnection with
obtaining any Federal contract grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Ccntrsctbr
must also disctose any lot^ytng with norvFederal funds that takes place In connection with obtaining
any Federal award/contract.
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NH Department of Employment Security (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBIT B

STATEMENT OF WORK

CoAtractor'a Name: Southern New Hampehire Services, Inc.

Contract Period: January 1. 2021 - June 30,2024

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This cost reimbursement agreement for services between Southern New Hampshire Services (SNHS)
end the NH Department of Employment Security (NHES) will be for a term beginning January 1,2021 and
tenninsting on June 30.2024. Total payments under thte agreement shall not exceed $6,000,000.00 and
sh^ be expended conslsterTt with the line Item budget negotiated annually with NH^ upon receipt of
grant funds from the US Department of Labor (USOOt) for each program year covered under this
contract

Funds authorized under this aoraemerd are for the sole purpose of fmplementtng Workforce Innovation
Opportunity Act (WlOA) services for Adults and shall not be used for any purpose other than those
actlvfUes identifted In the Statement of Work outlinad In RFP dWIOA-Adult-01-06-26-2020, Issued August
27, 2020, and In accordance wHh USDOL WlOA program rules and regutations.

As a condition of this agreernent, SNHS assumes rasponsibDIty for the specific operationa). fiscal end
monitoring responsibilities dted In this agreement for this purpose of delivering sendees to WlOA eligible
participants, and agrees to carry out these duties consistent with ell the conditions and terms of this
agreement, as well as all applicable federal and state laws, regulations and requtremants.

In addition, by signtng this agreement SNHS acknowledo^ (he substantial operational level overset
retairted by NHES uifvler this agreement for the duration of the agreement performerKe period.

SNHS shall operate programs funded through WlOA consistent with the policy and procedures approved
by NHES and/or USDOL. and the terms and conditions as specified In RFP #WIOA-Adult-01-0d-26-2020,
which RFP b hereby Incorporated by reference into this cofrtracl agreemenl.

SNHS wRl be responsible for the program responsibilities and deliverables described and specified in
SECTIONS 1 through VI of RFP IS(WI0A<Adull^1 •06-26-2020 and SNHS' September 28,2020 Proposal
fumishad (n response to the RFP.

SNHS ahall develop. ImpiemenL and maintain statewide the WlOA Adull program oonsbtent with WlOA
regulations, NH's WiOA & Wagner-Peyser Stats Plan, the NH Works One-Stop Operators' MOU, and
NHES/BEA/OWO policy and procedures such as. but not limited to. the NH Works Guidance Letters.

In addition, SNHS wlll be responsible for edhering to the terms and conditions specitied In Certiflcatlortt
and Assurances provided at Exhibits D-K of this agreement.

Psgelofl ContTKtor
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NH Department of Employment Security (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

Contractor's Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Contract Period: Jmuary 1,2021 to June 20.2024

1. Subject to the Contractor's compliance with the terms and conditions of this aQreement. and for
services provided consistent w4th Exhibit B • Scope of Services, the Department of Emptoymerrt
Security (NHES) ehall relrhburae the contractor for anowable expenses up to a maximum total
payment of $5,900,000.00.

2. The Contractor In collaboration with NHES administrative staff shall develop a llne-ttem budget for
oost-relmbursemefrt on an ermual basis for each year covered In this egreemern. v^tlch shall be
binding. The contractor shall rtot expend funds In addition or outside of an approved UneJtem budget
for any contract year without written consent from NHES.

3. The total of all approved budgets within this contract period shall not exceed $5,900,000.00 without
wrtnen modification signed by the parties to this agreement and approved by the Governor end
Council.

4. Annual funding amounts disbursed through this contract agreement shall be determined based on
actual WlOA federal awards (Adult program) received for each program year covered urtder thb
agreement, which may be lesa or more than estimated but may not exce^ in the aggregate (he
total maxitnum amount authorized via this contract agreement

5. This contract b funded with federal funds from the US Department of Labor made available urxfer
the Catalog of Federal Domestic Asslstar)ce (CFDA) numb^ 17.2S8 WlOA Adult Program - States
for the pur^e of the delivery of WlOA services to e^glble individuals.

6. Contractor use of funds In thb contract must be in accordence with the Worttforce Innovation
Opportunity Act (WlOA) program assurances. See Exhibit A and related assurances for spedTics.

7. The Contractor must have written authorization from NHES prior to using contract frjnds to purchase
any property or equipment with a cost In excess of $250.00 and with a useful life beyond one^year,
end shall maintain an Inventory of property and equipment either purchased or leased with funds
mede avaHable through this contract.

6. Payments for services urxjer thb contract ere limited to reimbursement for actual expenses Incurred
in ̂  ftilfillment of thb agreement during (he contract period. Reimbursement for expenses incurred
after June 2024 shall not be accepted for payment

9. Expenditures shall be in accordance with an annual line Item budget, which shall be submitted to
NHES for final approval no later than June 30 for each program year covered under thb agreement
In the event that llrie-item budgets are adjusted within a program year, such adjustments shall

tPage I of 3 Contnctor MBala
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excoed the approved administration cost for each program year.

10. The Contractor agrees that all finandal reports shall at a minimum be itemized by administrative,
program arvj NH Works shared cost (MOU) expenses.

11. Invoices must be submitted monthly within 30 days of the end of the previous month and be
submitted m a format consistent with the approved budget The payment of invoices is sut^ect to
receipt liy NHES of required reports as stated In ExhM B - Scope of Services.

12. A final payment request shail be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days after the contract ends.
FaBura to submit the Invoice by thts date couid result in non-payment

13. Invbioes shaO be sent to:

JDl Revels. Business Administrator

Departnwit of Employment Security

45 South Fruit Street

Conoord, NH 03301-4857

Invoices shaD be paid to:

Southern NH Services, Ina

40 Pine Street

Manchester, NH 03103

Attention: James Chaisson. CFO

14. The Contractor shail maintain sufficient documentation on file in their ofTices to support invoices, and
make such documentation avalable for review by authorized NHES staff and/or its auditors.

15. The Contractor shaB report expenditures by program year and will be responsible for achlevfng the
ftoandal performance goal of 100% expenditure of toU funds awarded In this agreement for each
program year tonded (e.g.. July 1 st <>1006 30*^ unl^ otherwise agreed to in wrfilr^ by NHES.

16. NHES reserves the right to request ad hoc financial and/or participant status reports In the event
further information is needed to evaluate program effectiveness as deemed reasonable and
necessary by NHES/BEA/OWO and/or the Stats of New Hampshire.

17. The Contractor shaD adhere to ail cash management policies and procedures stipdatad in the body
of Otis agreement, and ell other applicabie WlOA federal, State and NHES cash management
regulations and pdides, Indudlng quarterty accrual reporting.

16. The Corttractor is solely responsible for paying to NHES any disaOowed costs associated with the
misappropriatiw) of federal flmds and/or costs expended on individuals who were erroneousiy
determin^ to be eligible ifbr WlOA services. Oisaiiowed costs may not be paid with federal funds,
regardtess of the funding source.

kPage2of3 Conwdor WlWt:
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19. NHES reserves the right to Irtcfease and/or decrease contract funds sut^ect to contlnuod availability
of federal funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval try ̂ e Governor and ̂ eoiUve
Council.

20. The Contractor Is prohibited from using federal ftjnds awarded under this contract for the following
items and/of edMties; automobiles; lobbying; real property and Impfovementa; cost of Interest
payments; membership dues; professional license; annual professional dues or fees; finance
charges, late fees or penalties; and depreciation charges. This is not Interi^ to be en all-frwlusive
list, the contractor must review any proposed cost outside of (he approved line Item budget with the
Director for the NH Employment S^rity Employmerit ̂ rvice Bure^.

Page 3 of 3 ConUrtofWH
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NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compty with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified In Se^ns
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
Title 1-6 Workforce Irwestment Act (WlOA) Programs

Contract Period: January 1.2021 through June 30.2024

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or v/l!l be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to ar^ person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employM of a
Member of Congress in connection with \Jne awarding of any Federal contract continuation, renews),
emendment or modification of any Federal contract, grant loan, or cooperative agreement (and by
specific mention sub-grantee or 8ut>-oontractor).

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any pefson for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congrass in
connection with this Federal contract grant loan, or cooperative agre^ent (and by specific
mention sub-grantee or sub-contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form
LLL, (Disclosure .Form to Report Lobbying, in accordance with Its instructions, attached and
identified as Standard Exhibit D-l.)

(3) The urtderaigned shall require that the language of this oefttfication be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that a!) sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered Into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering Into this transaction Imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person wtio fells to file

required certification shaD be subject to a cM) penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
SfQO.OOO for each such failure.

^  Donnalee Lozeau. Executive Director
ctor R^resefitatlfe Signatur^ (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Southern NH Services, Inc. 'mIUkUL I 1^0^
(Contractor Name) '



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBiUTY MATTERS

Tho Contractor tdentified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions aorees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Susperwion, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identmed In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provlstons execute the foliowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitdng this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is
provkfing the certffication set out below.

2. The Inabfltty of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result
In denial of partidpation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certffication or
explanation vrlO be considered in conrrectiori with the NH Department of Employment
Security's (NHES) determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure ctf
the prospectiye primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shaO disqualify
such person from participation in this transaction.

3. The cert^icatlon In (his clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when NHES determined to enter Into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the
prospectlVB prtmary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous cartiTication. In addition to
other remedies avalabte to the Federal Government, NHES may terminate thb
transaction for cause or default

4. " The prospective prtmary participant shall provide immediate written notice to N H E S
to whcm this proposal (contmct) te submSted If at any time the prospective primary participant
learns that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' Ineligible.* lower tier covered
transaction,' 'participant' 'person,' 'primary covered tiansaction.' "prtndpd,' Voposs'.' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used In this daime, have the mear^gs set out In the Definitions
and Covemge sections of the rules implement^ Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76.

6. The prospective prtmary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that should
the proposed co>mred transact^ be erttered into, It shall not knowtngty enter Into eny lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, dedared Ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation In this covered transaction, unless authorized by
NHES.

7. The prospective prtmary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
Include ̂  clause titled "Ceftificatlon Regardlr^ Oebarment Sitepension. Ineliglbillty and



Voluntary Exduston • Lower Tier Covered Transactiorts,' without modification, in all lower tier
covered transactions and in all sollcitaiions for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant In a covered transaction may rely upon a certincation of a prospective
participant In a lower tier covered transaction that It Is not det)arred, suspended, tnellglbte. or
Involuntarfty excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knom that the certlficatjon Is
erroneous. A pertldpanl may decide the method and frequency by wt^ H determines the
ellfi^^jty of Its prindpala. ^ch participant may. but is not required to. check the Non-
procurement Ust (of excluded parlies}.

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require estabiishment of a system of
records In order to render In good faith the certificatioun required by this dause. The
knowledge and Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which Is normaliy
possessed by a prudent person In the ordinary course of buslnoM dealii^.

10. Exo^'for'tiansactiohs authorized uhder^pa^raph 6 of thi^ irstrix^ns, if o ps^ldpant In
a cowed transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transact v^th a person
who is suspended, debarred. Ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this
transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, NHES may
terminate tl^ transaction for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

(1) The prospective prfmary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that It end
Its principais:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
vdunterOy excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (oontract) been convicted of
or had a dvO judgmant rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense In connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public
(Federal. State or local) transaction or a contract under e public transaction; violation of
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, makir^ false statements, or receiving stolen
property;

(c) are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or dvDIy charged by a governmental
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (IXb) of this certiflcatiort; end

(d) have not within e three-year period preceding this appllcaUon/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Fedml, State or local) terminated for cause or defeuft

(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective partidpant shall attach an explar^atlon to this proposal
(contrad).

V/



LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By GigninQ end eubmltting this low«r tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower ber
partidpant. as defined In 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the tiest of Its knowledge and belief that It
and its principals:

(a) are not presently delved, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from partidpailon In this transaction by
any federal department or agency.

(b) wt>ere the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shad attach an explanatkNi to this proposal
(contract).

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that k
will Indu^ this dause entitled 'Certtfication Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Inellgibaity. and
Voluntary Ejtolusion • Lower Tier Covered Transactions.* without morfification in ail loww tier
covered transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

UJJL Donnalee Lozeau. Executive OlrectDr

(Authortzed Contractor Rsprssantstlve Name A TBle}

Southern NH Services. Inc. ijiUnUt
(Corttractor Name)

\iUnLc //;
(Date/

V-



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING

COMPUANCE WITH SECTIONS 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973. as
AMENDED AND AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990

The Contractor identifted In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of
the Contractor's representative as Uentlf^ In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, to execute the following certification;

The Contractor hereby agrees that It will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as amended, and American's with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and all
requirements imposed by the applicable regulations (45 CFR Part 84) and guidelines and
Interpretations issued pursuant thereto.

Pursuant to Subsection 84.6(e) of the regulations (45 CFR 84.5(a)). the Contractor gives
this Assurance In consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal
grants, loans, contracts, (except procurement contracts and contracts of Insurance or
guaranty), property, discounts, or other federal financial assistance extended by NHES
after the date of this Assurance, including payments or other assistance made after such
date on applications for.federal financial assistance that ware approved before such date.
The Contract recognizes and agrees that such federal financial assistance will be
extended in rellar>ce on the representation and agreements made In this Assurance and
that the United States will have the right to enforce this Assurance through lawful nteans.
This Assurance is binding on the Contractor, Its successors, transferees, and assignees,
and the person or person whose signatures appear below are authorized to sign this
Assurance on behalf of the recipient.

This Assurance obligates the recipient for the period during which federal financial
assistance Is extended to It by NHES or, where the assistance Is in the form of real
property for the period provided for In subsection 84.5(b) of the regulation (45 CFR Part
W.6(b)).

Donnalee Lozeau. Executive Director
SlenatuTB) {Authorized Contrector RepresentsUve Name S TlUe)

Southern NH Seivices. Inc.
(Contractor Neme)

V



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBrr G

HFAITH rNSIIRAWrF. PQRTABn.fTY AND ArrOIJNTABn.TY ACT

BIJSrNRSS ASSOQATR AfiBRKMRNT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standees for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Infonnation, 45 CFR Parts 160 andl64 and those
parts of the HTTECH Act applicable to business associates. As defixted herein, **BuslDe8s Associate" shall
mean the Contractor and subcontract on and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information utuier this Agreement and "Covered Entity" shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

BILSnVFAS ASSOCIATE AGRKI

(]) Defiitlrioas.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec.

13400.

b. "Business Aisociate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of
Federal Relations.

d. "Designated Record Set" riiail have the same meaning as the term "designated record set" in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

e. Aggregation" shall have the same meaning as the tenn "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164^01.

f. "Heahh Care ODcrations" shall have the same meamng as the tenn "health care operstions" in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HTTECH Act" means the Health Informatioo Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
Title Xm, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestmoit Act of 2009.

h. "HIPAA" nwipT the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Ports 160,162 and 164.

i. "IndividuaT' pb*n have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.S01(g).



j. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of IndividuaUy Identifiable Health
Infonoation at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HEPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Infonnatioa" shall have the tame meaning as the term *^rotected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or on bdialf of Covered Entity.

I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Dquutment of Health and Human Services or hitOier
destgnee.

0. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Infoirnation" means protected health infonDation that is not secured
by a technology standard that renders protected health information imusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuab and is developed or endorsed by a standards
developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 CJ'.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

(2) Use and DItdwnre of Prnterf^d HmKH Infonntrion

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Infonnatioo
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit B of the
AgreemeoL Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers,
employees and agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
L  For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
0. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth m paragraph d. below; or
ni For d^ aggregation purposes for (be health care operatioos of Covered Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third
party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (0 reasonable
assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further
disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and Cii) an agreement from such third party to nodfy Business Associate, in accordance w^ the
HITECH Act. Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge ofsucb breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide

2
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services ooder Exhibit B of the Agreement, disclose any PHI io response to a request for
disclosure on the basis that it is tequired by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an t^portunity to object to Ae disclosure and to seek appropriate reiief. If
Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business Associate shall refirsin firom disclosing the
PHI "nril Covered Entity has exhausted all remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound
by additional restrictions over end above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such

restrictions and not disclose PHI in violation of such addhicmal restrictions and
shall abide by any additional security eafeguards.

(3) nhllMttoiM ajiA ArtMrta ef Bntlneti Attoclate.

a. Business Associate shall report to die desigDated Privacy OfBoer of Covered Entity, in writing,
any use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security inddenl
involving Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITBCH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402.

b. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy end Security Rule as set
forth in, the HTTECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401, and Sec.13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to die use and disclosure of PHI received fixsn, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining
Covered Entity's conqiUance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Business Associate shall require all of hs business associates that receive, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy tlw PHI as
provided under Section (3) b and (3) k heron. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contrector't business associate agreements with Contractor's
intended bustoess associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights
of enforcement and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health information.

e. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate sh^l make available during normal business hours at its offices ail records, books,
agrfffflten*'?, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of er^ling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance
with the terms of the Agreanent.

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate provide access to PH2 in a Designated Remrd Set to the Covered &tity, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 1M.524.

3

Illljlii-O



g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about en individual contain^ in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shaU make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and
incofporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fUlfrll its obligations under 43 CFR
Section 164.526.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and informatioD related to auch
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individua] for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

i. Within tea (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for
an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity
such infoimatloo as Covered Entity may require to ftdfiil iu obligations to provide an accounting

ofdisclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from
the Business Aisoeiate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward sudt
request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the individual's request to Coveied Entity would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such
law and notify Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

k. Within ten (10) business days of terminsticm of the Agreement, for any itason, the Business
Associate s^l return or d^troy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Associate in ootmectioo with the Agreement, and shall not
retain any copies or back-^ tapes of such PHL If return or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
cootiinte to extend (he protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and
disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the letuni or destruction infeasibte, for so
long as Business Associate maintams such nil. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any oral! PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) OhHwtioM of Covered Entity

a. Coveied Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(8) in its Notice of
Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such chwge or limitation may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall pronqiUy notify. Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
pennissioQ provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Se(^on 164i06 or 45 CFR
Section 164308.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
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disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 4S CFR 164322, to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHL

(5) Termlnarionfer CaMe

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement, the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of
the Business Associate Agreement set forth.herein as Exhi'bit G. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terminate the Agreement or provide an oppoitumty for Business Associate to cure
the alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines
that neither termination nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the violation to the
Secretary.

(6)

a. p^fintHmtg and Re^latorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herem, shall
have the same as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HTTECH Act as
amended fiom time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit G,
to a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended

b. Amendment Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, fiom time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HEPAA, (he Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule end the HITECH Act.

e. SegegatioTL If any term or condition of this Exhibit G or the application themof to any per80&(s)
or drcumstanoe is hdd mvaltd, sudr mvalidity shall not affisct other terms or conditions which
can be given efiect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit G are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit G regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and
indemnification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of tlm Agreement.

}yC
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit G.

Department of Emblevment Security Southern NH.Scrvices. Inc.

The State Agency Name Name of the Contractor

George N, Copadis. Commissioner
Name of Antborized Representative

Do analee Lozeou. Executive Director

Signature of Audiorized Reprtsditative

Name ofAitthoHzcd Re^entative

sture.of Authon^ R^resentative

Date Date

UivLt-f 'ZOlO



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTinCATIONREGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires pzime awardees of
individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awanled op or after Oct<^)er 1, 2010» to
rq>ott on data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more.
If the Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or
over $25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part \T0 {Reporting Sub-award and Executi^fe Compensation b^ormation), the
Department of &iq>!oymeQt Security (NiHES) must report the following infonnation fw any sub-ewartl or
contract award sul^ect to the 17ATA reporting requiremeats;

1) Name of entity
2) Amount of award
3) Funding agency
4) NAICS code for contracts/CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source
6) Award title descriptive ofthe purpose ofthe funding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of perfbnnance
9) Unique idcntifierofthe entity (DUNS#)
10) Total coitq>e]i$ation and names of the top five executives if;

a. More 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govenunent, and those
revenues are greater than S2SM annually and

b. Conqtcosation infonnation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or awiid amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Gencnl Provisions agrees to comply with the inovisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability end Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 {Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections t.ll and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Cenificatioa:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
lent of Employment Security and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal

Financial Accountability^nd Transparency Act.

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director

(Q^n^actor Representatlv|^ignature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

SouthaiiNHSavica,IiK;. })f (imif L ([IdO
(Contractor Name) (Date



FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I ceitify that the responses to the
belo w listed questions are true and eocurate.

1. The DUNS niunberforyoor entity is; 0885S4065

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed ̂ cal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 825,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES NO

If the answer to Ul above b NO, stop here

If the answer to tti above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does (he public have access to information about the compensation of the e;mcutives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78d(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986?

YES NO

If the answer to t/3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above b NO, please answer the followfng:

4. The names and compensation of the five most hi^ly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount

Name; Amount:

Name: Amount:



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT I

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPUCE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identtfied in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sectlona 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1088 (Pub. L. 100-600, Title V, Subtltie D; 41 U.S.C.
701 et seq ), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Provisions to the contract, execute the
fbilowing Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR • CONTRACTORS

Ttte certification Is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Wofkplaoe Act of 1088 (Pub. L 100^, Title V, Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31, 1089
regulations were emended and published as Part (I of the May 25. 1090 Federal Register (pages 21681-
21691), end require certfficatfon by grantees (and by infierence, sub-orantees and sub-contractorsL prior to
av^, that they wQI maintain a drug-free workpiaoe. The oertlflcata set out below Is e material
representation of fact upon which reGance Is placed when the agency evi^rds the grant False certification or
vfoiation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, susper^slon or termination
of grants, or goverrunent wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this fo^ should serxf It to: NH
Department of Employment Security. 45 South Fruit Street, Concord, NH 03i301.

(A) The grantee certifies that It will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by;

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispersing, possession or use of a controlled substartce Is prohibited In the grantee's workplace
and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform emptoyees about—

(1) The dangers of drug abuse In the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;

and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

oocurring in the workplace;

(c) Making It a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that as a condition of
employment under (he grant, the employee wfll—

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement and
(2) Notify the employer In writing of his or her conviction for a vioiation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the w^lace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1
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(e) Nottfying the agency in wrtting, within ten caiendar days after receiving notice under
sut>par^jraph (d)f2) ffom an employee or otherwtse receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, Including position tide,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a centr^ point for the receipt of such notices. Notice
shall Include the Identification numt>er(8) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking, one of the following actions, wllhin 30 calendar days of receMng notice under
subparagraph (dX2). with respect to any employee wtH) Is so convicted—

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehat^itatlon Act of 1073, as
amended; or

(2) Requlrfng such employee to participate satisfactorily In a drug atHJse asslstanoe or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local
health, (aw enforoement, or other appropriate agency;

<g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through Implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b). (c), (d). (e). and (f).

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the sttefs) for the performance of work done in
connection wfth the specific grant.

Place of Performance: NH Works Offices located throughout the Stste; 40 Pine St Marlchester, NH

Period Covsrod by this Certification; From: January 1. 2021 To; June 30,2024

Contractor Name: Southern NH Services, Inc.

Name & TKie of Authorixod Contractor kepresentatlve: Oonnalee Lozeau, Executive Director

Contractor Representative Signature. k■ Lb



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

Every client has the right to privacy and confidentially of his or her record. Information contained in an
individual's case record is designated confidential under state and federal law.

All staff and employees of the Department of Employment Security (NHES), including agencies under contract
with NHES, are under an equal obligation to treat as confidential any information they may acquire, by any
means, about on qjplicant, a recipient or former recipient.

The fact that an individual is a current or past participant in any US Dq)artment of Labor funded program
administered by NHES is considered confidential infonn^on. Information about a client may be shared among
staff of NHES (or contract agency) only as is necessary for the administration of the program(8) from which the
individual is receiving services.

No infonnation is to be shared outside of NHES (or the contract agency) with anyone except with the informed
written authorization of the dient or the person authorized to give consent on the client's bdialf. Clients must
be advised of die infbrmatimi that will be shared and the time period fiiis sharing will take place.

Contract agendes and NHES shall share information with one another that is related to the scrvic6(s) provided
and adminfrrtration of the program as described in the contract without an additional release.

Without a spedfic release, discussions cannot include mentioQ of any client names or facts that would identify
an individual, bformation cannot be given over the phone unless it is given directly to the dient or an
individual whom the dient has designated, in writing, to act in thdr behalf This prohibition applies to police
officers, legislators, lawyers and others v^o assert a need to know confidditia] infbrmatiort All third parties
must provide written authorization of the dient to discuss or receive confidential information.

Breaches of confidentiality will be regarded as a serious offense and grounds for disciplinary acdon.

The contractor agrees to ensure that a signed confidentiality form is placed in the posonnel file of all staff
fbndcd with Workforce limovation Opportunity Act (WIOA) funds.

Southern NH Services, Inc.

Contractor Name

Donnalce Lozeau, Executive Director

ithorized Contractpr R^resentative Name and Title

(

A

zm
orized Contracto^epresentative Signature Dat
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NH Department of Employment Security

EXHIBtTK

WlOA ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS

SNHS, the sub-redplent/contractoo assures and certifies that they wfli comply with applicable WlOA
assurances as implemented:

1. WlOA Statute: Is Incorporated herein as If fully written.

2. WlOA Regulations: are Incorporated herein as if fully written.

3. Federal Standards and Uniform Administrative Requirements for State and local Governments,
Institutions of Higher Education and Other Non-Profit Organizations and 0M6 Super Drcular in effect
January, 2015 are incorporated herein as If fully written.

In addition, all procurement contracts and other transactions must be conducted only on a cost
reimbursement basis. No provision for proRt is allowed. A modified cost reimbursement process,
which aOows for regular estimated payments, b permitted as long as a reconciliation of expenses and
cash drawn b conducted no less frequently than quarterly.

A. WlOA State Policy - SNHS will comply with the terms and conditions of this contract with NHE5 and

the State of New Hampshire WlOA Combined State Plan as said plan applies to the program services
provided by the sub-reclplent/contractor

Further the sub-redpient/contractor shall abide by and follow the directions of the WlOA Policy and
Procedures developed by NHES/BEA as issued and/or ail subsequent WlOA Policy and Procedure
revisions and modifications thereto. Hereinafter, the term WlOA Policy b Induslve of the contract
plan and polides and procedures previously mentioned, unless other^se spedfied.

5. Conflict • In the event that a term or condition of this contract Is Incompatible with WlOA authorizing
legislation, applicable Federal Reflations, and State Policy, then the terms of WlOA shall supersede
that term or condition and govern the performance of the parties under that part

6. Amendments -The sub-redpient/contractor further assures and certifies that If the Federal
Regulations or State Policy b amended, it shall comply with sarrte or notify NHES In writing within 15
days after promulgation of the amendments that It cannot so comply, so that NHES may take such
action as It deems necessary.

It is the responsibility of NHES to notHy the sub-redpient/contractor In writing of any proposed or
promulgated amendments of the Act, Federal Regulations, or State Policy to allow the sub-
redpient/contractor a reasonable time to effect compliance.

7. Other ADollcable Statutes -The sub-reclplent/contractor shall comply with the provblons of the

following legblatlon, or suaessor legislation:

29 CPR Part 37 Nondiscrfmination and Equal Opportunity Requirements

V.



0MB 'Super Qrcular' Audits of States, Locat Governments and NomProftt Organizations
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L 10 1-336,104 Stat. 327,42 U3.C 12101-
12213 and 47 U.S.C 225 and 611)

Hatch Act (S U.S.C. Subsection 1501 -1508 and 7324-7328) which Itmits the polttlcai acttvlttes
of emploYees whose principal employment activities are funded In whole or In part with
Federal funds

Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation Act
of 1970 as amended (P.L91-616)

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794,29 CFR Part
32], which prohibits discrimination agalr\st qualified Individuals with disabilities;
Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Subsection 1681-
1683, and 168S and 1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex In educational
programs

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 as amende (42 U.S.C. Section 101-6107), which prohlblU
discrimination on the basis of age;

Title VI of the CMI RighU Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352 / 29 CFR Part 31), as amended, which
prohibits discrimination on the bases of race, color and national origin
Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (P.L 92-255) as amended
Oavis-Bacon Act (40 USC. Subsection 276a to 276a-7) regarding labor standards for federally
assisted construction sub- agreements

Copeland Act (40 U5.C Subsection 276C and 18 U.S.C. Subsection 874) regarding labor
standards fer f^eralfy assisted oonstruaion sub-agreements
Contract Wortt Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C Subsections 327-333) regarding
labor standards for federally assisted construction sub-agreements
Occupational Safety and Health Act including State and Federal law which are applicable to
sfmllarty employed employees of the same employer who are not participants In programs
under WIOA.

Implementation of the Priority of Service pro^sions of the Jobs for Veterans Act (73 fed. Reg.
78132)

Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), prohibits
discrimination against all Individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion,
sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, arrd
gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, or
political affiliation or belief, or against beneficiaries on the basis of cither citizenship status or
participation in any WIOA Title I- financially assisted program or activity; and
Comply with 29 CFR part 38 and all other regulations Implementing the laws listed above.

8. Political Activities - The sub-reclplent/contractor shall not provide financial assistance for any program
under this Act, which Involves the following political activities;
•  No participant may engage in any political activities during hours for which the participant Is

paid with funds under the Act.

•  No partidpant may, at any time engage In any political activities In which such participant
represents himself/herself as a spokesperson of any program under this Act.

•  No participant may be employed or out stationed in the OfTice of a member of Congress, of a
state or local legislator or on any staff of a legislative rommlttee.
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•  No participant may be employed or out stationed in the immediate office of any chref-«lected

executive officiBl (or officials, if the office of chief executive is shared by more than one
person) of the State or unit of general local government, except that
•  SutH'ecipient/contractors In rural areas may employ participants in such positions

provided that docun>entatlon Is presented to and approved by NHES which makes clear

that such positions are non-political; and

• Where positions are technically In such office, but are actually program activities not in

any way involved In poilticai functions, documentation attesting to the non-political
nature of the position Is to be provided to NHES for approval prior to enrollment of
participants in such positions.

•  Sub-reclplent/contractors shall develop safeguards to ensure that participants placed In these
positions are not involved In political activities.

9. Nepotism - No individual may be placed In a WtOA employment activity if a member of his/her
Immediate family Is engaged In an administrative capadty for the employment agency.

To the extent that an applicable State or local legal requirement regarding nepotism Is more restrictive
than this provision, such State or local requirement shall be followed.

"Administrative capacity" Includes those persons who have overall administrative responsibility for a
program. Including: all elected and appointed officials who have any responsibility for the obtaining
of and/or approval of any grant funded under the Act, as well as other officials who have Influence or
control over the administration of the program, such as project directors, and persons who have
selectton, hiring, placement or supervisory responsibilities for participants.

"Immediate family" means wife, husband, son, daughter, mother, father, brother, brother-in-law,
sister, sister-in-law, son-ln- law, daujghter-ln-law, mother-in-law. father-fn-law, aunt, uncle, niece,

nephew, step-parent and step-children.

10. Political Patronage • The sub-redplent/contractor shall not select, promote, or reject a participant,
vendor, or sub- recipient/contractor based on political affiliations or belief. The selection or
advancement of employees as a reward for political services or as a form of political patronage is
prohibited whether or not the political service or patronage Is partisan In nature.

11. Conflicts of Interest- The sub-recipient/contractor shall be aware of, and abide by, any and all conflict

of Interest policies currently in place, or later established by NHES.

12. Kickbacks • No officer, employee, or agent of any sub-redplent/contractor shall solicit or accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from any actual or potential participant or any of its
potential sub-sub-redplent/contractors.

13. Unionization and Antt-untonlzatlon Acttvitles/Work Stoppages •

•  No funds under the Act shall be used In any way to either promote or oppose unionization.

•  No individual shall be required to join a union as a condition for enrollment in a program
in which only Institutional training is provided, unless such Institutional training Involves
Individuals employed under a collective bargaining agreement which contains a union
security provision.
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•  No participant may be referred to or placed Into, or remain working In any posttfon which
Is affected by labor disputes Involving work stoppage. If such a work stoppage occurs
during the grant period, participants In affected positions must (a) be relocated to

positions not affected by the dispute; (b) be suspended through administrative leave; or
(c) where participants belong to the labor union Involved In the work stoppage, be treated
in the same manner as any other union member except such members must not remain

working in the affected position. The sub-reclplent/contractor shall make every effort to
relocate participants, who wish to remain working, Into suitable positions unaffected by
the work stoppage.

14. Fees - No funds under this Act shall be used for payment of a fee charged to an Individual for the

placement of that Individual In a training or employment program under the Act. The sub-
redplent/contractor shall not charge a fee to any individual for the referral or placement of that

individual in any program.

15. Consultation with Labor Organizations • Any assistance program conducted with funds made available
under this Art which will pro^e services to a substantial number of members of a labor organization
shall be established only after full consultation with such labor organizations.

16. Displacement Funds • provided under this Art shall only be used for activities that are In addition to
those which would otherwise be available In the area In the absence of such funds.

No currently employed worker shall be displaced by any participant (including partial displacement
such as a reduction in the hours of non-overtime work, wages, or employment benefits).

WlOA participants will not be enrolled in employment activities which violate existing contracts for
services or collective bargaining agreements. Where an employment actMty would violate a collective
bargaining agreement, the affected tabor organization and employer must provide written
concurrence before the employer acthrfty can be undertaken.

No participant shall be employed or a Job opening filled: (1) when any other Individual Is on layoff
from the same or any substantially equivalent job within the same organizational unit, or (2) when

the employer has terminated the employment of any regular employee or otherwise reduced Its work
force with the Intention of filling the vacancy so created by hiring a participant whose wages are
subsidized under this Art.

No Jobs shall be created in a promotional line that will infringe in any way upon the promotional
opportunities of currently employed Individuals.

Regular employees or program participants alleging displacement may file a complaint.

17. Financial Management - GAAP shall be used, or In absence of such syrtem, the sub-
recipient/contractor shall maintain a financial and accounting system that provides adequate Internal
controls and records to allow NHES, USOOL, State auditors, etc. to audit and monitor the sub-

recipient/contractor's programs.

•  Bank accounts shall have FDIC coverage.
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•  Funding advances are discouraged. Cost reimbursement is the preferred method. However,

should advances be approved, minimal time between fund requests and expenditures shall
exist, and In NO event shall advances exceed 10% of sub-redpient/contractor's contract.

•  All grant expenditures shall be supported with source documentation such as cancelled

checks, Invoices, etc. Sufficient Internal controls shall exist to prevent fraud and program

abuse.

•  Any person with knowledge of fraud, abuse, or criminal activity shall report such activity to
NHES within three (3) working days of obtaining such knowledge.

18. Program income - The addition method shall t>e required for use of all program Income earned under
WlOA grants.

The cost of generating program income shall be subtraaed from the amount earned to establish the
amount of the program Income avallabie for use under the grants.

19. Regard Retention • The sub-redpient/contractor shall retain all records pertinent to the grant
Including paitldpant, emf^o^e, financial, statistical, and non-expendable property records and
supporting documents for a period of three years beginning on the date of the sub-
recipient/contractor's submlsston of the final report to NHES, or for up to six years If selected for Data
Validation review.

If, prior to the expiration of the three-year retention period, any litigation or audit is begun or a claim

is Instituted involving the grant covered by the records, the sub-redpient/contractor shall retain the
records beyond the three-year period until the litigation, audit findings, or claim has been finally
resolved;

Upon written request of NHES, records with long-term retention value (beyond the six-year period)
shall be transferred to NHES;

The sub-reclpient/contractof shall carry out the destruction or disposal of any or all documentation,
in a manner so as to preserve the confidentiality of said material;

•  Records induding books of account for the expenditure of WlOA funds to enable NHES, the

State, or USOOL to audit and monitor the program.

•  Records concerning each employee and participant involved In a WlOA program. Records shall
provide Information required by NHES and outlined In the contract.

The sub-recipient/contractor shall observe the Federal and State regulatory potides regarding public
access to records and confidentiality of personnel records maintained for a program under this grant.

20. ntle to Property • Title to any and all real or non-expendable personal property received or acquired
by the sub-redplent/contractor under this grant or through use of funds or proceeds from funds
provided under this grant are subject to the terms and conditions of use and disposition as set forth
In WlOA and State surplus property regulations.

21. Relocations - The sub-reclplent/contractor shall not use funds under the Act to assist In relocating
establishments, or parts thereof, from one area to another unless such relocations will not result In
an increase In unemployment In the area of original location or In any other area.
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22. Program Management - The sub-redplent/contractor shall monitor Its programs monthly-
Written policies and procedures shall be established. Implemented, In effect, and followed.
Policies shall Include procedures for collecting performance Information, assessing performance
problems, developing and Implementing appropriate remedial actions, and shall provide descriptions
of each activity and service provided under the contract.

Sufficient management systems shall exist to provide regular and continuous assessment and
monitoring of all program and fiscal systems covered under the contract, as well as grievance and

hearing procedures. Monitoring shall ensure compliance with the Act, federal regulations, state
policy, and any subsequent amendments thereto, and such assessments shall Include any and all
subcontractors. Sub>redpient/contract shall take appropriate corrective actions on any of the at>ove
Issues, If necessary between regularly scheduled reporting dates, written notification of problems,
delays, or other adverse conditions, which rnay materially affect contract performance, shall be
submitted to NHES. Such rtotlflcatlon shall Include a statement of remedial actions taken or

contemplated, and any assistance needed from NHES to resolve the situation. Should favorable
developments or events occur, such infermatlon shall also be submitted to NHES.

The sub-reclplent/contractorshall fully cooperate with authorized NHES and Federal nepresentatives
who visit to review program acoomplishments and/or provide technical assistance.

23. NHES Monitoring and Evaluation of Sub-reclpient/contractors - NHES will periodically monitor,

evaluate and review through on-slte visits, and program administration and managetoent practices
supported with funds under the Act in order to ensure compliance with the Act the Regulations and
the terms of any subcontracts entered into under the contract. Examples of monitored areas are:

•  Reviewing all systems for controlling program administration
•  Reviewing pay records and attendance reports to ensure controls are established for

preventing unauthorized payments
•  Interviewing participants

•  Examining wort sites and work conditions
•  Reviewing plans and procedures and sub-redpient/contractor capability to carry out

programs and activities
•  Monitoring sub-reclplent/contractor maintenance of records on all expenditures of funds
•  Reviewing EEO procedures as applicable

•  NHES will document Its findings and make recommendations for corrective action
whenever It identifies noncompliance with the Act Regulations, or terms of the contract.

•  The sub-redpient/contractor shall review all material submitted to It by NHES and
respond to NHES with respect to the action taken or planned In response to the
recommendations made.

24. Sub-redDlent/CQntractor monitoring • The sub-redpient/contractor is responsible for monitoring all

of Its subcontractors to ensure compliance with:
•  The Act and the Regulations
•  The provisions of its contract
•  The provisions of agreements awarded by it

All monitoring activities shall be appropriately documented and reported to NHES.
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25. Bonding Sub*recipient/contract shall show evidence of a bond (or self-Insured status) for every officer,

director, agent, or employee of the sub-reclplent/contractor or its sub- sub-reclplent/contractors, If
any, authorized to act on behalf of the sub-reclplent/contractor or its sub-sub-redpient/contractors
for the purpose of receiving or depositing funds Into program accounts, or Issuing financial
documents, checks, or other Instruments of payments for program costs. The amount of the coverage

shall be $lb0,CXX).00.

26. Elteibllitv The sub-reclplent/contractor shall establish effective systems to ensure accurate partldpant

eligibility review determinations exist. Changes in ellglbliity status may only be done by designated

eligibility staff. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms and/or case mar^gements systems

provided by NHES for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
NHES.

27. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the contract or In any

other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties

hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the sub-redpient/contractor for costs
Incurred for any purpose or for any services provided to any Individual prior to the effective date of

the contract and no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the sub-redpient/contractor

for any sen/ices provided prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as

otherwise provided by the federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Individual Is eligible

for such services.

28. Documentatton: In addition to the determination forms required by NHES. the sub-

recipient/contractor shall maintain a data file on each redpient of services hereunder, which file shall

indude all Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other Information

as NHES requests, partlcuiarly for data validation purposes. The sub-redpient/contractor shall furnish

NHES with an forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations and sendees that OWO

may request or require.

29. Mandated Data Entrv Systems: The $ut>-reclplent/contractor will be legally obligated to enter data

required by NHES and/or the US Department of Labor, relating to all partldpants served during the

contract period in the case management system mandated by NHES (I.e., Geographic Solutions for

WlOA services). The sub-redpient/contractor shall be responsible for keeping participant's files up-

to-date, espedaify In time to meet quarterly reporting deadline requirements.

30. Assessment - The sub-redpient/contractor shall make a detailed assessment for each partldpant after

the partldpant Is certified eligible. Spedfic assessment requirements are outlined In the contract

body.

31. Partldoants Rights and Benefits Every participant, prior to entering a WlOA activity shall be Informed

of that Indivlduars rights and benefits In connection with the actfvtty Including but not limited to:
• Working conditions; Nondiscrlmlnatlon;
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•  Confidentiality of personnel participant Information;
•  Personnel policies applicable to the individual participant's circumstances;
•  The WlOA complaint and Hearing Procedure: and if the participant is stili active in a

partners' services, the sub* recipient/contractor must provide information pertinent to
the complaint to NHES, and attend and testify on behalf of NHES at the fair hearing If so
requested; and

•  The complaint procedures provided by the sub-reciplent/contractor. |OJ.T. participants
v/lll first follow specific complaint hearing procedures of their employers.)

32. Grievance Procedures/Customer Corhplaints: The sub-recipient/contractor understands that all

applicants for services hereunder, as well as Individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding that determination. The sutHeclplent/contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all
applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
appUcant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair hearing In accordance with the required grievance
policy.

•  The sub-recipient/contractor shall ensure that all applicants for WtOA funded services
receive a written grievance procedure notice, and that a signed copy attesting to the
receipt of this Information Is Included In each applicant's hard copy file.

•  The sub-redpient/contractor shall ensure that all personnel funded with WlOA funds are
trained in the grievance policy and procedure applicable for the funding source

supporting this contract MOU.

•  The sub-recipient/contractor shall ensure that NHES (s Informed Immediately of any
formal grievance filed by a program applicant or participant so that they may notify the

OWO [Office of Workforce Opportunity) EO Officer.
•  The sub-redpient/contractor shall respond either vert>ally or In writing to any complaint

that does not constitute a formal grievance within two days from receipt of such
complaint.

33. Termination - Nothing In this section shall restrfct a sub-redplent/contractor from effecting
terminations for cause, or from effecting suspensions or transfers; under such terms and conditions
determined appropriate under the policy and/or directions of NHES. If a partidpant Is being
terminated involuntarily and for cause other than completion of program Intent, the sub-
redplent/contractor shall provide the participant with v/ritten notice of the Impending termination
from his/her particular program activity or from the total WlOA program and a contact person for
questions and further information at least two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of termination. A
dated copy of the notice shall be maintained In the partldpant's file. The sub-reclplent/contractor will
cooperate In assisting NHES staff In condtlation if so warranted.

34. Disallowed Costs: The sub-redpient/wlll be solely responsible for paying NHES any and all disallowed
costs associated with the misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on participants
who were erroneously determined to be eligible for services. DIsallovrad costs may not be paid with
any other federal funds.

35. Payment of Wages - Partldpants in On-the-Job Training shall be compensated by the employer at
such rates, Induding periodic Increases, as are reasonable, considering such faaors as Industry,
geographic region and the participant's skills. In no event shall the wage rate be less than the highest
of the following:

•  The minimum wage rate spedfled In section (6) (a) (1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act;

8
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•  The prevailing W3£e rate for persons simllarty employed:
•  The minimum entrance vt^ge rate for Inexperienced workers in the same occupation in

the establishment or, If the occupation is new to the establishment, the prevailing
entrance wage rate for the occupation In other establishments in the area;

•  The wage rate required by an applicable collective bargaining agreement; or
•  The prevailing wage rate established by the Department of labor In accordance with the

Davis-Bacon Act

36. Working Conditions • Each participant shall be assured that;
•  Conditions of employment and training shall be appropriate and reasonable, in light of such

factors as the type of work, geographical region and proficiency of tfw participant:
•  No participant shaD be required or permitted to be trained or receive services in buildings or

surroundings or under work conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to the

participant's health or safety. The sub- recipient/contractor agrees to abide by all relevant

Federal and State "Safety" laws. Participants employed or trained for inherently dangerous
occupations, e.g., fire or police Jobs, shall be assigned to work in accordance with reasonable
safety practices;

•  All Individuals employed in subsidized jobs shall be provided benefits and working conditions

at the same ievei and to the same extent as other employees working a similar length of time
and doing the same type of work; and:

•  No funds avaliable under this Act may be used for contributions on behalf of any participant
to retirement systems or plans.

37. Confidentiality of Records: The sub-redpient/contractor agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any
information regarding partidpants and their immediate families that may be obtained through
application forms, interviews, tests, reports from public agendes or counselors, or any other source.
Without the permission of the appllcant/partidpant such information shall be divulged only as
necessary for purposes related to the performanu or evaluation of this contract and to persons
having responsibilities under the contract.

•  The subHedpient/contractor is responsible for taking reasonable steps to ensure the
physical security of such data under Its control.

•  The sufo-recipienVcontractor is responsible for ensuring each of its employees, vendors
or sub-redpients having any involvement with personal data or other confidential

Information are Informed (n the laws and regulations relating to confidentiality.
•  Each employee funded through thb contract shall be required to sign a confidentiality

statement, which shall be maintained in local personnel flies.

38. Confidential Information - Where possible, the identity of any person who has furnished information
relating to. or assisted In, an Investigation of a possible violation of the Act will be held In confidence.
Where the disclosure of the person's identity is essential to assure a fair determination of the issues
or where necessary to effectively accomplish responsibilities under the Act, the Inspector General,

the Solicitor, Regional Administrator for WIOA, the Administrative Law Judge, New Hampshire State
Judidary or NHES Hearing Officer presiding over a hearing In which the matter arises, may dlsdose
such Identity upon such conditions as shall promote the continued receipt of confidential information

by NHES and effectuate the protection and policies of the Act. No person is entitled under the Act

the Regulations, or terms and conditions of thb grant because such person has filed any complaint
instituted or caused to be Instituted and proceeding under or related to the Act, has testified or Is to
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testify In any such proceedings or Investigation or has provided information or assisted In an
Investigation.

39. Access to Records/Audits - All WlOA records shall be accessible to authorized Federal and State staff.

Further, If subject to an audit performed under the guidelines of Federal Office of Management end
Budget Super Orcular, such audit shall Include any and all funds provided by NHES to sub-
recipient/contractor during the period of time covered by such audit. Suh-reclplent/contractor
assures that a copy of the final audit which pertains to such funds shall be forwarded to NHES within
thirty (30) days following the final audit's issuance date.

40. Sanctions - In the event of noncompilance with the contract or these Assurances, NHES may, with
vwitten notice to the sub-redplent/contractor stating the reasons therefore, immediately terminate,
suspend or transfer all or part of the funding provided under this contract or take action, or direct

such other action be taken by the sub- recipient/contractor, pertaining to program or financial
operations as SNHS deems necessary. If the sub- redplent/contractor has t)een found to be in
violation of the non-discrimination and/or equal opportunity provisions of WlOA, NHES shall follow
their policy, based on the administrative procedures set forth in the Act.

41. Reimbursement to NHES-The sub-redplent/contractor shall be responsible for refund,

repayment, and reimbursement for funds underthe following conditions:
• When any or all monies provided under this contract or under any pre>riou$ contract have

been expended by the sut>-redplent/contractor in a manner or for a purpose determined by
NHES as a result of audit or monitoring to be In violation of the provisions of the contract Act
Federal Regulation, or State Policy, such sum shall be due and owing to NHES and shall be

repaid to NHES Immediately, upon demand, from non-federal funds; and
• When any cost charged to or any expenditure of, funds or proceeds of funds provided under

this a>ntract or under previous contract Is not supported, docunwnted or otherwise

accounted for by the sut>-fedplent/contractor as required by the contract Act Federal
Regulations, or State Policy, and is determined by NHES not to be an allowable or allocable

cost or ej^ndlture, such sum shall be due and owing NHES and shall be repaid to NHES

Immediately, upon demand, from non-federal funds.

42. Additional Standards • NHES may, In (leu of but not to the exclusion of suspension or termination, or
transfer, Impose additional standards of performance on the sub-redpient/contractor If NHES
determines on the basis of monitoring, audits or evaluation, that the sub-redplent/contractor has a
history of poor performance; is not finandally stable; or has a management system which does r>ot

meet NHES standards as set forth In this contract.

A meeting between NHES and the sub-redpient/contractor will occur for discussion of NHES's
a)ncems regarding the sub-redplent/contractor's performance before NHES Imposes additional

standards of performance upon the sub-reclplent/contractor.

In imposing additional standards of performance. NHES shall notify the sub-redplent/contractor of
the additional standards Imposed; an explanation as to why the standards are needed; and any

corrective actions which must be taken by the sub-redpient/contractor to have the additional
^ndards removed.
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43. Cessation or Transfer of Acttvlties - In the event of notification to the sutw^plent/contractor of
termination, suspension or transfer by NHES, the suthrecfpient/contractor shall, at the directbn of
NHES, immediately cease and desist from any and all expenditure, commitment or encumbrance of
any and all monies received by the sub- redplent/contractor under this or any previous contract with
NHES. Any monies so received by this sub- recipient/contractor and remaining at the time of
termination, suspension or transfer shall be immediately refunded or otherwise disposed of by the
sub-recipient/contractor In accordance with the directions of NHES.

In the event of termination, suspension or transfer, the sub-redpient/contractor warrants that It will
fully cooperate with and provide all reasonable assistance to NHES (n effecting or maintaining
continuity of services to partidpants, Indudlng, but not linrUted to, the effident and orderly transfer
of services, benefits, funds, and administration of programs and activities to such other parties or
organUatlons as directed by NHES.

To the extent that reasonable and allowable expenses are Incurred after the cessation of the contract
in effecting and maintaining continultY of partldpant services as above described and there having
been no funding already provided to cover these expenses by NHES the sub-redplent/contractorshall
be reimbursed for those expenses.

By signing below, I certify that SNHS currently complies with each of the listed requirements and
wilXreriiain In compliance for the duration of the contract period.

gn

Do

' t/dfC /•
itufe of Authd'rbM Representative Date
lalee Lozeau, Executive Director
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CERTIRCATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Orvma Kerr , hereby certify that:
(Neme of the elected Officer of the Corooration/LLC: cannot be contract 8igr>atory}

1. 1 am 8 duly elected aerfc/Secretarv/Ofncer of Southern New HamosNre Services .
(Corooration/LLC Naxe)

2. The fotoetrais e true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Oirectore/ahareholders. duty called and
held on oelre- 20 ̂  . at which a quorum of the Dlrectora/shareholdera were present and voUrtg.

(Oete)

VOTED: That Donnalee Lozeau. Executive Dtrector (may list more than one person)
(Name ar^d Tide of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of Southern New Hampshire Servtees to enter Into contracts or agreements with the
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

State of New Hampshire ar>d any of Its agencl^ or departments and further is authortsd to execute any end ell
documents, agreements and other Iristruments. and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may In his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed end remains in full force and effect as of the
data of tte contract/contract amendment to which this cartiflcate Is attached. This authorfty rematoa valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authorfty. I further certify that It Is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this oertlflcate as evidence that the personfs) listed above currently occupy the
posltion(8) Indicated and that they have full authority to bind the dorperdk^vj^ the extent that there are any
limits on authority of any listed (ndivlduai to bind the corporation toe State of New Hampshire,
ell such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:

jnature of Bacted OfRcer
Name: Orviile Kerr

Tltte: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, WQUaa-M. Oardncr. Scoetny of State 'of die Stete oif Sew HinTihln, dp ber^bjr tbst SOUTKERNltEW

HAMPSHIRfi SERVICE (NC is a New Kuopsbira Noxqnfit Ovponttoo regiitged to tniisactbosin^ to New. Htmpdttopn

May 26,1965.1 forOter cotiiy ihst all fea aod.doaimeoti reqahed by the Seeretaty of State's oSioe have been reedved and-ii io

good ctaodins as ftr as ̂  office is conconed.

Bosfaiess (D: €S^

Oettifieatt Number 0004913065

O

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

r beriete set my band sod cmse to be affixed

(be Seal of (be State of New-Hanqisfaire,

this 12(b day of May AS). 2020.

WlinunM.Gud^

Secretary ofState
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George N. Copaois, CoMMssioNeR

Richard J. Lavers, Dewty Commssoacr

DEC03'20 mll:b2 RCVD

Admnistrative Office
45 South Fruit Street

Concord, NH 03301-4857

*

*■k

%

December 2,2020

His Excellency, Governor Chrisiopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Employment Sccurity.(NHES) to enter into a contract for
services with Southern NH Services, inc. (SNHS) {VC#177198) 40 Pine Street, Manchester NH. for
$5,900,000, for the delivery of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WlOA) Adult Program services
effective January 1,2021 through June 30,2024 upon Governor and Council approval. The United States
Department of Labor (USDOL) funds this program. 100% Federal funds.

Federal funds available for these services will be expended as follows, contingent upon availability and
continued appropriations for fiscal year 2021 forward with the authority to adjust encumbrances between
State fiscal years throu^ the Budget Office if needed and justified:

02-27-27-270010>8040 DEPT OF EMPLOYMENT SECURITY

10-02700-80400000-102-500731 Conlfoct for Program Services

Stote Fiscal Year

2021

$1,475,000

2023

$1,475,000

2022

$1,475,000

2024

$1,475,000

EXPLANATION

This contract between NHES and SNHS for the delivep' of WIOA Adult program services is in response
to Request for Proposal (RFP) #WIOA-ADULT-01-08-26-2020, which was issued jointly by NHES and
the New Hampshire Department of Business and Economic Affairs (BEA) on August 27, 2020. BEA is
the State grant recipient for WIOA federal funds awarded by the USDOL. NHES is the sub-recipient of
the grant funds pursuant to nn MQU between BEA and NHES. The State Workforce Innovation Board
(Board) is the ovcrsl^l body established In federal regulation to oversee the appropriate use of WIOA
federal funds received by BEA.

Four organizations submitted proposals prior to the RFP closing deadline. A subcommittee of the Board
served as the RFP.review panel. The following Board members served on the RFP review committee:

•  Mr. Dave Cioffi - Former Small Business Owner
•  Ms. Kelly Clark - AARP NE Regional Director
•  Mr. John Hennessey - Littleton Coin Company, Inc.
• Mr. Michael Somcrs - President & CEO, New Hampshire Lodging & Restaurant Association
•  Bonnie St. Jean, BEA/OWO Program Administrator served as staff to the review committee

NHES is a proud member ofAmerioa's Workforce Network and NH Works. NHES is an Equal Opportumty Employer and complies
with the Americans with DisabUiUes Act. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon retjuest of inditAduals with disabilities
Telephone (603) 224-3311 Fax (603) 228-4145 TDD/TTY Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964 Web site: www.nhe3.nh.gov



The evaluation scoring was as follows:

SECTION RANGE OF POINTS

Adult Program Services 0-35

Demonstraied Ability & Past Pcrfonmance 0-20

ConflicI of Interest 0-05

Budget 0-40

Total Points 100

The four organizations' proposals were reviewed, scored by the review committee and ranked as follows:

VENDOR RANK

Southern NH Services 1

Adams and Associates, Inc. 2

Abor E&T. LLC d/b/a Equus Workforce Solutions 3

Grant Associates 4

In executing Its responsibilities for WlOA Adult Program funds, the Board, through SEA and NHES,
designates specific operational and fiscal responsibilities for WIOA funds to SNHS through this contract
agreement. As a condition of this agreement, SNHS assumes responsibility for the specific operational,
fiscal, and monitoring responsibilities outlined in the contract for the purpose of delivering services to
WIOA eligible customers, and agrees to carry out these duties consistent with all the conditions and terms
of this contract, and all applicable federal and state laws, regulations, and requirements.

This is a three and one-half year cost-reimbursement contract for services to ensure program continuity.
For major WIOA service contracts, efficiency in operation is a paramount policy consideration for the
Board, as disruption in service would adversely affect program clientele. Funds arc allocated for operating
a standardized program that requires significant training and program management experience and
understanding, along with sufficient resources to reimburse the state for any disallowed costs incurred as a
result of erroneous eligibility determinations.

In the event Federal funds become no longer available, General funds will not be requested to support this
contract.

The Attorney General's Office has reviewed and approved this contract as to form, substance and execution.

Respectfully submitted.

jwr^LAn
George N. Copadis
Commissioner
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TUsagrecmait tad aU of bsattidiinents^sUbecoiBs public oponsubmlssoo to Oovenor.Bsd
aueutiveOoBacQfbrifipTovtl. AoyinfisntHooOtttiiprivate^eoafidoitlB) orpr^iiOByman
be dcsrly idestlfied to the fiseney md BgKcd to la wririog prior to ligolns Ote cQfitnd.

AGStBBMENT
Tbe StBle ofNew Hunpsbiit ftod the Coatnctor hereby reuteally esreeu foOowr.

CSNEBAL frovbxons

. 1.. . roBNTWICATlOre.

U State Ageaoy None
New Hsmpshbw Department of Emplbyment Boeurtty

1.2 State AsneyAddresa

45 South Fruit Street
ConoonlNH 03301

13 ContnctorNeme

Seutham NH Servlcee. Ine.

.lA Cootm^Addresi '
40 Pine Street, Concord. NH 03103

IJ CofltnctorPbehe

Nmnbcr

603-48&-6010

1.6 AccouaKuaber

1M2r-d0400000'102-600731

1.7 CompledonDtte

June 30.2024

IJ PriceLimitatioo

$6.&00.000.00

1.9 CoQtnctlnsOffloer for State A^aiey

Rameta Szedk. Dtrector, Employment Servtcee

1.10 State AseaeyTdephoReNoiabcr

603^24-3311

lul Coctrsetor Sigaa^ i U2 NametadTtUeofCoiititctarSisnstoiy

Donnalee lozeau, ExecutMe Director

1.14 Name and Title of State AstneySgoatory

Oeofoe N. Copadts, Commtsslonar

LIS ApprevaJbytbeNADcptrtnMatofAdmlnlstntioiuZ>ivisionofFersonnel^eppl/cebld

By; Director, On:

1.16' -AppreyU by the Attontey^Mai.(Eonn; Snbitimce and Brecolloo) (\f eppltcaht^

1.17 Approviliv.OwiQovdWendlfitoCuliw.O^^

0*CIiemoun*er OACMeetjogDate:

Pegelofd
Contractor Initials

Data l*|ipc»



2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The State of. New
Hi^hjre; a^og through'. t?tt agency identified in .block 1.1
C*State'7> eni^es cMUractpr in block i.3
C*Confr^r^ to perform, and the Cpmctor'iball'peiforfn. the
work .or sale of goods, or both,, identified and more paniculsrly
described' in the- attached EXHIBtT B' which is incorponted
herein by refcrehce..C'Servicd$^

'3. EFFECTfVE pATE/GOMPLETlpNOFSERVIC]^.
3.1 NonMlhstanding- any provision of this -Agreement to the
eomrary^ and subject to the approval of the Oiovernor and
Ea^tiye Coundl ofthe.State.of.New RBinpsHtfe,'if applicable^
tl^ Agmeihent, and alj bbligations ofthe parties beivu^cr, shall

.effective^ on date, the Coyemcr iBod Executive
Council approve this Abetment as mdittt^ in. block 1.17,
onless^no'such approval ■isTeqaired,.m which case the Agreefneot
diall. become eitectiye on the date'the Agi^eenent.'is afgned by
thc'Statc Agency, as .shbwn.in'block 1.13 C^rTectiyeDatcT).
3'.2- If Uk .Cootmctbr 'conunciKeis die St^cs prior to the.
-Effeietivo'D^ all SeT:«j(^.pdrfonndd by tli$ ObntiMor prior to
the'Effective Date sh^l be pe^o'rt^-at tbe.sole-ri^-.of.the.
Contractor, and.in the'.eveni that this Apeonent'does 'h^ be^p^
efforti'v^ the- State, shall have no li^iiity -to the Contractor,,
ihcludirig without limitation, any- obligatibn to pay -the:
Coiitiactor 'for costs iiKurred or Services, pwormed.
ContracUir'rmist complete alliS^^'by the:Ooinpletion Date
specifi'edtn block i .7.

4.. conditional nature of acre'emcnt.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary,^! bbligat'ib.tts of the State Heicunder. including,
without limitfitibn-, the Motmuanite of paymqits hereunder, .arc
.contingent upmitheiavajlability.and continued ^pfc^niatioo of
funds affect^ .by any stale.or fedeml le^slative or execu.iive
action that reduces;.' elimlnafes or otherwise moilifies the
•appropri^pri of ava.n8bnity>6f fUodlng.fbr this Agreement and
^-Scope-fof Services provtddl in.EXHZBIT B, in whole or-in
part, in no event shal) the StMe be liable for any 'payments
hereunder in exc^ of such available appfrppriated ftinds. In the
event'of a-.reduction, or termination of appropriated (bids,, the
State shall.have the.right to. withhold payment until such fbnds
beco'me 'aS^labth, if iver,.iM shaH'have the right^to reduce or
tominate the Services 'under- this Agreqnait immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice Of'^b re^tion or tCTOin^idn.
The State shall nol'be required to transfer fuods'lrom any other
adcount or source.to the Accouot.identified In blodc 1.6 in the
event fluids in that.Aceoum are reduced or unovailablie.

5. CONTRACT PRJCEfPRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.
5; 1 TheconUact price, method ofpayment, and terms d fpayment
are identified and'more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is hicorpomted he^n by reference.
S.2 The payment by tbc State of .the contract price shall be the
only and the complete-reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever oaturi incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the Only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Service& The State shall
have no fiability to the Contractor other than'the coirtract price
53 The State reserves the right to offset (iom any amounts.
otherwiM payable to the .Contractor under this Agreement tbose
Ii(]u'idat.ed ariumnts required, or. pqrnltted by NA RSA 80:7
throu^ RSA-8p:7-< or any otiter provision of law.
5.4 Notwithsta^ng any prpi^on in tbis;A^cnent to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected ctrbumstahces, in no
event shiall the total of all payments authorized, or aqpially.made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth'lo blo^ 1.8.

4. COM^UANCE BY.CONTRACTOR WTTS LAWS
AND REGULATiONS/ EQUAL EMPLQYMENT
OPPORTUNrnf.
-6.1 In connection with the performance of the -Servicesi the
CoDtrd^f shall comply with all appiicabie statutea, laws,,
regi^atiojia; aiU orders of federal, -stmq .coun^ on municipal
autboritias wfalcfi iritpoM any pb.lijgatioh of duty upon the.
Co'ntradoT, induding; but'not limitedto; ml righa and nr?i«.l
employment opportunity laws. In addition; if (his .Agreement is
.ftmded.in any pan by monies ofthe United Stetes,.the Cbhtraqof-
shallcpmply with ^.fedqal ctecuilveorder^,rules,, regulafions
and jnatiites, and with a'ny lule^ regulatjons:aadtguiddine3 as the
State or the United Stttcs issite .to imple'meid'tJ^c. regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply-with-ali eppticable'lntellet^uid
property, laws.
6.2 'pu^g the tenn of this Agreement; tbe.'Coatractor shfill;not
di^ritmnate agaih^ empldyees or applicants for empioymenl
.b^usq 9f j'abe, color, religiori, creed,'age, sex, handieap, sexual
orientation; of national jbri^n^end will take-efTinnative.actlon to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The CoQtractor agrees to permit the State or United States
.access to. any of the Contractor's bc^oks; records and accounts flair
thepurpp^ ofascertaining conbliSRce with-all rules, regulations
.mid ordei:s, -aid the cjoven^ts, terms and conditions of this
Agreement

7. PERSONNEL.
7% 1 The Cpntmctor shall at its own .expense provide all pemonnd
necessary tp pqfonn tf^ Services. Tbc Coiitiactor warrunts'that
all personnel engaged in die SeryiOes shall, be. qualified to
perform the Ser^ce's, and shall be. properly .licensed and
otherwise.authorized to do so under all appHcable iaws.
7/2 Unless ot|ierwi$e authorized' in writing, during the term of
this Agrqbmerit, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Gdmplelion Date In block 1 the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subebntrectpr or- other- persoiv firm or
corporetioa with whom It is engaged, in a combined effort to
perform ^ Services to hire, any person who.is a Stale employee
or oftidkl, who is materially •involved in the {ffocureinent,
.administration -or performance of this AgreemenL This
provtsio.n shall survive termination of-this Agreement.
•7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the State's representarive. In the event ofany
dispute concerning the interpretation of this AgFeemeot, tte
Coniiacting Officer's decision shall be find for the Slate.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the foilowiog acts or omuions of (he
Contreaor shall constitute an event ofdeftuh hefet^q- ("Eyeiit
of.De&uIt^:
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily' or on
tthedule:'
8.1.2 feilure'tq submit any rei^Tt required hereuntjer; and/or
8.1 J failure.to perform any oth'er'covenant,- term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of De&ult, the State may
take apy one, or rbore, or all, of the. following actions:
8;2.1 give tlw Gmuactdr a wrinen notice, qrecitying the Event of
Defmit and requiring.>t'(o be letpfedled >wilhio; ib the absence of
a greater or lesser specificstloniof timei t1u^-(3P) days'fiqm.the
date ofthenoticq-m ifthe Event ofDefiutrljriiouimeiy.cured.
-terreinale this Agreement, effective two djiys-efler,^vi'ng the
CqntmqornqHi^.-of termination;
8:2..2.gi.ve tlw.Cohnacto'r a.writtenhoti^ 9ecilying the Event of
bd^ault and 'suspending all p^niots' to be. rnaxle under this
Agreement and ordenhg that the portion of tb^ coplred price
which .would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
i^od' from the.date. of such-notice until such time as ihe State
determiries that the-Qontractor has cured ihe.Event^.of Defiauilt
stall never be. to thc.-Cbntiac.tbr,:
8.23 gi ve ̂  Contractor a wrii^to Mtice qmifying the.Eveht oif
Defhult and set off against any othv obligatlotB t$e' State may
owe.to.the Contraaor-any damagcs'the State suffers by reason'of
any Event 6f.Defhu]t; ai^or
83.4 gi.i« the;Comractor.a written notice specifying the Event of
bdfiault, treat tte A^t^'ent as. brehchdd, tc^nate ttie
Agreement and pursue any of ia remedfes at law in equity,.or
both.

83'. No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof after
■any'Event of.DefauIt be deemed a waiver of its'rights vnlh
regard to that Event of Default, or any- subsequent Event of
befhult. No express ^ure'to'enfoite any Event ofDefault shall
be deemed e.wai^ of Ihe.ri^ of tla S.tate.to qnfoici each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any hnther or other Event of
'Default on the.part of (he Contractor.

9. TERjym^A'noN.
'9.1 Notwithstanding' paragraph 8, .the Stale .may, .at its sole
discretion^ terminate the Agreieipenttof'-any .reason, in whole of
in part, by thirty (30) days written notice to-the'COfUnator that
•the Suite is eaerdsing its option-to.terminate lhe AgreemenL
9.2 In'the.event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Smte's di^etioh, deliver to- the
Contraqing Officer, not laler than fifteen (IS).dBys after the dale
of termination, a rq>0Jt CTermination RepoifO describing in
detail all Services pMormed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the d^ of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and hu'mber of copies of the Termination Report shall
be identical to ptose ofany FihaLReport described in the att'ached
EXHIBrr B. In addition, at the State's discre&in, the Contraaor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early tcrmlnalion, develop and

submit'to the State a Transition Plan .for s^ces under (he
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTlAUTy/
PJ^^VATIpN..
10.1 As uttdin'ihis'Agreemehtf the word "daila" shall mean all-
inforrnation and things developed or bbtwod durihg the
performance of, or acquired or. developed by reann of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
flle^ fpr7nul8e,.^drveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recorthhg^ pictorial reprotfuqions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representatior^ computer prograh^, computer priitfout^ notes,
letters, memoranda pape^-and dpcumenis^all whether
f!nish^.or unflnlsh^
10.2 All.data and any property which has been received firom
the. State, of purchas^ with fimds provided.'for that pui^se
under this AgrQBineiU..ihali bS the.propedy-of the St«te..and
^1 be returned to the Sfete upoii de^iaiid or upon temunation
of.this Agreement for a^ reasbit
103' Confrdentiality ofdata shall be governed by'NilL RSA
chaptq'9.1.>A oriother existing-law. Disclosure of data requires
prior ymtten ^rdrral of the State..

n.CO^rnuCtOR*S RELATIO)^ TO the STATE; In the
performance ofthi's Agreement the ^omractbf is;In all.rtspects
at) independent contraqor; and is neither- en agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
dfricer8,.einployee.s, agents or .mcrobos shall have.outhority to
bind .lh.e State or .recqVc.iiny benefits, ^rkm' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the Slate, to its e'mployees.

12. ASSIGNMKNT/i)EXEGATION/SUBGONTRA!CT$.
12.,'l The'Coniractor shall not asa^.or othemdse transfer any
imerest'in this Agrqemeiit without the prior written notice, which
.shi^l be provid^'to the..Siqe q lea^'^fi.ftcei) (15) days prior to
the assignroent, and'a written eonsiu)t^df the State. .For purposes
of this paragraph, a Chan^ of Control shall cpiotitute
assignment. ^'Ctangc of Control-' means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of.refeled transactions in
which 'a third pvty, togdhq with -its afftliates, becomes the
di^ oir mdireq owner of fifty pefbeht (50%) or more .of the
voting, shares or similar equity intercns, or combing, voting
power of the Ciontraqor, or (b) the sale of ail or-substantiqiy oU
of Ihe assets 'of the Contractor.
123 None of the Services, shall be subcontraqed by the'
Contraqor without prior written notice-and consent of the State
The ^'ate is entitled'to copies of all nibqintruts and assignment
agreements and shell not be bound by uiy pro'vis|on5.eo.ntained
in a subcontract of an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exernptedby.law,
the Contraqor shall indemni/y and hold harmless the Slate, its
ofHcers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury.pr property damages,
patent or copyright inffi ngemeot, or other c^'ms asserted against
the Slate, its ofRcqs or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the aqs or otnlsslon of the

Page 3 of 4
Contractor Initials at/Dale iZltjiOU



Contrector, or'subcontractors,-iDcludit^-but not limited to the
ncgli^enee. recldra or'intehtional cotujucL The State shall not
be )id>le for any costs mctured by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notvnths^ding the foregpinjg, hothing herdn
contained shall bedeemed to constitute a waiver ofthe so.verdgn
imtnunily of the State, whieh immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This cdv«riant in pangroph 13 shall survive the
tenninalioh of th'isAgreement.

U. INSURANCE.
14.1 The. Contractor shall, 'at its sole expeos^ ot>tain and
continuously -maintain in force, and. shall require any
jubcontr^or or. assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
follo.wing iiiLSur^^'
14.1.1 commercjiil-geacral liability'iii^iT^^-against'B]) claims
ofbodily iqj^> death or prdperty daniage, in 'aipounts of npt
less than St;OO6.CiO0.pcr occurrence and S2,000,000] aggfegste
crexce^and
14.1.2 q>ti:iU.ca^ ofloss coverage:form'covering all pipperty.
subjed'to sut^.aragi^h 102 heran, in an amount not less than
80%;o]rthe whole ̂ ladnnent vahie of th.e.property.
14.2 The policies de^bed 10 subp^graph 1.4.1 h^itin shall be
on policy forms end endorsements ̂ ^rovedTor usein the State
of New.Hampshire-by thc Nil. Diqiastmott of Insurance, vid
issued by iniuriera lionised in the State.of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Cp'nl^or s.hal.l fVirhj^ to the Omtracting Officer
idientified in block 1 .P. pr his'or Hct successor, a certific^efs) df
insurance for all insurance required under this AgiiKment.
Contractor sball elso fttnush.to the Contracting Ofiieer idemifled
in.'block 1.9; .or hb or.her successor, certilicat^s) ofinsurance.
for all renewalfs) ofinsurance required under this Agreement no
later ifian tien (10) days prior lo'tte expi^on date of each
insurance policy. Tte certincate($) of iitsurance and any
renewals.Otticof shall'be attached and are ibcorporated herein by
reference.

IS. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.

IS.l By signing UuS agreement, the Coritractor agrees,.ce^fies
and wairents that the Contractor is in compliahee wi^or.exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA ch^ter 28I-A ("iVorken'
Compensdihn
15.2. To the extent .the .Contractor is subjea to the requirements
of N.H. f^A chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintairi,. and
.require 'any siibcohuictor ol assignee to secure apd maint.tun,
-payment of tVorkers' ^rnipensa.tlbn. in connecdbn )vith
activities which the person proposes to undertake.pursuaht to this
Agreement. TheContiactorshallftimlshiheContraciingOfficer
identi fied in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof .of Workers'
Compens^on in the rnanner descnbed in NJi RSA chapter
281-A aM any ̂ plicablc rmewal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and are incorporate hooin by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Worken*
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or beoeftt for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might, arise und^ applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation Jaws In connection with the
performance of the'Services under this Agreement.

Id. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto lo the other
shall be deoned to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing certified.mait, postage-prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the. parties at. the addresses given in
blocks l.2'and.l.4, h^m

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement maybe amended, walv^
or discharged only by .an Instrument In writing sig^ by the

hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver qr qischa^b. by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State ofN^ Hampshire unless, no subh approval 'is (Quired
under the ciieumstances pursuant to State Uw, hile or policy,

18. CHOICE OFXAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be goVemed, interprqj'ed and eohstrved 'in accordance with the
Iswa of the St^ ofNew Hsmf^htre, snU b-blndtng upon.and
liniresto tbe'b^fit'oftKe piBrties'and-thdr-respedivesubcesMrs
and.assigns. The'woriUrtg-used In tlu.s.Agreem^'is the wording,
chosen by -lhe-partics to express theirmutiral intent, arulino nile
.of construdion shall be applied against or in favor of any party,
^y i^ore.erisi.ng but of this Agreement, shall be brougM and
n^ntuqed In NeW Haj^hi^ Superibr CoOrt-which shall have
exctusivejurlsdietion t^eof!

19. -CONFLICTING TERMS^ In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBrT
A) and/or attabtui^ts and ameridment-.thereo^ the terms of the
P-37 (as rnodified.in EXHDQIJ A) ahairco'nobl.

20. THlUU) FAlfflES. The parties -hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and' this -Agitemeni shall npt be
construed to cohfex any such b.enefll.

21. HEADINGS. Theheadings^rdu^utthc Agreement-are
for rcTerence purpc^ only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, ampHfy-or aid in the
iriterpretalion, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. ^ECIAL .PROVISIONS. Additional or .modifying
provisions set forth in the atiached EXRCBlT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event anyoftheprovisionsofthis
A^eernent are held by'o couh pf'competeiU jurisdiction to be'
contrary, to any st.ale or federal law, the remahlng provisions of
(his Agreement will remain in Ml force and.effM.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed In a number of oounterparis. each of which shall be
deemed ah original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matt^
hereof.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT OF EMPLOYMENT SECURITY (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors ObUgatlohs: The Contractor covenants and aigrees that all funds recced by the
Contractor under the Contract shall be used only as. payment (b the Contractor for servtces provided to
eligible Indlvjduais and/in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, .the Contractor hereby covenants
artd agreesas follows:

■1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is.permittod to determine the eltglblilty
of indivlduats su^ el^jblllty determindton shall, be made In accordance with applicable federal and
'State la^. regulations, ord^.,felines, policips.and procedufes-

2. Time and Manner of Oetermination: Eligibirity determirutions shall be rhdde on forms .and/or
case rrianagement systems provided by the Department .of Emplpyrhent-Sedirity (NHES) for that
purpose and'shaJl bts made and remade at such times as are pr^.crlpOd by NMES.

3. Documentation: In addition to Ihe det.erminatton forms required by NHES, the Contractor. Shdll
maintain a da^ file on each recipient pf services hereur\der. ^ch hie'sKall'i.ncl.ucle.airinformatlon
necessary to support an ellgibllily determjnatioft and such ptheV Information as hjHES requests,
particularly for daia validation purposes. The Contractor sl^U hjrnlsh NHES wltti aQ forms and
documentation regarding eligibility determinations and services that NMES may request or require.

4. Grievance Procedures/Customer Complaints: The Ck>ntractor und^tands (hat all appilcants for
Services hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible, have a right to a fair hearing regarding
that determination. The Qontractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for seivices
Shan be-permitted to-fill out an application form and that each applicant or re*applicant shall be
Informed of his/her right to e fair hearing'In accordance with the required gri^ance policy.

a. The Contractor shall ensure that all applicants for WlOA funded services reostye a written
grievance procedure notice, .and that a. signed copy attesting to Ihe receipt of this information Is
Included in each applicant's hard copy fSe.

b. The Contractor shall ensure that all personnel funded with W.IOA funds are trained in the
.grievance- policy and procedure applicable for the furxling source supporting .this conti:act
agreement

c. Tt4. Contractor shall ensUre that the NHES EO Officer is informed Immediately of any fprmal
grievance filed by a program applicant or participant.

d. The Contractor shalJ respond either verbally or in writlr^ to any complaint that does not constitute
a formal grievance wlthiii two days from receipt of such complaint

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
.m.a.ke a paymerit; gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Subcontractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit 8 of this
Contract The Stale may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sut>-agreement If It Is
deterrnined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offe^ or received
by any officials, officers, employees or agents of the CGntractor/Sut>Contractor.
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6. Retroactive Payments: Notwilhstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in
any oth& docurh^nt, contract pr undSrstShding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments y^li ̂  made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs Incurred for
any purpose .or for any services prdvjded to 'any Individual pribr to the Elective Date of the
Contract ̂  no payrnenls shaD be made for expense's incyrtied by the Contractor for any serv^
provided ^or to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise
provided by the f^ieral reguiatjons) pHor to a determination that the individual is eligible for such
services.

7. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the etigibQity records specified .abovej the Contractor
covenants:and agrees to maintajn the following records.^ring the Corttract PeHod:

a. Rscai Records; books, records,, dpcuments and other data evidencing and reflectlrio ell costs
and' other expenses' Incurr^ by the Contractor in .thb pi^oirm.ance of the Contract, and all
.income received 'or cqlipct^ by',the extractor during tpe '(^n'tract Period, -said record's 'to. be
maintained in accordance j^th. accounting procedures jnd. practio^. ̂ ch syffidently and
propeiiy reflM a!) such cosb arid SxpensSs. and whijcti are acceptable to NHES, ̂  to indude.
without, limitation, alij^gers; books, re'po^, and'oddlrvai evkleiiM-of cdS.fes .such .as purchase
requisitions and orders, youcherSi requisit/ons for rnate^ls, .inver^'ones, yalu'atiohs .of irwkind.
contributions, labor time cards, payTofls, and other .re'Qorda requested .Or'riequired by NHES.

b. Statistical Records: Statistical enrpllmenT, .attendance or visit rejcCds -for Oach. recipient of
services dudng the Gbrrtract' Period, -which records sf^l :inc!i^e all. ripcp'his of appDcatlon
and eiigibllity (including forms required to determine .eDglbliity for eaich such recipient),
records regarding the provision of services.iand all invcloes submitted to NHES to obtain payment
for suchservices.

c. Record Retention; Complete- paper ("hard copy^- partidpant files shall .be maintained by the
contractor for no less than three years as required under federal regulation. NHES may require
the refentbn of hard copy ̂ es for up to six years, if ihe participant file is' Selected for a data
validation review or other formal audits. The Contractor shali npt d'estroy any participant fil.es
without written permission from NHES:

8. Audit: Co.nb'actor shall submit an annual audit report to NHES vnlhin 60 days after the
dose of the agency fiscal year^ The report must be prepared In acc0rida.nc8 with the
prbvlSiohs of the Office of Management and Budget Super Circular. "Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-ProfIt Organizations' and the provisions of Standa.rds for Audit of
Governmental Organizations. Programs, Activities and Functions, Issued by the US Genera)
Accounting Office (GAO.standards) as they pertain to financial compliance audits.

a. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder,
NHES, the United States Department of Latur, and any of their desig.n.ated repr^entatives shall
have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit,
examinatidn, excerpts and transcripts.

b. AUdit Llab&ities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract. It
is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or fed^ audit exceptions arid shall return to NHES, all payments made under the Contract to
which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an exception.

9. Confidentiality of Records: The Contractor agrees to maintain the confidehtlallty of any
Information regarding participants and their immediate families that may be obtained through
application forms, interviews, tests, reports from pubic agencies or counselors, or any other source.
Wthout the permission of the applicant/participant such information shall be divulged only as
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necessajy for purposes relate to the performance or evaluation of this agreement and to persons
havtrrg r^ponsibHIUes under the agreement.

a. Th^ .Contt:9^tor is responsible for taking reasor^ble steps lb. ensure the. physical security of such
data undef'its'cbntrbl.

b. Thb Cbhtractpr is respbncsibje for ensuring each of its emjHoyees, vendors or subHredplents
having any hyotvement with persbnal data .dr other confidential informatloh are informed of the
laws and. regulatikins relating to cpnfidenliafity, Including but not limited to RSA 282-A:118-121.

c. Each employee fprtded through this contract agreement shall be required to sign a corifldentlality
statement^ ̂ Ich shiall be maintained in local personnel.fiiaji.

10. Rop^rtp: Program and RS'cat: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the
-foildWIng .time's aKd/cir If requested by NHES.

.a. Quartei^ Progress :Raporls: Written reports bontainlhg a. detailed description of all planned
verses actud program' parforrhance to the date of the report and containing such other
ihfqnriatlo.n as. shall deanied satlsfactoiV by NHES to justlfy'the rate of payment-hereunder.
Su<^He(^s sh^ bd submltted oh a form deemed satisfactory by NHES.

t. Annual Repqrt; An.annua) report shall be' submlttad within sixty (60) days after the end of each
progrant v^'cdve^^ under this Coritra'ct The Report :ShaII be In a forrh sati^act'ory to NHE§
and 'shaii contain a surhi^ry statemerit-of pi^ess-toward goals arid objectives stated in the
^posai ar^d olher infmatioh required by NHES.

11. Completion of Services: The pohtractor will .be legally obligated to turn over complete data files in
the sp^fied electronic format, as wbji as hard copy cqSa flies, to NHES at the time that the
Contractor ceases to operate the' progranl/ptoject funded through this contract agreemenL

12. Credits: AD documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other- matisrials prepared
during or resulting from the performance Of the services of the Contract shall include the following
s.t^ement:.

The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financerd under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire. Department of Employment Security, vrtth funds provided by BEA/OWO
and the United States Department of Labor.

13. Veterans' Priority Provisions: The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of the 'Jobs for
Veterans Act" (JVA), ̂ Wlc Law 107-208 (38 USC 4215), as Implemented by the. Rnal Rule
publishbrt on Decenr^bef 19. 2008 at '73 Fed. Reg. 78132. Ttie JVA prpvkJes priority of service to
veterans and spouses of eligible veterans for the receipt of empldyrii^t, trainlrig. and placement
services; Agreement by a program operator to implement priority'of service Is a condition of receipt
of DOL funds.

14. Buy American Notice Requirement: To the greatest e^nt practicable, and the extent to which

purchases are allowable in this agreement, the Contractor agrees to purchase American made

equipment and products. (See WjOA Section 505—Buy American Requirements).

15. Salary and Bonus Limitations: In compliance with Pub. L. 111-117 (Division 0, sec. 107), none of
the funds made available under this agreement shall be used by the Contractor, or subrfedplerit of
the Contractor to pay the salary and bonuses of an Individual, either as direct costs or indirect costs,
at a rate in excess of Executive Level fl.
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16. Intellectual Property Rights: The Federal Govenvne'nt. reserves a paid-up, nonexclusive and
irrevocable license to reproduce. pubRsh or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use for federal

' purposes: 1) the copyright In aD products developed with WIOA funds,. Including a sut>-grant or
contract ur)der the Cbr^ctor; -and (I) any rights of copyright .to. w^ich the Contractor purchases
ownership with WlOA funds (including but not limited to curricula, training models, technical
'assistance products; an.d any related materials). Such uses Inchidp, but are not limited to, the right
to rnodify and distribute such products worldwide by any means, electronically or otherwise, Federal
funds may riot, be used to pay any royalty or licensing fee associated with such copyrighted material,
although they may be used to. pay costs for pbtainirtg a copy \^lch Is limited to the developer/seller
costs of copylhg-and stilppir^. If revenues are generated through selling products developed with
Contract fiinds, Induding (nteflectuai property, thbs.e. ravisnu.as are program incorhe. Pro^m
Inconie Is added lb the Contract'and mu$t.t>e experKied for aDowable Contract activities.

17. Mandated Data Entry Systems: The Contractor will be legally obllgmed to enter data required by
NHES and/or the US Department of Labor, relaRng to all participants served duripg ̂ e cofi^ct
peripd In-the case, mana^ment system mandated by NHES/OWO (I.e., Geograp^ Spiutibns for
WlOA services)'. Contractors.shall be responsible for keeping participants fDes up-t^ate. especially
In time to meet quarterly reporting deadline requirements.

18. Disallowed Costs: The Contractor will be solely responsib!e;for.payihg NHES any and.af) djsallpv/ed
costs associated with-the misappropriation of federal'funds an^or costs expended on pairtfdpants
vWio were e'rroneously detemnlned to be eligible for services. Disallowed costs may not'be paid with
any other-federal furids.

19. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement (If applicable): Contractor agrees to
comply with the requ'irements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions- Made by Nonprofit
Organizatiohs. and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants. Contracts and Cooperative
A9r.eements,"'and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

20. Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (if aopticablel- For contracts In
excess of $150,000. the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or
regulations :is4ued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q) and the Federal Water
Pcnution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251~1387). VIoiations must be reported to the Federal
av^rdlng agency and the Regional Office of the Environm'ental'Protection Agency (EPA).

21. Byrd Antl-Lobbying Amendment Fdr contracts in excess of $100,000, the Contractor certifies it
wOl not and has not' used Federal approphated funds to pay any person or organization for
influencing or attempting to Influertce an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress,
officer or employee of Cohgress. or an employee of a niember of Congress in connection with
obtaining .'any F^eral cont'racL grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1.352: Contractor
must also disclbse any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place In connection with obtaining
any Federal awiaird/contracti

kPage 4 of 4 Contractor Inlitato;
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NH Department of Employment Security (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBiTB

STATEMENT OF WORK

Contractor's Name: Southern New Hampshire Service, Inc.

.ContratA Period: January 1,2021 - June 30.2024

SCOPE OF SERVICES

This cost relmburseipent agreement fw services. betw^nijSouthpm New Hampshire Se^ices (SNHS)
and ̂ 'WH OepartmeiH.of ̂ pfoyment'Security {NHES) will bd.for a term. t)egihhing january 1.2021 and
termlh^rYg on 30, ̂24. To^l payments under thte agreement shall npt etipe^ $5.90Q,QOO.OP and
shall be Mpend^ wjth the line It^ budget negptiateci ahnuaily with NHES upon receipt of
grant funds from tho US Department pf Labor (USDOL) fw each program y^ covered under thid
contract

Funds authorized under this agreement are for the sole purpoM of Implementing Workforce Inrtc^tipn
Opportunity Act (WlOA) services for Adults and shafi not be used for any pilose other .than thp^
acUyftles identified In the Statement of Work outlined In RFP #WIOA<Adult:^1'()S-2^202P, Issued August
27,2020, and in accordance with USOOL WlOA program niles and reguletions.

As a co'ndldpn of this agreement, SNHS assumes responslbitity for the specific operaHonaj. fiscal and
monitoring responsltiUIBes' dt^ In this agreementfor the puraose of delivering services to WlOA eligible
participants, end ̂ 'reeS to carry out these duties consistent; with all the conditions and terms of this
agreement, as-wetl as all.applldable federal and state laws, regulations and requirements.

In eddUion, by ̂ gning thip; agreement .SNHS acknowledges the substantial operational level oversight
retained t^ N HES under .this ̂ redm^t for the duration of the agreement performer^ period.

SNHS shall operate programs funded through WlOA consistent with the policy and procedures approved
by NHES end/or USDOl, and ̂ .e lerm.s and conditions as sp^lfied in RFP fM'IOA-Adult-pl'08-26-2020.
whteh RFP Is hereby Incorporated by reference Into this co.ntr^ agreement:

SNHS wUI.-be-responsible for the program responsibilities and deliverables described and spedfied In
SECTIONS 1 through VI of RFP #W!OA-Adult-01-08-26-2020 and SNHS' September 28,2020 Propoul
furnished In response.to the RFP.

SNHS shall devetpp, Im^lemenL and maintain statewide the WiOA Adult program consistent with WlOA
regutallons, NKs WlOA & Wagner-Peyser Slate Plan, the NH Works One-Stop Operators' MOU, and
NHES/BEA/OWO policy and procedures such as, but not limited to, the NH Works Guidance Letters.

In addition, SNHS will be responsible for adhering to the terms and conditions specified in Certifications
and Assurances provided at Exhibits p-K of this agreement

Page i of 1 Contnxlw hlfiala:



NH Department of Employmeht.Secuiity (NHES)

STANDARD EXHIBIT C

TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT

Contractoi^s Name: Southern New Hampshire Services, Inc.

Cor)tract Perio^l:- January 1,2021 to.J.une 30,2024

1. Subj^ to. the Contractor's icompllance wHh the terms -and conditions of this agreement and for
services provided consistent with Exhibit B - Scope of S6ivice.s. the Deperi(ne.nt of Employment
Security (NHES) shall reimburse the contractor for allowable expenses up to a maximum tQtai
paymerit.of $5,900,000.00.

2. > The Con^ctbr In collaboration with NHES admlnlstratlve-staff -shall develop a line-item budget for
cost;re^bui]sement oh an annual basis for each year covered. In this agreement, which shall be
Nndjng. The cbntfactbr-shall notle^pend funds In addition or outside ofan approved line-Item budget
for any cpntract year without written consent from NHES.

3. The (otal of all approved budgets within this dontract period shall not exceed $5,900,0.00.00 without
written modification signed by the. parlies to this agreemerit aind approved by the Governor and
Counc9.

4. Annual funding amounts distnirsed through this contract agreement shdl be determined based .on
actual WlOA federal awards (Adult program) received for each program year covered under this
agrieemeht. which may be less or more than estimated but may not exceed in the aggregate the
tote! maximum amount-authorized vla.thls contract agreement.

5. This contract is funded with federal funds from the US Department of L^abor made ̂ aBaWe under
.the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFOA) numt>er: 17.258 WlOA Adult Program - States
for Ihe'purpose of the delivery of WlOA services to eligible individuals.

6. Contractor use of funds In this control must be In accordance with'the Workforce Innovation
Opportunity Act (WlOA) program assurances. See Exhibit A and related assurances for specifics.

7. The Contractor must have written authorization from NHES prior to using contract funds to purchase
any property or equipment with a cost In excess of $250.00 and with a useful life beyond one-year,
and shall maintain an inventory of property and equipment either purchased or leased with frjnds
made available through this contract.

6. PaymentS'Tor services under this contract are limited to reimbursement for actual expenses incurred
In the fulfillment of this agreement during the contract period. Reimbursement for expenses Incurred
after June 2024 shall not be accepted for payment.

9. Expenditures shaD be In accordance with an annual line item budget, which shall be submitted to
NHES for final approval po later than June 30 for each program year covered under this agreement,
in the event that line-item budgets are adjusted within a program year, such adjustments shall not

Page 1 of3 Contrador tnlUals:
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exceed the approved sdmfnistralion cost for each progr^ year.

10. The Contractor agrees that aft financial reports shall at a minimum be itemized by admlnistrBtive,
program and NH Works shared cost (MOU) expenses.

11. invoices must be submitted mpnthly within 30 days of the end of the previous month and be
subm'itt^ln e.fonmat consistent with the-approved budget The payment of invoices Is subject to
receipt by NHES'of required .reports as s.tated in Exhibit B - Scope of Seh^lces.

12. A finai payment request shall .be submitted no later than foiVlve (45) days after the contract ends.
FaBure to submit the Invoice by this date could re.$ull in nqn-payrhent.

13. Invoidbs'shall be sent to;

jjp' Rpyels, Business Administrator
Department of Empipyrnent Security

45.South Fniit

Concord, NH 03301^7

-  Invoices shall be pald-to;

-Soulhem NH Services, Irtc,

AO Pine Street

Man^ester, NHA3103
Attention: James Chalsspni CFO

14. The Contractor shall maintain sufficient documentation on file in their offices to support invoices, and
make suCh documentation avaBabie for review by authorized NHES st^ and/or'ils auditprs.

15. The Ccntrador shall report expenditures by program year and will be responsible for achie^g
financial pieffbrmance gbai of 100% expenditure.of total funds awarded in this agreement for:each
program yisdf funded (e.g., July Ist --June 30"^), unless othervdse agreed to In writing by NHES,

16. NHES retserves the right to request ad hoc financta! and/or participant status reports in the event
further Information Is needed to evaluate program effectiveness es deemed reasonatrfe and
neces^ry by NHES/BEA/OWO and/or the State of New Hampshire.

17. The Contractor shall adhere to all cash management policies anci procedures-stipulated In the body
of this agreemeni, and all other appTicable WlOA fedprat. Stale and NHES cash management
reguiatior^ arvd policies, including quarteriy accrual reporting.

18. The Contractor ts solely responsible for paying to NHES any disallowed costs associated with the
misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on indlvidudls who were emineously
determined to be eligible for WlOA services. Disallowed costs may not be paid with federal funds,
regardless of the funding source.

)k.Page 2 of 3 Contrwtor tniBats;.
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19. NHES reserves right to Increase ancf/or <tecrease contract funds subject to continued avanab^ty
of federal funds, satisfactory performance of services, and approval by tii.e Governor and Executive
Council.

'20. The Contractor Is prohibited from' using feder^ funds awarded under this contract for the foflgwing
ita^. ̂d/or-activitibs: aubmdbileS; Ibbbying; real property and tmprovernents;- crat,of interest
payments: membership, dues; professlor^al license; annual professional dues or- fees; finance
cHargeis. jate feeis or penalties; and diepredation chaises. Thls.Es not Intended to be an alMnpli^lve
.l^t. the contract^ rtiu'st reyiew any proposed cost outside of the approved line Item budget with the
Qlrrotor for the. NH Erfiplpyrhent S^unty-Emplpyment Service Bureau.'

.s:Page 3 of 3 ContrDdor Inlltefs:.
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NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT D

CERTIFICATION REGARDINlS LOBBYING

The Corilractor identified in Sejclion 1.3 of the. General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying,
and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to havd the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1..11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certffication;

US DEPARTMENT OF LABOR - CONTRACTORS

Programs (ifKlicate applicable program covered):
Title' 1^ WorWorce Investment Act (WIOA) Programs

Contract Period;- January. 1,2021 through June .30,2024

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief; that*

(\) No Federal appropriate funds have been paid or will be .paid by or on behajf of the
underiB^ned. to any person for Influencing or attempting to Influence an office.r or employee
of any agericy. a f^ember of Congress, an officer or employeexf Cor^ress. or an employee^ a
k^mber of Cor^ressMn connectiain with the awarding of any Feeral contract, gpnlinuatiop; renewal,
amendment, or modification of pny Federal contract; grant, loan, .or cooperative agreemehf (and by
specific mention sub-grantee oir sut>-contractoO-

(2) if any funds 6ther than Federal appropriated funds .have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an offiPBr or employee of .any agency, a Member of
Congress, aii' officer or employee of Congress, or :an enriployee of a Member of Congress in
connection with' tNs Federal coQtract grant, loan, or copperatiye agreement (and by specific
mention sub-grantee or Sub-bontractdr), the undersigried shall complete and submit Standard Form
LLL, (Disdosure. Fohn to. Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and
identified as Standard Exhibit D^.)

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certrfication be included In the award
document for sub^wards at .all tiers, (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, .and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certrfication is- a material representation of fact' upon \yhich rellahce was placed when this
transactiCn was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this trartsactlon imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S.. Code. Any person who fails to file
the required certification ̂ all. be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $1O,d0O and not more than
$*^0,000 for'each such failure.

Donrralee Lozeau. Executive Director
(Qifht/actor RepreseAtaitf e Signature) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

Southern NH Services, Inc. hunLt I
(Contractor Name)



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Cohtra^or klentKIed in Section 1.3 df the Geneiei Provisions agrees to compiy with the provteions of
Executive Office of the Pre^lident, Exe^tive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees -to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the folicwfng
Certificatloh:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTtFIQATtON

1. By ̂signing- .apd eUbmitting this propoiai (contract), the prospective primary participant is
providing the certificatipn s^t out.below.

i. The Inat^ajly of a person to provide the certification required below will not .necessarily result
in denl^ of p^dpatlon in this coN^red trahsactibh. If necessary, the prospective participant
shall submit an eXpienation of wtty It Oanriot provide the c^rtiTicalibn. Tlte. certiffcaUon or
exptanation vyili .be- considered, iii connection with the NH Department of Employmenl-
•^curit/s (NHE$) determination Wheihier to enter ..into this .transaction. However, failure .of
th.e prospective primary participant to' furnish a. certification or ari expiariatlon shall disqualify
such person from pariidpation in'this transaction;

3. The certification In this dause .is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when NHES determined to enter Into this-transaction. If it Is later determined that the
.prospective prim.ary partidpant knowingly rendered ah .enorieous certification. In addition to
other remed'ies ayapable to the Federal Government, NHES. may terminate, this
transaction for cause or default.

4; The^ prospective pri(nary participant shall provi.de immediate written notice to NHES
to whorn this proposal (contract) to submitted if at any time the pnospOctive primary participant
learns that Its certificatipn was erroneous -when submitted or has' become erroneous by
reason of changed .circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' 'ineligible,* 'lower tier covered
transaction,' 'particfpariti' 'person,' "prlrnary covered transaction," *prlnclpSI,' 'proposal,' and
"voluntarily excluded,* as used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Derinillons
and Coverage sections of the rules Implementii^ Executive Order 1.2549:45C.FR Part 76.

6. The prospective primary partidpant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should
the proposed covered t^nsaction be entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter Into any lower
tier covered transaction with .a person who 'is debarred, suspended, dedared ineligible, or
voluntarily exduded from partidpatlon In this covered transaction, unless authorized by
NHES.

7. The prospective primary partidpant furiher agrees by submllUng this proposal that it will
indude the dause tilled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Inellglbility and

)yO
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Voluntary Excluston • Lower Tier Covered Transactions * without modification, in all lower tier
covered transactions ar^ In all soHcitations for lower tier covered trensacUons.

6. A partidpanl In a covered transaction may rely upon e certification of a prospective
participaht in a lower lier covered transaction that it is not dettarred. suspended, ineligible, or
involuhtahly excludM from the covered transactiori. unless it knows that the c^flcation is
errbrieous. A partld;^ may decide the method and frequency by which It determines, the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but Is- not required -to. check ths Non>
procurefnerit USt (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be constated to require establishment of a system of
rbtords in order to. render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
kn^edga ahd Irtformabbn of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normany
possess^ by a' paident pfersoh in the ordinaiy course of business dealings.

10. Except for trensactions, authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a. participant in
a covered trehsactlph. knqWin^Ly enters Into a lower-tier covered transaction with a person
who is s.uspended. debamed. Ihdl^ble, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this
transactiohi In addition to qth^ rerhedies available to the Federal govemmerii NHES may
terminate this transaction for .cause or default.

PRIMARY CQVEREDTIiEANSAGTION$

(i ) The prbspeclive primary participant certifies to the. best of its knowledge end befief. that It and
Its pnricipaj^:

(a) are rxM presently debarred, suspended, proposed for' debarrfieht, declared inellgibla. or
volutitiarlly excluded frorh covered transactions- by any Federal department or agency;

(b) have not wfthin a three-year pehod preceding this prc^x>sal {cbntrad) been convicted of
or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offens.e |n connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or perfdnmirig a public
(Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public fraheaction; violation of
Federal .or State' antitriijst statutes 'or qomrhlssion of embe'zzlement^ theft, forgery^ bribery,
fatsifjcation or destaidion of records, m.aidng false statements, pT receiving stolen
proper^

(c) are not presently .indicted for otheiwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental
entity (Federal. State or I.CK!al) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (l)(b) of this cerfrflcatjon; and

(d) have not within a thr^ea.r period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions (Feder^,.State or. lopal) terminated for cau.6e or default

(2) Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective partidpant shall attach an expianatio'n to this proposal
(contract).

V
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LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract);, ihe prospective lower tier
participant, as defined In 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief that It
and its principals:

(a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared
Ineli^ble.'or voluritarily excluded from participation in this .trans^on by
any federal department oir agency.

(b) where the prospective lower tier participant Is unable to certify to any of the
above, such prospective participant shall attach en explanation to this proposal
(contract).

The prospective lower Uer |>drt}Cjparit further agrees by submitting this proposal (cbhtract) Ih^' It
wrlll ind.ude this clause..entit[ed 'Certification Regarding Debarment; Suspension, InellgibiBty. and
Voluntary Exclusion - Ldwiiir Tier Covered Tiahsactions,' without modification in all lower tier
ccwefed trahsactlohs arid In all.sollcitations for lower.tier covered transactions.

Representaliv
Donnatec Lozeau. Executive Director

(Authortzed Contractor R^xesehtetrve Name & Title)

■Southern NH Services. Inc.. \iU nLc /
(Contractor Narne) (Date
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NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
COMPUANCE WITH SECTIONS 504 OF THE REHABILITATION ACT OF 1973, as

AMENDED AND AMEFUCANS WITH DISABILmES ACT OF 1990

The ContraQtor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of
the Contractor's representative as identifted in Sections 1..11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions, to-exepute the following,certification:

The Coritractor hereby agrees that It will comply with Section 504 df'the Rehabilitation Act
of 1973, as, arnended, and Annerican's with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended, and all
requirements imposed by the appjicable regulations (45 GFR Parf 84) .and guidelines and
Interpretatibfis issued pursuant thereto;

Rursu.arit to Subsection 84.5(a) of the rei^ulatioos (45 CFR 84.5(aj), the iContfactor gives
this Assurance in Qonslderajtion of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all federal
grants, loans., contracts, (except procurement contracts and cqntracls :of insurance or
guaranty), property, discounts, or other federal financial assistance extended by NHES
after the date of this Assurance, including paymerits or other assi^ance made afte.r such
dale on appilications for federal financial assistance that were approved before such date.
The Contract recognizes and agrees that such federal financial assistance will be
extended in reliance on the representation and agreements madq In this Assurance and
that thfe Onited Slates Will have the right to enforce this Assurance through lawful means.
This Assurance is binding on .the Cbnlracior, its successors, transferees, arid assignees,
and the person, or person whose signatures appear below are. authorized to sign thiis
Assurance on behaff of the recipient.

This Assurance obligates the recipient for the period during which federal financial
assistance ;ls extended to it by NHES or. where the assistance is in the form of real
propepty for the period pro.vid.ed .for in subsection iB4.5{b) of the regulation (45 CFR Part
84.e(b)).

or Repre^tat^ SlgnBtutB)

Southern NH Services. Inc.

Dbnnalee Lozeau. Executive Director
(Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)

nzm
(Contractor Name) (Dale)



NH Department of Empidyment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT G

HEAI.TH TNSITR ANrF. PORTABn.fTV AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT

RliSMRSS ASSOCTAtF. AflRRKM RNT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance PoTtability and Accotintabili^ Ac^ Public Law 104-191 and with the Standaitls for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR"Parts 160 andl64 end those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. A? defined herein, "Business, Associate*' shall
mean the Cpntractor and subqintractcKS and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
jm^scted haalth -infonnatipn under thiis Agreement and "Covered- Ehtity" shall mean the' State of New
Itempsbire, Department of Health.ai^ Human ̂m^ces.

A!tsnrTATE A<?RFKMENT

|;i) Defiaitions.

a. ^'Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach** in Title XXX, ̂nbtitle D. Sec.

13400..

b. business Assodate" has the meaning given such term .in section 160.103 of Tilh 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meajning given such term in section 1,^.103 of Titie 45, Code of
Federal Regulations.

d. *'^Designated Record Set" shall have the same meting as the term ''designated record set" in 45
CFR Section .164.501.

e. "Data Ag^gatton" shall have same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care ODcrations" sh^l have the same meaning as the term "health care operaiions" in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH, Aq" means the Health Inforaation Technology for Economic and Cjlnical Health Act,
Title Xm, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the Amencan Recovery and ReinveiStment Act of 2009.

h. "HIPAA" mcanS 'the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identiftable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 1^.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 164.501
and ̂ 11-include a person who qualifies as a pdrsonal representative in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.501(g).

k.



j. "Privacy Rule" ̂ 11 oiean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Healdi
InfbnnatiOD at 45 CFR Pans 160 and 164, promulgau^ under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "protected Health Information'* shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
infdnnation** in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Business Associate from or dh behalf of Covered Entity.

1. "Required bv lAw** shall have the ssmc me^nii^ as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

m, " SeCretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and .Human Services or his/her
desl^ee.

n. "Security Rule** shall mean the S^urity Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Healdh liifonnatibn at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C,.and amendments.then^o.

0. "Unbred Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not-secured,
by a technology standard that renders piptected health infpnriatlon unu^le; unreasonable, or
ind^pherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed of endorsed, by a standards
developing organization that is.acciedited by the American National Standards Institute.

p. Qthfer brfmitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established
under 45 CJIL Parts 160, A 62 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HTTECH Act

(2) Use and PisclMnrii df Protac^d Health Information.

a. Busing Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Ihfoimation
(PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit B of the
Agreernent; ipu^er, the Busineiss Associate shall not, and shall ensU.re that, its directors,;Officers,
employees and agents, do nol use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would
constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Busine^ Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the propermanageipent and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursiiant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
m. For data aggregation puiposa for the health care operations pf Covered Ediity.

c. To thP. extent Business'Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI lo a third
party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable
assurances .from (he third party that such PHI will be held confidentialiy and us^ ,cr further
disclo^ only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party;
and (ii) an agreement fropi such third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance wjth the
HrTECH Act, Subtitie D, Part 1, Sec. 13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHJ, to
the extent it has obtained knowledge Of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide

2
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services under Exhibit B of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response, to a ^uest for
disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that
Covered Entity has an pppoitumty to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If
Covered Entity objects to such diKlosure, the Business-Associate shall refn^ disclosing the
PHI untj] Covered Entity has tô ust'ed all remedies.

e. If the Covered Eqtity notifies the Busmess Associate Covered Entity has figi^ to be boiind
by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Priva^ and. Security Rule, the 'Business Associate shall be bound by
additional re^dions and shall disclose PHI in vio.fation of such additional restrictions and
fhi»!i abide by anytadditionBl security safeguards.

P) OhIiPfltioifa nnd Actfvliriei of Assocfaite.

.8; Busine^ Associate shall report to'the dc^goated Privacy Officer of Covoed Entity, in writing,
any or. disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident-
involving Covered Entity data, in apcprdancc with the HITECH Act, SubtiUe D, Part 1, Sec.
l'3402.

b. The Business Associate sluU coinply with all sections of the l^v^y and Se^ty Rule as* sc^
fofth.in; the HTTECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, -Sec. 13401, and Sec. 13404.

c. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and
records relating to the use -and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the
Business Associate on behalf of CbVered Enti^ to the Secretaly for purposes of determining
Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

d. Busmess Associate shall require all of its business .associates that feceiye, use or have access to
PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on
the'use and 'disciosure of PHI coriteincd herein, including the duty to return pr destroy the PHI-as
provided under Section (3) b and (3) k. hereiii The. Covered Entity shall be considered a direct
third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's
intended business, associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to. this Agreement, with rights
of enforcem'ent and indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by
standard provision #13 of this Agmernent for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected
health informatjon.

e. Within five (S) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate sh^l make available .during norrDal 'business hours at its offices all records, books,
agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered
Entity, for purposes of'enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate's compliance
with the terms of the Agreement. :

f. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business
Associate shall .provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered ̂ Uty, or as
directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to ineet the requirements under 45 CFR
Section 164.524.

3
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g. Within ten (10) biuiness days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amend.ment of PHI or a lecord about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the
Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covmed Entify for ^endment aid
incoiporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obli^tions under 45 CFR
Section 164J26.

h. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and mfonnation related to such
disclosures as would be required for (^ve^ Entity, to respond to a request by an indiddual for
ain accounting of disdosures of PHI in accordance with 45. CFR Section 164.523.

i. Within ten (10) busjness days receiving a writjt.ep.requ^ from Covered Eptity for a request for
an accounting ;of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall, make available to Covered Entity
such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its ̂ Ugations to'provide a/i accounting
of disclosures with reflect to ptil in apcord^Kx with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

j. ln.the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, oraccouiiting of PlBdiiecdy^m
the ^pciate, the Business Associate iShrill vnthin two (2) bu^ine^ days forwa^ such
request to Covered Entity^ ̂ vered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to
forwardj^ requests. However, if forwar^g the individual's rbclueSt to Coveii^ Entity, would
cause Covered Entity or the Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security
Rule, the Business Associate shall instead respond to the individuaPs request as required by such
law and notify i^vered Entity of such response as s6oh as practicable.

k. Withm ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement; for any reason, the Business
Associate shall retum or destipy.-as specified by CCveied Enti^; all PHI received from, or
created or received by the Business Asrociate in connection with the' Agreement, aiui shall not
retain .any copies or back-up tapes of-such PHI. If retiun or destruction is not feasible, or the
disposition of the'PHI has been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall
continue to' extend the prgtections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses, and
disclosures of such PHI to those purfxiises that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so
long ais Business Associate maintains such PHL If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires
that the Business Associate destroy any or all PHl, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI Has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations 6f ciiVeircd Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business ̂ sqciate of any change's or iiirutation(s) in its Nptice of
.Privacy Pii^tices pro.yided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the
extent that such ch^geor limitation may affect Business Associate's mx or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
pennission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CHHl
Section 164-508.

•  c. Co^^ed entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or

4
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disclosure of PHI that Covrnd Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522/to the
extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to standari) piovisibD #10 of this Agreement, the Covered Entity may immediately
terminate the Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a br^ch by Business Associate of
the Business Associ^e set forth herein as Exhibit G. The Covered Entity may either
immediately terininate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Assbcimc to cure
the alle^ breach within a tim'e&ame specified by Covered Entity. If. Covered Entity determines
that neither t^ination nor ciire is feasible. Covered EnUty shall report the violation to the
Senary.

(6) MlKellhncouii

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein^ shall
hSve'lhe same'meaning as'those terms m the Privacy and Security Rule, and IheHITCCH Act as
amended from time to.time. A reference in Ihe'Agreement, as aimend^ to inclyde this Exhibit 0,
to a Se(^.cn iii the. Privacy apd Security Rule mcans.the Section as In e^ecf or as amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Assobiate agree to take, ̂ ch action as is necessary to
amdid the Agreemat;.^m time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to cornply with the
changes in the requirements orHIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

c. Data bwntership: The Business' Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with
respect'to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entityi

d. Interpretation. The p^les agree that any ambiguity in the Agreeinent shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to cotnply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and thc HITECH Act,

e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit G or the a^lication thereof to any pcrsonCs)
or circuiiitoce is held mvalid, such invalidity shall not affixt other terms or coriditipos. which
can be given effect without the invalid teirn or condition; Id this end the terms and conditions of
this Exhibit G are declixed severable.

f. Survival. Proyisions in this Exhibit G regarding the use and di^losure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the ̂ fense and
indenmification provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the
termination of the Agreement.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit G.

Deoairtment of Emplbymatt Security Southern NH Services. Inc.

The.State,Agency Name Name of the Contractor

George N. Copadis, Commissioner Donnalee LQzcau, Executive Director

Name of Authorized Representative N.ame.pfAuthorized Kq^reseotadve

Signature, of Authdrized Represeht^ve

Date

ature of Authorired Repr^entatiye

Date

V



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABBHTY

AND TRANSPARENCY ACrrFFATAl COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transpaiency Act (^ATA) requires prime awardees of
individual Federal gr^ts equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to
report on data, related to executive compensation aqd associated first-tier sub-grariis of S25,000 or more.
If'the.ihitial award ts below S25,000 but subsequent g^t modifications result in a total award equal to or
over S2S,000^ tbe aw^ is object to die FFATA reportingrequirementSi as of the date of the.awaM.

In accordance with 2 CFRJPprt 170 (Repdnifig Sub-ayvard and Exe^utivt Compensation Information), the
D^ulmeht.of &Dployment-Security (NHES) must report the following information for any-sub-awa^ or
contract award.subject io the FFATA reporiing requirements:

,0 N.aitie of atity
2) Amount of award
3) Fund^ agency
4) NAIGS, dode for contracts / CFDA program number for. grants
'5) Program source'
6). dt|e descriptive of the purpose of the ̂ ding action
7) Location of the entity
8) Principle place of p^onnance
9) UmqO"c.ii}ip]itifierbf.thbenlily(DUNS#)
10) Total .compensation-and names of- the top five executives if:

a. More than 80^ of annual gross revenues iire!&om the pederal government, and those
revenues arc greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation infonnatipn is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant rccipi^ts must .submit.FFATA required data by the. end of the month, plus 30 days, in which,
the award or award ameiidment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of

The Federal Funding Accountability and Tran^arency Act^ Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-

252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Sub-award and Executive Compensation Irformaiion), and fiuiher
■agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 ^ 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the. following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
iartment of Employment.Sec'urity and to comply with'all applicable provisions of the Federal
ihcial Accouolability and Transparency Act.

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director

(C^nt^or Representativ^ignaiure) (Authorized Contractor Representative Name & Title)
Southern NH Services. Inc. i ! lOlO
(Contractor Name)

Fin
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FORMA

As (be Contractor idettified in Section 1.3 of the General Pmvisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity'is; 0885840^5

2. In your business or organizatron^s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
:recdve (1.) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. fed^ contracts, subcontracts, loans,,
grants, sub^grants, and/or cooperative agreements; aUd (2). S2S,000,000 or more .in annual gross revenues
tiom U.S...federal contracts, subcontracts, loons, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements?

YES 2L NO

If the-answer to ifl above is NO, stop .b^

Ifthe answer to #2 above is YES, please answer thefoUowing:

3, Does tfae publib hiiyC access to information about tbC compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 1 S(d) of the.Secuiiti^ Exchange Act of
1934 (] 5 U.S.'G.78a]i(a), 78.Q(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue of 1986?

YES NO

If the answer to 1f3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to above b NO, please answer (be following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
org^ization are as'follows:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:

Name: Amount:



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT 1

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor Identified in S^ion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sedions 5151-51^ of the drug-Free Workplace ̂  of 1988 (Pub. L. 100H690, Title V, Subtitle D: 41 U.$.C.
701 <et seq.), ar^ further agrees to have the. Coritr^or's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and
1.12 of the General Prov^tpns to the contract, execute the
foliowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE. I - FOR iSRANTEES OTHER THAN INDMbUALS

US DEPARTMEI^T of labor - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the relations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the drug-Free
Workplace Act.of 19^8 (f^b. L, 10CW90.'Tftle V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S:C. TQI et sbq;). The .Jarwary 3.1,1989
regulations >vere amended :end published as Part 11 of the May 25, 1^ Fedei^ Register (pages 21.6Q1-
2169'1), and require certification by grantees (and ̂  Inference, sub^rrantees and sut>-contractorsL prior to
award, that they will maintain a drugTree workplace. The certificate set out below is 'a mateHal
representation -of-faduponwhich reliarice Is placed when .the agency award.s'the graritV False certificatjoh or
violation of the certification shall be grounds for- suspension d .payments; suspensiori or termination
of grants^ or government wide suspension or debarmenL Contract^ using this form should send It to: NH
Dcpartmenl'of Employment Security, 45 South Fruit Street, Concord, NH 03301.

(A) The.granleo certifies that It will or will continue to provide a dmg-free workplace by:

(a) Publiishing a statement notifying employees that the unfawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controRed substance is prohibited In the grantee's workplace
and specifying the.actton4 that will be taken against employeas f6r violation of such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug^ee awareness program to inform employees about-^

(1) The dangers-6f drug abuse in the workplace;
(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, arxi employee .assistance programs;

.and
(4) the pehalUes that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occuiring in the workplace;

(c) Making It a requirement that each empto'yee to be engaged In the performance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

(d) Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—

(1) Abide by the terms of (he statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
/  conviction;
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(e) Notions the agehcy in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph. (d){2) from an employee' or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including poslUon title,
to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless
the Federal agency has designated a central point for Ifte receipt of such notices. Notice
shall Irttlude the Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of (ha following actions, within 30 calendar days of r^celvlrig notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect tb any employee who is so convlcted~

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termlnatipn, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilit^n Act of 1973, as
amended; or

(2) Rec(ulrir>g such employee to participate satisfectorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehatimtation .pix>gram approved fbf such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health.'law dhforbement. or other approprlate egenc^

(g) Making.a.good faith effort tb ooilUmJe (6 maintain a diug-ffee workplace through implementation
of paragraphs (a), (b), (c}, (d). (e), and (f).

(B) The grantee may Insert In the space provided below the site(s) for the peffofmance of work done In
connection With the specific.grant

Place of Performance: NH Works Offices located throughout the State; 40 Pine. St Manchester, NH

Period Covered by'thls Certification: From: January 1,2021 To: June 30.2024

Contractor Narrre: Southern NH Services, Inc.

Name & Title of Authorized Contractor;Representative: Dorinalee Lozeau, .Executive Director

Contractor Representative Signature; Date

V



NH Department of Employment Security

STANDARD EXHIBIT J

STATEMEOT OF CONFIDENTIALUY

Every client- has the right tp privacy and confidentially of his .or her record. InfonnatiGn contained in an
individiiars case record is designated confidential luider state and federal law.

All staff and employees of the Department of Employment Security .(NH£S)> including agencies unda contract
with NHES> are under an equd obligation to treat as coniideotia] any infbrination they may acquii^ by any
•means, about an applicant, a recipient or former recipient.

The fact that an individual is a current, or past participant in any US Department of Labor funded program
administered by NHES is considered confidenti^ information. Information abdut a client may be shared.among
Staff of NHES (or contract agency) only as is necessary for the adminisfration of the prpg;raiTi(s) which the
individual is receiving services.

No iofbimatioh.is'to be shared outside of NHES (or the contract agency) with anyone ex;cq>t with the informed
written authorization of the client or the person authorized to give consent on the client's behalf. Cliqits must
be advised of the-iDfQrmation.that will be shared and the time period this sharing will take .place.

Contract agencies and NHES shall share information with one another that is related to the service(s) provided
and adininisuntion pfthe prpgraro as described in the contract without an additional release.

Without a specific release, discussions cannot include mention of any client names or facts that would identify
an individiial. Information cannot be given over the phone unless it is given directly to the client or an
individual whom the client has designated, in writing, to act in their behalf, this prohibition applies to police
ofBcers^ legislators^ lawyers and others who assert^a need to know conridential information; All third parties
must provide written authorization of the client to discuss or receive confidezitial information.

Breaches of confidentiality will be regaled as a serious ofifense rmd grounds for disciplinary action.

The contractor agrees to ensure that a sighed confidentiality form is placed in the personnel file of all staff
funded with Workforce Innovation Opportun.ity Act (WIOA) funds.

Southern NH Services, Inc.

Contractor Name

Donnalee Lozeau, Executive Director

AWorized Contractor Representative Name and Title

'ywifi J'jffjnilfli: IjZOlO
A^orized Cdotracton^epresentative Signature Dat

12.02.0



NH Department of Employment Security

EXHIBIT K

WlOA ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS

SNHS, tbe sub^redplent/contrsctor, assures and certifies that they wDI comply with applicable WlOA
ass.uranc9s as Implerhented:

1. WIOA.Statute: is Incorporated herein as If fully written.

2. WlOA Regulations: are Incorporated herein as if fully written.

3. -Federal Standards and Uniform Adniinlstrative Requirernents for State and Local Governments,
tnstitutioHs of Higher Education and Other Non-Profit Organizations and dMB Super Circular In effect
January, .2015 arejncorporated herein as If fully written.

Iri addltiori, all procurement contracts and other transactions mu^ be conducted only on a cost

reimburs§ment basis.. No provl^n for profit is allowed. A modified cost reimbursement process,
which allovrs for regular estimated payments, is permitted as long-as a recpnctllatipn.of expenses and
ca^ drawn is cohducted ho less frequently than quarterly.

4. WlOA State Poltcv - SNHS will comply with the terms and conditions of this contract with NHE5 and

the State of N^ Harhpshire WlOA Combined State Plan as said plan applies to the program services
provided by the sub*reclp.ient/contractbr

Further the sub^redpient/contractor shall abide by and follow the directions of the WlOA Policy and
Procedures developed by NHES/BEA as Issued and/or ail subsequent WJOA Policy and Procedure
revlsloris and modifications thereto. Hereinafter, the term WlOA Policy Is Inclusive of the contract,
plan and policies ahd procedures previously mentioned, unless otherwise specified.

5. Gonfnct - In the event that a term or condition of this contract is Incompatible with WlOA authorizing
legislation, appticabi.e Federal Regulations, and State Policy, then the terms of WlOA shall supersede
that term or condition and govern .the performance of the parties under that part.

6. Amendments -The' s.ub-rcclplent/contractor further assures and certifies that If the Federal

Regulations or State Policy Is amended. It shall comply with same or notify NHES in writing within IS
days after promulgation of the amendments that It cannot so comply, so that .NHES may take such
action as It deems necessary.

It Is the responsibility of NHES to notify the sub-recipient/contractor In writing of any proposed or

promulgated amendments of the Act, Federal Regulations, or State Policy to allow the sub-
recipient/contractor a reasonable time to effect compliance.

7. Other ADollcable Statutes -The sub-rccipient/contractor shall comply with the provisions of the

following legislation, or successor legislation:

29 CPR Part 37 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity Requirements

V-
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0MB "SuperCircular^ Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations
The Americans with Disabilities Act Of 1990 (Pub. L 101-335.104 Stat. 327,42 U.S.C 12101-
12213 and 47 U.5.C 225 and 611)

Hatch Act (S U.S.C. Subscctioh ISOl -1508 and 7324-7328) which limits the political actlvilles

of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or In part with
Federal funds

Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevendpn. Treatment and Rehabilitation Act
ofl970 as amended (P.L91-616)
Section 504 of the RehabilKatioh Act of 1973 as amended (29 .U.5.C Section 794.29 CFR Part
32). which prohibits disalmlnation agalriSt qualified individuats with disabilities;

Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C Subsection 1681-

1§88, and 1685 and 1686).. which prohibits discrimination on the basis of se.x ln educational
programs

The ̂  Discrimination Act of 1975 as amended (42 U.S.C Section 101-6107), which prohibits
discrimination oh the* basis of age;

Title VI of the. Civil Ri^Hts.Ain of 1954 (P.L 88-352./ 29 CFR Part 31); as amended, which
prohibits discrimbatlpn on the bases of race; color and natioriai origin
Drug Abuse Office and treatment Act of 1972 (P.L. 92-255) as amended
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. Subsection 276d to 276a-7) regarding labor standards for federally
a.sslsted constf.uctlon sub- agreements

Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. Subsection 276C arxl 18 U.S.C. Subsection 874)' regarding labor
standards for federally assisted construction sub-agi;eernents

Contract Work .Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C Subsections 327-333) regarding
labor standards for federally assisted construction sub-agreements

Occup^tibnaj Safety and Health Act. including State and Federal law which are applicable to
similarly employed employees of the same ernployer who are not participants in programs
under WIOA.

Implementation of the Priority of Service provisions of the Jobs for Veterans Act (73 fed. Reg.
78132)

Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation and Opportur^lty Act (WIOA). prohibits
discrimination against all Individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion,

sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, and related medical conditions, transgender status, and
gender identity), national origin (including limited English proficiency), age, disability, or
political affiliation or belief, or against beneficiaries or> the basis of either Citizenship status or
participation in any WIOA Title I- financiatiy assisted program of activity; and
Comply with 29 CFR part 38 and ail other regulations implementing the laws.listed above.

8. Political Activities • The sub-recfpient/contractor shall not provide financial assistance for any program
under this Act, which involves the following political activities:
•  No participant may engage in any political activities during hours for which the participant is

paid with funds under the Act.

•  No participant may. at any time engage In any political activities in which such participant

represents himself/herself as a spokesperson of any program under this Act.
•  No partidpant may be employed or out stationed in the Office of a member of Congress, of a

state or local legislator or on any staff of a legislative committee.

lll/jinio



•  No participant may be employed or outslationed in the immediate office of any chief-elected
executive official (or officials, if the office of chief executive is shared by more than one

person) of the State or unit of genefal local government, except that:
•  Sub-recipient/qpntractors In rural areas may employ participants In such positions

provided that documentation is presented to and approved by NHES which makes dear

that such positions are non-political; and

• Where positfons.are technically in such office, but are actually program activities not In
any way involved In political functions, documentation attesting to the non-political
nature of the position is to be provided to NHES for approval prior to enrollment of
participants in such positions.

•  Sub-recipien^contractors shall develop safeguards to ensure that partidpahts placed in,these
ppsltions'are not.lnvolved in political activities.

.9. Neootism - No Individual may placed in a ,W10A employnient a^vity if a member of his/her
Immediate family is engaged in an-adminlstratlve capadty for the employment agency.

Tb the extent that an applicable State or local legal requirement regarding nepotism is more restrictiye.
than this provision, such State or Iota! requirement shall be followed.

"Adrhinistratlve capaciiy" includes-those persons who have overall administrative responsibility for a
program, including: al.1 elected and appointed officials who have any responsibility for the obtaining
of and/or approval of any grant funded.under the Act as well as other Officials who have Influence or
control over the^admlnistratlon of the-program, such as project directors, and persons who have
selection, h1r]ng,^p.Iiacem8nt of supervisory responsibilities for participants.

"Immediate family" means wife, husband, son, daughter, mother, father, brother brother-in-law,
sister, sister-;fn-law, son-In- law, daughter-ihrlaw, mother-in-law, father-in-law, aunt, uncle, niece,
nephew, step-parentand step-children.

10. Poiitlcal Patronage - The sub-recipient/cohtractor shall not select, promote, or reject a participant
vendor, or sub- r^ip.ient/contractor based On pbltticai affiliations or belief. The selection or
advancement of employees as a reward for political services or as a form of political patronage is

prohibited whether Or not the political ̂ rvice or patronage Is partisan in nature.

.11. Conflicts of Interest -The sub;;reciplent/contractorshBll be aware of, and abide by, any and allconfllct
of interest policies currently in place, or later established by NHES.

12. Kickbacks - No officer, employee, or agent of any sub-reciplent/contractor shall solicit or accept
gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from any actual or potential participant or any of Its
potential sub-sub-reclplent/contractors.

13. Unionization and Antl-unionizatlon Activities/Work Stoooages -

•  No funds under the Act shall be used in any way to either promote or oppose unionization.

•  No individual shall be required to join a union as a condition for enrollment in a program
In which only institutional training is provided, unless such Institutional training involves

individuals employed under a collective bargaining agreement which contains a union
security provision.
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•  No partidpsnt may be referred to or placed into, or remain working In any position which
is affected by labor disputes Involving virork stoppage. If such a work stoppage occurs
during the grant period, participants In affected positions miist; (a) be relocated to
positions not affected by the dispute; (b) be suspended through administrative leave; or
(c) where participants belong to the labor union involved In the work stoppage, be treated
in the sarrie manner as any-other union member except such members must not remain
workihg In the affected position. The.sub-recipient/contractor shall make every effort to
relocate participants, who wish to rernain working, into suitable positions Unaffected by
the work stoppage.

14. Fees • No funds under this Act shall be psed for payment of a fee charged to an individual for the
placement of that individual In. a training or employment program under the Act The sub-
recipient/contractor shall not charge a fee to any Individual for the referral or placement of that
individual In any-program.

15. Consultation wfth labor Organizations • Any assistance program conducted with funds made available

.under this Act which will provide services to a substentfaj nu.mber of rnembiers ora.tabor brganization
shall be established only after'fuil consultation with such labor organizations.

16. DIspfademeht Funds - provided undier this Act shall only be used for actiyitids that a.re In addition to
those which wpuld otherwise'be available In the area In.the absence of such fundSi

No currently employed worker shall be displaced by any participant (Induding partial displacement
such as a reduction In the hours of'non«overtlme work, wages, or employment benefits),

WlOA participants will not be enrolled In employment activities whldi violate existing contracts, for
services or collective baigaihlng agreerrients. Where an employment activity would vfolate a collective
bargaining agreement; the affected labor organization and employer must provide written
concurrence before the employer activity can be undertaken.

No participant shall be employed or a job opening filled: (1) when any other individual Is on layoff
from the .teme or any substantiaily equivalent job within the same organizational unit, or (2) when
the epnployer has terminated the employment of any regular employee or otherwise reduced Its work
force vrith the Intention of filling the vacanpy so created by hiring a participant whose wages are
subsidized under this Act

No jobs shall be created In a promotional line that will Infringe in. any way upon the promotional
opportunities of currently employed 'indlvlduals.

Regular employees or program participants alleging displacement may hie a complaint.

17. Financial Management - 6AAP shall be" used, or In absence of such system, the sub-
reclpient/contractor shall maintain a financial and accounting system that provides adequate internal
controls and records to allow NHES, USOOL, State auditors, etc. to audit and monitor the sub-

reclplent/contractor's programs.
•  Bank accounts shall have FOIC coverage.
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•  Funding adrances are discouraged. Cost rieimbursement is the preferred method. However,

should, advances ̂ e approved, nrilnimal time between hind requests and expenditures shall
exist, and in NO event shall advances exceed 10% of sub-reciplen.t/cpntractor's contract.

•  All grant expenditures shall be supported with source documentation such as cancelled
checks. Invoices, etc. Sufficient Internal controls shall exist to prevent fraud and program
abuse.

•  Any person with knowledge of fraud, abuse, pr criminal activity shall report such actryfty to
NHES.within three (3) working days.of obtaining such knowledge.

18. Program Income "The addition method shall be required for use of all program inpomeeamed. under
WlOA grants.

The cost of generBtlng program irtcome shall be subtracted from the amount earned to.establish the

arnount.of .the prograrh Incorhe avallable'fpf use under the grants.

19. Record Retention - The sub-reclpient/contractor shall retain all records pertinent to the grant
including participdht, emplp^, financial, statistical, and norhexpendable property records and
supporting documents for a perlo.d of three years beginning on the date of the sub-
redpieht/contractor^s submission of the final report to NHES, or for up to six years if selected for Data
Valldatipri re\Hew.

If, prior to the expiration of the three-year retention period, any litigation or audit is begun or a claim
IS instltyted involving the grantcovered by the'records, the sub^dpieh^contractot shall retain the
records beyond the three^ear period until the litigation, audit, findings, or daim has bedn finally
resolved;

Upon written request of NH^, records with long-term retention value (beyond the six-year period)
shall betransferred to NHES;

The sub*redpient/contractor shall carry out the destruction or disppsal of any or al) documentation,
ih-a manner spas to preserve the confidentiality of said materiaf;-

•  Records Indudiiig books of account for the expenditure of WlOA funds to enable NHES, the
State, orUSPOL to audit and monitor the program.

•  Records concerning each employee and partidpant involved in a WlOA program. Records shall
provide Information required by NHES and outlined in the contract

The sub-redpient/contractof shall observe the Federal and State regulatory policies regarding public
access to records and confidentiality of personnel records maintained for a program under this grant.

20. Title to Property - Title to any and ell real or non-expendable personal property received or acquired
by the sub-reclpient/contractor under this grant or through use of funds or proceeds from funds
provided under this grant are subject to the terms and conditions of use and disposition as set forth
In WlOA and State surplus property regulations.

21. Relocations • The sub-recipient/contractor shall not use funds under the Act to assist In relocating
establishments, or parts thereof, from one area to another unless such relocations will not result In
an Increase in unemployrnent In the area of original location or in any other area.
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22. Program Management♦ Tfte sulH'edpIent/contractor shall monitor Its programs monthly.
Written policies and procedures shall be established, implemented, In effed, and followed.
Policies shall include procedures for collecting performance Information;, assessing p^rfprrnance
problems, developing and implementing appropriate remedial actions, and shall provide descriptions
of each activity and service provided under the contract.

Sufficient management systems shall exist to provide regular and contlhudus assessment and
monitoring of all. program and fiscal systems covered under the contract, as well as grievance and
hearing procedures. Monitoring shall ensure compliance with the Act, federal regulations, state
policy, and any subsequent amendments thereto, and such assessments shall include any and all
'subcontractors..$ub^recipient/contract shall take appropriate corrective actlons'pn any bf the above
l55ues,:if. necessary between regularly scheduled reporting dates, written notification of problems,
delays, or other adverse conditions, which may materially affea contract perfo'mnance, shall be
submitt^ to NH£S. Such notification shaill include a statement of remedial actions taken or
contemplated, rand any .assistahce needed, from NHES.to resolve.the situation. Should favorable
developments or even^ occur, su^ inforrmatidn shall also be submitted to NHES.

The sub-redpient/contractorshaH fully cooperate with authorized NHES and Federal representatives
who visit to review program accomplishments and/or provide technical assistance.

23. NHES Monitoring and Evaluatibh of Sub'redDlent/cbntractofs - NHES will periodically monitor;
evaluate and review through orvsite visits, and program adminlstnatioh and managetnent practices
supported With fonds under the Act in order to ensure compliance vnth the Act, the Regulations and
the terms of any subcontracts'.entered Into under the contract. Examples of monitored areas are:

•  Reviewing all systems for controlling program sdmlhistratlpn
•  Reviewing pay records and attendance reports to ensure controls are established for

preventing unauthorized payments
•  Interviewing partldpants
•  Examining work sites and workconditions
«  Reviewing plans and procedures and subTfedpient/contractor capability to carry out

programs and activities
•  Monitoring sub-recip1ent/contractor maintenance of records on all expenditures of funds
•  Reviewing EEp procedures as applicable
•  NHES will document its findings and make recommendations for corrective action

when.qyer It identifies noncompllance with the.Act Regulations, or terms of the contract.
•  The sub-recipient/contractor shall review all material sublnitted to It by NHES and

respond to NHES with respect to the action taken or planned in response to the
recommendations made.

24. Sut>'fedpient/Contractor monitoring - The sub-redplent/contractor Is responsible for monitoring all
of its subcontractors to ensure compliance with:

•  TheActahdtheftegulations
•  The provisions of Its contract
•  The provisions of agreements awarded by It

All nrionitorlng activities shall be appropriately documented and reported to NHES.
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25. BorwJingSub-feciolent/contract shall show evWencjS of a bond (or self-insured statusi for every officer,
director, iagent, or employee of the sub-redpient/contractor or its sub- sub^reciplent/contractors, if
any, authorized to act on behalf of the sub-recipient/contractor or Its sub-sub-recipient/contractors
for the purpose of receiving or depositing funds Into program accounts, or Issuing financial
documents, checks, or other instruments of payments for program costs. The amount of the coverage
shall be $100,000.00.

26. Eligibility.The sub-reclpient/cohtractor shall establish effective systems to ensure accurate partidpant
eligibility review determinations exist. Changes in eligibility status may only be don'e by designated
eligibility staff. Eligibility detehninations shall be made on forms and/or case managements sterns
provided by NHl^ for that purposerand shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
NHES.

27. Retroactive Payments; Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the contract or In any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the partles-

he/eto, that i^o ̂ yments will be made hereunder to reimburse the sub-reclplent/contractor for costs

incurred for any purpOK or for any services provided to any Individual prior .to the effective da;tc Of

the contract and no paymerits shall be made for expenses incurred by the sub-recipient/contractor
for any services.proyided prior to the date on which the Individual applies foriservlces or (except as

otherwlise provided by the federal r^ulailons) prior to a determination that the indlyklual is eligible
for such service

28. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by NHES, the sub-

reclpient/contradtpr shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall

Include all Information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other informatiori

as NHES requests, particularly for data validation purposes. The sub-reclpient/contractor shail furnish

NHES with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations and services that OWO

may request or require^

29. Mandated Data 6ntrv Systems: The sub-reclpicnt/contra'ctor will be legally obligated to enter data
required by NHES and/or the US Department of Labor, relating to all participants serv^ during the
contract period in the case managerhent system mandated by NHES (I.e.,. G.eographic Solutions for

WlOA services). The sub-reclplent/contractor shall be responsible for keeping participant's files up-
to-date, especially in time to meet quarterly reporting deadline requirements.

30. Assessment -The sub-recipient/contractor shall make a detailed assessment for each participant after

the participant is certified eligible. Specific assessment requirements are outlined In the contract

body.

31. Partidoants Rights and Benefits Every participant, prior to entering a WlOA activity shall be informed
of that individual's rights and benefits in connection with the activity including but not limited to:

• Working condltioru; Nondlscrlmination;
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•  Confidentiality of personnel participant Information;
•  Personnel policies applicable to the individual partidpant's drcumstances;
•  The WlOA complaint and Hean'ng Procedure: and if the participant is still active in a

partners' services, the sub- recipient/contractor must provide information pertinent to
the complaint to NHES, and attend and testify on behalf of NHES at ̂  fair hearing if so
requeued; and

•  The,complaint procedures provided by the subH-cciplent/contractor. (OJ.T. partWpants
will first follow specific complaint hearing procedures of their employers.)

32. Grievance Procedures/Customer Gomolaints: The sub-recipient/contractor understands that all
applicants for services hereiinder, as well-as Individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing
regarding-that detgrmlnatiqn. The sub^ecipient/qbntra.ctof hereby covenants and agrees that all
:appl{cants for-servtces shall.be permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
appllcant shall.be Informed of his/her ri^t to a fair hearing in accordance with the required grievance
pp'licy.

a. The sub-recipient/contractor shall eirsu.re that all applicants for WlOA fuhded services
receive a Written grievance procedure notice, and that a signed copy attesting to the
receipt of this 'mfprrhatipn Is included in each applicahf s hard copy file.

•  The syb-recipjent/cOntractor shall ensure that all personnel funded .with WlOA funds are
trained In ̂  grievance policy -and procedure applicable for the funding isouite
supporting this contract MOU.

•  The Sjub-redplent/cbritractor shall ensure that NHES 1$. Informed Immediately of any
formal grievance filed by a program applicant or partfclpaht so that they may notify the
OWO (Office of Workforce Opportunity) EC Officer.

•  The sub-re.cipient/cbhtractof shall respond either verbally or In writing to any complaint
that does not constitute a. formal grievance, within two days from receipt of such
complaint.

33. Termination - Nothing In this section shall restrict a sub-reclplent/contractor from effecting
terrplhatloru for cause, or from effecting suspensions or transfers; under such terms and. conditions
determined appropriate under the policy and/or directions of NHES. If a participant Is being
terminated involuntarily and for cause other than completion of po^m Intent, the sub-
reclplen.t/contractor shall provTde the participant with written notice of the impending termination
from his/her particular pxbgram activity or from the total WlOA prc^ram and a contact person for
Questior«and further informaUon at least two (2) weeks prior to the effective date of terrtiination. A
dated copy of the notlce shall be maintained In the participant's file. The sub-redplent/contractor will
cooperate in assisting NHES staff in conciliation if so warranted.

34. Disallowed Costs: The sub-recipient/will be solely responsible for paying NHES any and all disallowed
costs assodated with the misappropriation of federal funds and/or costs expended on participants
who were erroneously determined to be eligible for services. Disallowed costs may not be paid Wth
any other federal funds.

35. Payment of Waees - Parildpants In On-the-Job Training shall be compensated by the employer at
such rates, including periodic increases, as are masonable, considering such factors as Industry,
geographic region and the partidpant's skills. In no event shall the wage rate be less than the highest
of the following:

•  The minimum wage rate spedfied in section (6) (a) (1) of the Fair Labor Standards Act;
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•  The prevainhg wage rate for persons similarly employed;
•  The minirnum entrance wage rate for inexperienced workers in the same occupation in

the establishment 6f, if the occupation Is new to. the establishment, the prevailing
entrance wage rate-for the occupation in other establishments In the area;

•  Tfie-wage rate required by an applicable collective bargaining agreement; or
•  The prevailing wage rate established by the Department of Labor In eccordance with the

Davis-Bacon Act

36. Working Conditions - Each'participant shall .be assured that:

•  Conditions of employment and training shall be appropriate and reasonable, in light of such

factors as the type of work, geographical region and proficlency.of the participant;
•  No part(clpant.shall be required or permitted to be trained or receive servi.ce.s in buildings or

'surroundings orun'der work conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to the
participant's health.or safety.-The sub- recipient/contractor agrees t.o abide by all relevant
Federal and.State "Safety", laws. Participants employed or trained for Inherently dangerous

o(xupations,.e:g;, fire or police jobs, shall be.assigned to work (n accordance with reasonable
safety practices;

•  All IhdMduals ̂ployed In subsidized jobs shall be provided ̂ nefits and .working conditions
at .the same le^i^el and. to the same extent as other employees woriring a similar length of time
and'dbing the same type of work; and;

•  No funds available under this Aa may be used for contributions on behalf of any participant
to retirement syst^s or ptahs.

37. Cohfidentlalitv of Records; The sub-reclpient/contractor agrees to mai.ntain the confidentiality of any
Iniforniatfon regarding palticipahts and their immediate femilies,thdt may be obtained through
application forms, interviews, tests, reports from public agencies or counselors, or any other source.
Without the permission of the applicant/participant such Infofmatiori shall be divulged only as
necessary for purposes delated to the performance or-evaluation of this contract, and to pe.rsons
having responsibilitles.under the contract.

•  The sub-redpient/con^ractor Is responsible for taking reasonable steps to ensure the
physical security of such data under its control.

•  the sub-redpieht/contractor Is respon^ble for ensuring each of its employees, vendors
or sub^redpients having any Involvement with personal data or other confidential

information are informed in the laws and regulations relating to confidentiality.

•  rach employee funded through this contract shall be required to sign a confidentiality
statement; which shall be maintained In local personnel hies.

38. Confidential Information • Where possible, the identity of any person-who has furnished Information
relatirig to, or assisted In, an investigation of a possible violation of the Act will be held in confidence.

Where the disclosure of the personls identity Is essential to assure a fair determlria.tion of the issues
or where heceissary to effectively accomplish responsibilibes under the Act, the Inspector General,
the Solidtor, Regional Administrator for WIOA, the Administrative Law Judge, New Hampshire State
Judidary or NHES Hearing Officer presiding over a hearing in which the matter arises, may disdose
such identity upon such conditions as shall promote the continued receipt of confidential informajtion
by NHES and effectuate the protection and policies of the Act. No person is entitled under the Act,
the Adulations, or terms and conditions of this grant because such person has filed any complaint
instituted or caused to be Instituted and proceeding under or related to the Act, has testified or is to

iilijmo



testify In any such pro.ceedings or investigation or has provided information or assisted In an
investlgatbn. ^

39. Access to Records/Audits - All WIOA records shaFl be accessible to authorized Federal and State ̂ ff.
Rirther, if-subject to an-audit performed pnder the guidelines of Federal Office of Management and
Budget Suppr Circular, such audit shall Include any and all funds provided by NHES to su.br
recipient/contractor during the period of time covered by such audit.. Sub«redplent/contractor
assures-that a.copy of. the firial audit which pertains to such funds shalj be forwarded to NHES within
thirty .(3.0) days.fotlowfng the.final audit's Issuance date.

40. Sanctions - tn the event of noncomptlance with the contract or these Assurances, NHES may, with
written notjce to:the sub-reclplent/contractor stating the reasons therefore, ln?medialcly terminate,
suspend or 'transfer-sj) or part of the funding provided under this contract or take action, or direct
such .Other action be. taken by the -sub- redplent/contractoc, pertaining to program or financial
'operstibhs.as SNHS deems necessary. If the sub* redplent/contractpr has h^.en found to. be In
violation of the-non-disciiminatiph and/or e.qual bppbrtuhity prbvislons of WIOA, NHES shall follow
their poliey, based on the.admlnlstrative procedures set forth in the Act:

41. Reimbursement to NHES • The jub-fedoient/coritractorthall be responsible for refund,
repayment, and reirhbursementforfunds-underthefoilpwingconditions:
• When any or all monies pipyidW Under this contract or under any previous contract have

been expended by the sub-rjeirlplent/contractof (n a manner or for a purpose determined-by
NHES.as a result.of audit or monitoring to be in violation of the provisions of the contract, Act,
Fedei:a| Regulation, or State Policy, such sum shall be due and owing to NHES and shall.be
repaid to NHES Immedi^^ly' upon demand, from non-federal funds; and

♦ When any cost charged to or any expenditure of, funds or proceeds of funds provided under
^Is [contract or under previous contract Is not supported, documented or otherwise
aaouhted for by the sub-reclplent/contractor as required by the contract, Act> Federal
Regulatrons, or State Policy, and is determined by NHES no.t to be an allowable or alJocable
cost or expenditure, such sum shall be due and owing NHES. and shall-be repaid to NHES
immediately, upon demand, from non-fe'deral funds.

42. Additional Standards - NHES rfiay, in lieu of but not to the exclusion of suspension or termination, or
transfer. Impose additional standards of performance on the sub-redpienl/contractor if NHES
determines on the basis of monitoring, audits or evaluation, that the sub-redpient/cont.ra.ctor has a
history of poor perfprfnance; is not financially stable; or has a management system which .does not-
meet NHES standards as set forth In this contract.

A meeting between NHES and the sub-reciplent/contfactor will occur for discussion of NHES's
cohcerrtf regarding the sub-recipient/contractor's performance before NHES Imposes additional
standards'of performarKe upon the sub-recipient/contractor.

In imposing additional standards of performance, NHES shall notify the sub-reclplent/contractor of
the additional standards imposed; an explanation as to why the standards are needed; and any
corrective actions which must be taken by the sub-reciplent/ccntractor to have the additional
standards removed.
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43. Cessation or Transfer of Activities - In the event of notification to the sub-recipient/contractor of
termination, suspension or transfer by NHES, the sub-recipient/contractor shall, at the direction of

NHCS, Immediately cease and desist from any and all expenditure, commitment or encumbrance of

any and all monies received by the sub- recipient/contractor under this or'any previous contract with

NHES. Any monies'so received by this sub^ recipient/contractor arid remaining at the time of

termination, suspension or transfer shall be immediately refunded or otherwise disposed of by the
sub-recipient/contractor in accordance with the directions oi NH^.

in. the event of termination, suspension or transfer, the sub-reclpient/contractor warrants that it will
fully cooperate with and- provide all .reasonable assistance to NHES In^effecting or maintaining
continuity of services to participants/fncluding, but not limited to,, the efficient .and orderly transfer
of services, benefits, funds, and administratibn of programs and activities to such other parties or
organizations as directed by NHES.

To the extent that. reaso.na.ble"a.nd allowable expenses are incurred.after the cessation of the contract
in effecting and maintainirig continuity of participant services as above described and there having
been ho fending blreadyprovided to cover these expenses by NHES the sub-recip.ient/cpiitracfer.shali
be reimbursed for those expe.nses.

By signing bielow, I ce^fy tbat SNHS .currently complies with each of the listed requirements and
wll\remairi in com'pllance for the duration of the cont/act period.

r

lignMure of Autliorind Representative Date

^D6pnafee Lozeau, Executive Director
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CERTinCATE OF AirTHORITY

1. C^ille Kerr . hereby certify thai:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corooratipn/LLC; caonot be contracl signatory)

1. 1 am 8 duty elected Ctertc/SecfetaryfOffteef of Southern New Hampshire Services .
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The foljvMn^ a true copy of a vote taken at a mieeling of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on ottrc*. 20^0 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and votirto.

(Qate)

VOTEp: That Dbnnalee Lbzeau. Executive DIreelor (may list more than one person)
(N^me and Title bf Contract Sidnalory)

is duly authortzad on be.half df Southern New Hampshire Services lo enter Into contracts or agreements with the'
(Nam'e of Corporation/LLC)

State of New Hampshire and any qf Its age.hcles or departhients ahd further Is authorized to execute any and all
dpcuments, agreements and other irtstrlirhents, and any amendments, regions, or modincatlons thereto, which
may In his/her jur^ment'be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3.1, hereby certify that said vo^lte has'not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of tf«
date of the contrapt/contra<Qt amendment to which this Certificate is attached. This authortty remains valid for
thirty (30) days frpm thp date of thls Certificate bf Aiithbrity. I further certify that it Is understood that the St^e of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
po^tionfs) Indicated and that they have full authortty to bind the'cof^j^orOig the extent that there are ar>y
limits on the authority qf any listed Individual to bind the corporation the State of New Hampshire,
an such llm.Ratipns are expressly sta^ herein.

baled: /yt^O^
>lgnature of Elected Officer
Name: OryHle Kerr
Title: Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20



State of New Hampshire

Depai^ent of State

CERTfflCATE

I. WiUiam M. Ctrdner, Sccrttary of$tat9 of die State of Hew Hainishire,dq.heT^byceniry that.SOUTHERN NEW

HAMFSHIHE SERVICES INC. is a New Hampshire Nonpnint Coiporetion tegistered to.nnsact busn^ b New Hampshire on

May .28; 1965.1 l^uther^c^fy'tbat.all fees and docuneots required by the Secretary of State's ofTice have been received and is in

good standing as'te as diis:6ffiee is concerned.

Btsinesa.lD: ££$06

Certificale Number 0004913065

Op

%

j*

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

[ hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this >2tb day of May AS). 2020.

William M. Cardna

Secretary of State



ACOKQ- CERTIFICATE OF LIABILrTY INSURANCE OATS paaoonrm)

12/30/2019

THIS CERTTFICATE tS fSSUED AS A MATTER OT INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE NOLOER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATiyELY OR NEOATWELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BYTHEPOUOES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING tNSURERlS). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If tha cotSflutaiholder Is an AODTRONAL INSURED, Um pollcy(las) cmist hava AOOITIONAL INSURED provtatons or ba anderaad.
If .SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and condltloRS of tha p^cy, certain poQciaa may requlro an cndorsamtnL AsUtamanton
this cartlflcata does-not confef ilflhta to tho certlflcata holda'r in llau of such andoriafnantfsi.
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